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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Merber of
Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

1.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tata Capital Housing Finance
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to
the financial statements, including 2 summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March
2024, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming
our cpinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.
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Auditor’s Response

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of Financial | Our audit approach/procedures included
Instruments the following:

Ind AS 109 Financial instruments
(Ind AS 109) requires the Company to
provide for impairment of its
financial instruments (designated as
amortized cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income) using
the expected credit loss (ECL)
approach.

ECL involves an estimation and a
significant degree of judgement by
the management for development of
ECL model and its corresponding
application in the ECL model. These
judgement and estimates include:

1. Estimating the behavioral life
of the product

2. Data inputs in relation to ECL
model

3. Application of the micro
economic variables on a
forward-looking basis

4. Determination of loan book
segmentation, probability of
defaults, loss given defaults and
exposure at default.

Read and assessed the Company’s
accounting policies for impairment
of financial assets and their
compliance with Ind AS 109 and the
governance framework approved by
the Board of Directors.

Performed end to end process
walkthroughs to identify the key
systems, applications and controls
used in the ECL processes.

Evaluated the design of general IT
and application controls over key
systems used in the ECL process
and tested the relevant manual
controls

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
methodology and tool to compute
ECL rates.

Performed test of details over
calculations of ECL  rate
computation, in relation to the
completeness and accuracy of data
on sample basis.

Obtained written representations
from the management on the
reasonableness of the significant
assumptions used in computation of
ECL provision.

Tested a sample of performing
(stage 1) loans to assess whether any
SICR or loss indicators were present
requiring them to be classified
under higher stages.
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4.

Assessed the disclosures included in
the Ind-AS financial statements
with respect to such allowance /
estimate are in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 109 and Ind
AS 107 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures.

Evaluation of Company’s
Information  Technology (IT)

Our

audit approach/procedures include
the following:

systems and Controls over

Financial Reporting
The information system is a critical | « Evaluated the extent to which the
component of Company’s controls are designed and
operations, enabling efficient implemented to mitigate the risk of
processing of transactions, material misstatement in financial

safeguarding of information, and
supporting decision-making, The
financial accounting and reporting
systems of the Company are also
fundamentally reliant on IT systems
and IT controls.

As such, it is important for us to
evaluate the effectiveness of
information system controls to
ensure the correctness, integrity,
availability, and confidentiality of
data. We identified ‘IT systems and
controls including audit trail (audit
log)’ as key audit matter because of
the pervasive nature of IT
environment and the scale and
complexity of the IT architecture.

reporting.

Obtained an understanding of the IT
control environment and IT policies
during the audit period.

Testing IT general controls related
to User, Change Management
Controls, Information Security
Controls, Log management and
Data backup.

Assessment and identification of
key IT applications including those
identified by the management for
audit trail (audit log) further
verifying, testing, and reviewing the
design and operating effectiveness
of the IT system based on reports
and other financial and non-
financial information generated
from the system on a test check
basis.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information,
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.
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express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

The above information is not made available to us as at the date of this Auditor’s report. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

5. Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

6. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. i

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the Financial Statements made by the Management and
Board of Directors.

¢  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,

¢  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢  Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of

our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial
Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
- relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reaso be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
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III.

g)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Cbmpany SO
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in para ITII(f)
below on reporting under rule 11(g).

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31 March
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B”, Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statement.

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) and paragraph I1I(f)
below on reporting under rule 11(g).

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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2)

b)

g)

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024
on its financial position in its Financial Statements - Refer Note 31 of Financial
Statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts - Refer Note 6 of Financial Statements;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

d) (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(i) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iif) Based on audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

As stated in Note 21.3 to the financial statements, the Company has not declared
and paid interim dividend during the year and until the date of this report.

Based on our examination, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all the relevant
transactions recorded in the software except the audit trail feature for interest rate
reset for LAP Drop Line accounts of the Company which was in operation only
from March 1, 2024. Further, Audit trail feature has not been tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable

~from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory _
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024.
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With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16) of the

Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the

provisions of section 197 of the Act.

For C NK & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101961W/W100036

Voo
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Suresh Agaskar
Partner

Membership No. 110321
UDIN: 24110321BKETHWS8847
Place: Mumbai

Date; May 02, 2024

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 00671 1N/N500028
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Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363

UDIN: 24075363BKGYNH1335
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 02, 2024
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that;

ii.

iii.

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(@ (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant, equipment’s, and investment
property and relevant details of right-of use assets.

(B)The Conipany has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets. :

(b)The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment
whereby all these assets are verified once in three years. In our opinion, the periodicity of
the physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. For the assets whéte physical verification exercise was completed in
previous year, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)The title deeds of the immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment
are held in the name of the Company.

(d)The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e)As disclosed by the Management in note 49 and as confirmed to us, no proceedings have
been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company is a service company primarily engaged in lending business.
Accordingly, it does not hold any inventories. Thus, the provision of clause 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)The Company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crores in
aggregate during the year from banks on the basis of security of current assets and the
quarterly returns/statements are filed by the Company with such Banks. As disclosed by
the management in note 15.10 of the financial statements and as verified by us, the same
are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company. -

The Company has granted secured and unsecured loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships and to others parties during the year, in respect of which;

(a) Since the Cdmpany is principally engaged in providing loans, hence the reporting
under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the loans granted during the year are in
normal course of business during the year and are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of loans and advarices in nature of loans, granted by the Compahy during
the normal course of its business, having regard to the voluminous nature of loan
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iv.

vi.

vii.

repayment or receipt and the extent of delay in this report (as suggested in the
Guidance Note on CARO 2020, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India for reporting under this clause), in respect of loans and advances which were not
repaid / paid when they were due or were repaid / paid with a delay. Further for loans
where there are delays or defaults in repayment of principal and / or payment of interest
as at the balance sheet date, the summary of the same are disclosed by Management in
Note 39(A)(i)(1)(a) of Notes to Financial Statements.

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the overdue amount remaining
outstanding as at the balance sheet date is as reported by the management in Note
39(A)(i)(1)(a) of Notes of the Financial Statements. The total amount overdue for more
than 90 days amounts to Rs. 493.89 crore with respect to 2,113 borrowers. The
Company has taken reasonable steps in its normal course of business for recovery of
overdue principal and interest in respect of such loans;

(e) As the Company is principally engaged in providing loans, hence the reporting under
clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during
the year except loan given to TCL Employee Welfare Trust (a related party)
aggregating to Rs. 2.37 crore which is repayable on demand. The same accounts for
less than 0.01% of total gross advances as at March 31, 2024; '

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and
securities which attract the provisions of section 185 and section 186 of the Act.

Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of the sections 73 to 76 and any other relevant provisions of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended), are not applicable to
the Company being a housing finance company registered with the National Housing
Bank, and also the Company has not accepted any deposits from public or there is no
amount which has been considered as deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73
to 76 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods
and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the
Company did not have any dues on account of sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs
and duty of excise.

Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were
in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they
become payable.
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(b) Details of stafutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on 31 March 2024 on account of disputes are given below;

Amount

Nature of Act Forum Period (AY) (Rupees in Crores)

Income Tax Act | CIT Appeals | 2018-2019 0.51

Income Tax Act | CIT Appeals | 2020-2021 0.17

viii. As disclosed by the management in note 49 and as verified by us, there were no
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961).

ix.  (a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender, during the year,

(b) As disclosed by the management in note 49 and as confirmed to us, the Company has
not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.

(¢) The term loans availed by the Company have been generally applied for the purpose for
which they were raised; other than temporary deployment of such funds pending final
application of proceeds;

(d) On an overall examination of financials statement of the Company, funds raised by the
Company on short term basis, have prima facie not been used during the year for long term
purposes;

(¢) The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associates and
accordingly, the provision of Clause 3 (ix) (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable,

X. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has made preferential allotment of right shares and the
requirement of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied
with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the same were raised.

Xi. (a) We report that no fraud by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year
nor have we been informed of any such case by the management. As regards to fraud on
the Company, there is one instance aggregating to Rs.18.14 crore wherein frauds have been

perpetrated by the Borrower of the Company as disclosed in note 41.15 of financial
Statements.

(b) No report undér sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(c) As represented to us by the Management, no whistle blower complaints have been
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) The Company has an in house internal audit system which in our opinion is commensurate
with the size and nature of its business, :

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued related to the period under audit have
been considered by us.

During the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with its directors, and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the
Order is not applicable.

'(a) As the Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company and registered under National

Housing Bank (NHB) Act, 1987, it has been exempted from the requirement of Registration
under section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has a valid certificate of registration from National Housing Bank

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company and hence reporting under clause (xvi)(c)
of the Order is not applicable

(d) The Group has five CICs which are registered with the Reserve Bank of India and two
CICs which are not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and hence reporting

(xix)

under clause (xviti) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) As disclosed by the management in note 30.3 of the Financial Statements and as verified by
us, the gross amount required to be spent by the Company towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) during the year has been duly spent during the year hence reporting
under clause (xx)(a) and clause (xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xxi) Reporting under the clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable as the same is required to be
reported only in case of Consolidated Financial Statements.

For C N K & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101961 W/W100036

Suresh Agaskar
Partner
Membership No. 110321
UDIN: 24110321BKETHWS847
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 02, 2024

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 00671 IN/N500028

Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363

UDIN: 24075363 BKGYNH1335
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 02, 2024
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TATA CAPITAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of TATA
CAPITAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (*ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
both issued by the ICALThose Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuran¢e about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial




CNK & Associates LLP ' T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants - Chartered Accountants

statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial stateménts

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For C N K & Associates LLP For T R Chadha & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. ICAI Firm Registration No.
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Suresh Agaskar Vikas Kumar

Partner Partner

Membership No. 110321 Membership No. 075363

UDIN: 24110321 BKETHWS8847 UDIN: 24075363BKGYNH1335

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 02, 2024 Date: May 02, 2024



Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Balance Sheet
a0 gt Mareh 3], 2024

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars
ASSETS

(1} Financinl nesets
(1) Cashand =azh cquivalents
(b) Bank tala:cpa other than (a) sbove
%) Detivativt finaneial strements
(! Recciva'ies
(i) Trade receivables
i) Ot"zx poccivables
(¢} Loans
) Imvestments
(g} Other linancial assets
Total Financial arsets

(2) Noo-Financial assets
(8} Currenl tax asscls (Met)
by Deoferred tax assats (Net)
{£)  Investnent Property
(@ Propesty, plant snd equipment
(e} Crpital work-inpiogress
Intangille nsscts tnder Jevelopment
Othey yttangible assets
Righl of use assety
(i}  OMuroon-finencial asssts
Total Non-Flnancial ayreez

Total Assets
" LIABILITLES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

(L) Financial liabilities
(®) Derivative financie! instrionents
) Payables
(i) Trade payshlea
- Tot-' e tanding dues of micro enterprisca and small enterprises
« Tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micra enterprises and small erterprises
{ii) Other payables
- Tetal cutstanding dues of micro cntcipiizes aind sl enterprises
- Toul outstanding dren of creditors other tham aricro crterprises and #mall enterprises
Dbt Securities
Borrowings {Cther than debt securities)
(e} Subordinated labilities
(O Lease Lisbilities
() Ot Doancicl liabilities
Tatat Financial Hxbilitica

)
@

{2) Non-Finuncial Labilitis
(o) Cummeni Lax Kablities (Net)
) Provisions
(¢} Other non-Rnarcial Linbilities
Toial Non-Flnancial Eabilities

(3) Equity
(s} Equity share copital
(b} Other equity
Total Equity
Total Liabilitics nad Equlty
Summary of material accounting policy information
See acoompanying notes forming purt of the firancial statements

In terms of nur report of even date
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54 47534 40,660.35
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Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in eroce)

Particulars

1  Revenue from operationy
(i} Interest lncome
{ii} Fees and commission Income
(iii) Net gain on fair value changes
11 Otherincome
111 Total Income (1411}

IV Expenses

{i) Finance costs

(i) Impaimment / (Reversal} on financial instruments
(ili) Employee benefits expenscs

(i) Depreciation, smortisation and impairment

(W) Oiher expenses

Total expenses (IV}
Y Profit beflore exceptional items and tax (III-1IV)
V1 Exceptional Items
VI Profit before tax (V-VI)

VI Tax expense
(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax
Total tax expense

TX Profit for the year (VII-VIII)

X Other Camprehensive Income
(i) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss
(a) The effective partion of gain / (lass) on hedging instrumients in a cash flow hedge
(b) Income tax relating (o cifective portion of gain f (foss) on bedging instrument in & cash Row hedge
{ii) ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss
{a) Remeasurement of defincd empleyee benefit plans
{b) Inceme tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Tota) Other Comprehensive Income (i)
X

-

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X) (Comprising Profit and Qther Comprehensive
Income for the year)

XI

Earnings per equity share {(Face value ; Rs, 10 per share):
(1) Basic (Rs.)
(2) Diluted (Rs,)

Summary of material accounting policy information
Sce accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our repoct of ¢ven date

For CNK & Asseciates LLP For T R Chadha & CoLLP
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Note

22
3
25

Fi

o
12

For the year ended For the year cnded
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4,840.64 3,625.08
5947
4743
114.28 6.4
518920 3.818.32
293513 2,051,54
(148.47) .14
446.76 30822
27.86
7216 297.58
3,650.07 2717.34
1,539.13 1,10098
1,539.13 1,10058
KL 269.34
[0.79
35146 280.13
L147.67 820.85
{8.60) 10.37
261
(2.33)
{0.12) .59
{6.10) 6.02
1,141.57 825.87
14.98
14.98
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Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Statement of Cash Flow
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in ¢rore)

Particulars

CASH FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Profi befors tax
Adjustments far
Amortisation of Ancillary borrowing cost
Depreciation and amortisation

Net loss on derecogrition of property, plant and equipment
Net gain on modification/dcrecognition of right of use assets

Assets writien off

Interest expenses

Tnterest incormne

Net gain on fair value changes

Remeasurement of defined eraployes beaefit plans through OCI

Share based payments- Equity-settled
Provision for [eave encashment
Pravision for fong-term service award

Impaimaent (gain) / loss allowance on financial instruments

Provision against irade receivables

Interest paid

Inlerest received

Operatiag Profit before working capital changes
Adjustmenis lor:

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in Loans

Increase in (hher financial asset

Increase in Qther non-financisl assels

Increase in Trade payables

(Decrease) / Increase in Other financial liabilitics
Increase in Other non-financial liabilities

Cash used in operations
Taxes paid (ter off refunds)
1 Net Cash Used In Qperating Activities (A)

2 CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, piant & equi (mcluding capital

Proceeds from sele of property, plant & equipment
Purchase of niutuzl fund units

Proceeds from redemption of mutzal fund units
Purchasc of Invesiments

Proceeds Erom sale of investments

Net Purchase of fixed deposits with banks having maturity exceeding 3 monik

Net Cash Generated From / (Used In) Investing Activities (B)

For the year ended For the year ended
Nate Mareh 31, 2014 March 31, 2023
153913 1,100.98
44.39 27.86
a.14 -
0.49) .11
004 -
293513 2,051.54
{4.840.64} (3,610.43)
{56.5T) {47.43)
0.46 (233)
6.00 327
1.88 141
0.08 0.04
{164.39) 17.27
1591 1487
(282966 (1,833.85)
4.666.96 348119
131837 1,206.23
(19.94) {23.96)
(14,166.85) {8.313.38)
(154 16.61)
(4.64) (.14}
H 3167
{330.64) 208.93
1392 313
(13,156.78) {6,899.13)
(35811} (265.28)
(13,514.89) {7,164 41)
(36.52) {47.13)
0.64 0.19
{1,17,565.86) {1,00,495.27)
1,19,773.76 99.888.87
(1,648.18) {1,673,76)
1,150.00 1,476.00
(50.25) -
1,663.51 BSl.lOl




~ Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Statement of Cash Flow
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
Particulars

3 CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Share Issue Expensea

FProceods from issue of Equity Share Capital

Payment of ancillary borrowing cost

Interim dividend peid on Equity

Proceeds from Barrowings (Other than debt securities)
Proceeds from Debt Securities

Proceeds from Subordineled Lisbilitics

Repayment of Borrowings {Cther than debs sequrities)
Repayment of Debt Securities

Repayment of Suberdinated Lizbilities

Repayment of Lease Liabilities

Net Cash Generated From Finzocing Activitics (C)

Net Increase [ (Deercase) In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash And Cash Equivalents Ag At The Beginning Of The Year

Cash And Cash Equivalents As At The End Of The Year

Reconciliztion of cash and cash cquivalents a8 above with tash and bank balances
Cash and Cash equivelents at the end of the year as per sbove

Add : Restricted Cash

Add; Fixed deposits with original maturity over 3 months

Cash And Cash Equivalents And Other Bank Balances As At The End O The Year

Summary of material sccaunting policy inform ation
Sec accompanying notes forming part of the financial falements

n terms of our report of even date
For CNK & Associntes LLP For TR Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountanis Charered Accountants

Firm's Registrati o: 101561 W/ W-100036 Firm's Registration No: 00671 LIN/N3 00028
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Note For the yesr ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
(0,03) (0.03)
60,00 300.00
(10.10) (22.70)
- (3231
16,567.07 13,844.2%
12,196,710 1141022
296.11 129.00
(%,771.53) {10,038.75)
(7,100.70) {7,686.54)
(36.20) {79.30)
(24.11) {15.35)
12211.21 £.00R.53
9iﬁ9.!3 {6.98)
698.28 703.26
L6SR.11 £98.23
1,658.11 658.28
0.24 0.07
50,78 .45
1,70_9;!3 698,30
2
3-50
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Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Rs. in crore|
Balance as at April 1, 2022

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance as at April 1, 2022

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2023

541.56

547.56
23.19
570.75

Balance as at April 1, 2023 570.75
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance as at April 1, 2023

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2024

570.75
2540
596.15

Other equity

Items of other comprebensive

Reserves and surplus
income

Total Other
equity

Remeasurement
of defined benefit
linbility
Jasset

Particulars Share options

outstanding
account

Effective portion
of cash flow
bedge reserve

Retained
earnings

Securities
premiun

Special reserve

General reserve
account

Balance as at April 1, 2022 1,856.72 520 3,019.25

Changes in accounting policy / prior period . . R . . . . .
erTors

Restated balance as at April 1, 2022 1,856.72
Profit for the period - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net
of income tax

Total

410.15 739.76

739.76
820.85 -

3,019.25
820.85

6.02

3,846.12
(323D
(0.03)

2.69

1,856.72

Interim Dividend on equity shares - - (3231) -
Share issue expenses written-off (0.03) - R - . R -
Addition to ESOP reserve .

Transfer to General Reserve . - R
Transfer to Special Reserve Account . (164.17)
|Addition to Securities Premium Account 476.82 - - . - - .

Balance as at March 31, 2023 2,333.51 1.364.13

1,560.61

476.82
4,293.29

Balance as at April 1,2023 2,333.51 4,293.29

(Changes in accounting policy / prior period . . . . . R . .
erTors

Restated balance as at April 1, 2023 2333.51
Profit for the year - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net
of income tax

Total

1,364.13

1,364.13 10.28
1,147.67 - - - -

(6.44)
3.84

4,293.29
1,147.67

(6.10)
5.434.86

(0.04)
543

Share issue expenses written-off
Addition to ESOP reserve
 Transfer to General Reserve - - -
Transfer to Special Reserve Account - 229.53 (229.53)
| Addition to Securities Premium Account 674.60 - » - - - - -

Balance as at March 31, 2024 3,008.07 803.85 2282.27 6.66 .84 0.46)

674.60
6,114.85

Summary of material accounting policy information 2
See accompanying notes forining part of the financial statements 3-50

In terms of our report of even date
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TATA CAPITAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

I. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited (the "Company") is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata
Capital Limited and a Systemically Important Non-Deposit Accepting Housing Finance Company
(“HFC”), holding a Certificate of Registration from the National Housing Bank (“WHB™) dated
April 2, 2009. The Company is domiciled in India and incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013
and listed its non-convertible debentures with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange Limited.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

i. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (IND AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") (as amended), other relevant provisions of the Act,
guidelines issued by the National Housing Bank and Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) as applicable
to a HFCs and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Any application guidance
/ clarifications / directions issued by NHB / RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when
they are issued / applicable, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied except where compliance with other
statutory promulgations require a different treatment. Material accounting policy information has
been consistently applied except where a newly issued Ind AS is initially adopted or a revision to
an existing Ind AS required a change in the material accounting policy information hitherto in

use. The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on May
02, 2024.

ii. Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in Equity are
prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division III of Schedule III of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented
as per the requirements of Ind AS.

A summary of the material accounting policy information and other explanatory information is in
accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) including applicable Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) and accounting principies generally accepted in India.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They
are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also
intend to settle on a net basis.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Crore, which is also the

Company’s functional currency and all amounts have been rounded off to the nearest crore
unless otherwise indicated.

fii. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as
explained in the material accounting policy information below.




TATA CAPITAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Confinued)

iv.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services at the time of entering into the fransaction.

Measurement of fair values:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A number of the Company’s material accounting policy information and disclosures require the
measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes for certain items in these financial
statements is determined considering the following measurement methods:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities (including Fair vahie
derivatives instruments)

Net defined benefit (asset)/liability Fair value of planned assets less
: present value of defined benefit
obligations
Property plant and equipment Value in use under Ind AS 36

Fair values are categorized into different levels (Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3) in a fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques. When measuring the fair value of
an asset or & liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs
used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The levels are described as follows:

a) Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Company can access at the measurement date

b) Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

c} Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities that the
Company can access at the measurement date,

Valuation model and framework used for fair value measurement and disclosure of financial
instrument:

Refer notes 37A and 37B

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.




TATA CAPITAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)

v. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management of
the Company to make judgements, assumptions and estimates that affect the reported balances of
assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses for the reporting period. The
application of material accounting policy information that require critical accounting estimates
involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in the financial
statements have been disclosed as applicable in the respective notes to accounts. Accounting
estimates could change from period to period. Future results could differ from these estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effect are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Judgements:

Information about judgements made in applying material accounting policy information that have
most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements is included in the
following note:

- Note xi - classification of financial assets: assessment of the business model within which the
assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Assumptions and estimation of uncertainties:

Information about assumptions and estimation of uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2024 are included in the
following notes:

- Note xii- impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumption underlying recoverable
amounts.

- Note xi - The Company’s EIR methodology: rate of return that represents the best estitnate of
a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given/taken

- Note xii - useful life of property, plant, equipment and intangibles.

- Note xviii -Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes,
including amount expected to be paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions

- Note — xx recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions
about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

- Note xiv — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions.

Note 37A and 37B — determination of the fair value of financial instruments with significant

unobservable inputs.

Note 39A(iii) — impairment of financial instruments: assesstnent of whether credit risk on the

financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, assumptions used in

estimating recoverable cash flows and incorporation of forward-looking information in the

measurement of expected credit loss (ECL). The weights assigned to different scenarios for

measurement of forward looking ECL, i.e. best case, worst case and base case also requires

judgement.
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vi. Interest

Interest consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with
the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs, as well as a profit margin.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate (EIR)
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Calculation of the EIR includes all fees received that are incremental and directly attributable to
the acquisition of a financial asset.

Interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit
impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any
expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is
calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets {i.e.
at the amortised cost of the financial asset after adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance
(ECLs)}. The Company assesses the collectability of the interest on credit impaired assets at each
reporting date. Based on the outcome of such assessment, the interest income accrued on credit
impaired financial assets are either accounted for as income or written off as per the write off
policy of the Company.

The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured on
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance.

The “gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

vii.Fee and commission income not integral to effective interest rate (EIR) method under Ind
AS 109 and Income from services and distribution of financial products

The Company recognises the fee and commission income not integral to EIR under Ind AS 109
in accordance with the terms of the relevant customer contracts / agreement and when it is
probable that the Company will collect the consideration for items.

Revenue in the form of income from financial advisory (other than for those items to which Ind
AS 109 - Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at the transaction price allocated to
the performance obligation, in accordance with Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with
customers.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as
set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two
or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the ctiteria for every
contract that must be met.
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Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise
in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance
obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Fees for financial advisory services are accounted as and when the service is rendered, provided
there is reasonable certainty of its ultimate realisation.

Other Income includes branch advertising, represents income earned from the activities
incidental to the business and is recognised when the right to receive the income is established as
per the terms of the contract.

viii.Dividend income

ix.

Income from dividend on investment in equity shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual
funds is accounted when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Leases

Asset taken on lease:
The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for properties.

The Company presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately on the face of the
Balance sheet. Lease payments (including interest) have been classified as financing cashflows.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset
or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use
assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of
the lease term. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is presented in investment property.
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xi.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and
decreased by lease payment made. The carrying amount of lease liability is remeasured to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
A change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or as appropriate, changes in the assessment of whether a purchase or extension option is
reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not be exercised.

The Company has applied judgement to determine the lease term for some lease contracts in
which it is a lessee that include renewal options. The assessment of whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise such options impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the
amount of lease liabilities and right of use assets recognised. The discounted rate is generally
based on incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated.

Borrowing cost:

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the EIR on respective financial
instruments measured at amortised cost and exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings, to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial
liability.

Calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid that are incremental and directly attributable to the
issue of a financial liability.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet on trade
date, i.e. when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs and
revenues that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financia] liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs and revenues of financial assets or
financial liabilities carried at fair value through the profit or loss account are recognised
immediately in the Stafement of Profit or Loss. Trade Receivables are measured at transaction
price.
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a) Financial assets
Classification

On initial recognition, depending on the Company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and its contractual cash flow characteristics, a financial asset is classified as
measured at;

1) amortised cost;

2) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); or

3) fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in
the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method if
it meets both of the following conditions and is not recognised as at FVTPL:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI
(designated as FVTOCI — equity investment). This election is made an investment — by —
investment basis.

All financials assets not classified and measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI as described
above are measured at FVITPL. On initial recognition, the company may irrevocably
designate the financials assets that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVTOCI or at FVTPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces the
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a
financial asset is held at a portfolic level because this best reflects the way the business is
managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice.
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;
- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;
- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and expectation about future sales activity.
- -How managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based
on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).
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At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognized
financial assets are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect a new business
model. The Company reassess its business models each reporting period to determine
whether the business models have changed since the preceding period.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. That principal amount may change over the life of the financial
assets (e.g. if there are payments of principal). Amount of ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest,
the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing
whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this
assessment, the Company considers:

- Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate
features;

- Prepayment and extension features; and

- Terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets.

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement.
Contractual terms that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows
that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity
prices or commodity prices, do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are SPPL

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest
criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination of the confract. Additionally, for a financial asset
acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that
permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par
amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if
the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and

at FVTPL losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. The transaction costs and fees are also
recorded related to these instruments in the statement of profit and
loss.
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Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

at amortised cost  effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss,

Financial assets Financial assets that are held within a business model whose
(other than objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting
Equity contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
Investments) at interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other
FVTOCI comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the

other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using
the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the
statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to
the statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
investments at recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the
FVTOCI dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the

investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are
not reclassified to profit or loss.

Reclassifications within classes of financial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the
period after the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

The classification and measurement requirements of the new category apply prospectively
from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that
result in reclassifying the Company’s financial assets.

Impairment of Financial Asset
Impairment approach o

Overview of the Expected Crédit Losses (ECL) principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans (including those
classified as measured at FVTOCI), together with loan commitments, in this section all
referred to as ‘financial instruments’ other than those measured at FVTPL. Equity
instruments are not subject to impatrment under Ind AS 109.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset
(the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in
credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’
expected credit loss (12m ECL). The Company’s policies for determining if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk are set out in Note 39A (iii).

The 12m ECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date.
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Both LTECLs and 12m ECLs are calculated on an individual/portfolio basis having similar
risk characteristic, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial
instruments.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
periad, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life
of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loans into Stage I, Stage 2 and
Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on
12ZmECLs. This also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has
been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where
the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired. A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make the contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall due.
Accordingly, the financial assets shall be classified as Stage 3, if on the reporting date, it has
been 90 days past due. Further if the customer has requested forbearance in repayment terms,
such restructured, rescheduled or renegotiated accounts are also classificd as Stage 3.
Non-payment on another obligation of the same customer is also considered as a stage 3.
Defaulted accounts include customers reported as fraud in the Fraud Risk Management
Committee. Once an account defaults as a result of the Day Past Due condition, it will be
considered to be cured only when entire arrears of interest and principal are paid by the
borrower. The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs.

Undrawn loan commitments

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the
commitment, the Company is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the
customer, Undrawn loan commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract requires the Company to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs becanse a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair
values and, if not designated as at FVTPL and not arising from a transfer of a financial asset,
are subsequently measured at the higher of:

= the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with Ind AS 109; and

= the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the Company’s revenue recognition policies. The Company
has not designated any financial guarantee contracts as FVTPL,
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Company’s ECL for financial gnarantee is estimated based on the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs. The shortfalls are
discounted by the interest rate relevant to the exposure, —

The Measurement of ECLs

The Company calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenario to measure the
expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the
difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as
follows:

Probability of Default (PD): The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of
default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the
assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the
portfolio.

Exposure at Default (EAD): The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a
future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting
date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or
otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed
payments.

Loss Given Default (LGDY): The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the
case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from
the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification
losses or gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset’s gross carrying
value

When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the
expected portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The
ECL is then based on the preseat value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is
drawn down, based on a probability-weightage. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
at an approximation to the expected EIR on the loan.

The above calculated PDs, EAD and L.GDs are reviewed and changes in the forward looking,
estimates are analysed during the year.

The mechanics of the ECL methed are summarised below:

Stage | The 12 months ECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs
that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date. These expected 12-months default probabilities are applied
to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.
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Stage 2 When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those
explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The
expected cash shortfalls are discounted by contractual or portfolio EIR as the case may be.

Stage 3 For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime expected
credit losses for these loans. The method is similar to that for stage 2 assets, with the PD set
at 100%.

In ECL model the Company relies on broad range of forward looking information for
economic inputs.

The Company recognises loss allowance for expected credit losses {ECLs) on all financial
assets at amortised cost that are debt instruments, debt financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. No
impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

When determining whether credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, including on
historical experience and forward-looking information (Refer Note 39A (iii)).

Impairment of Trade receivable

Impairment allowance on trade receivables is made on the basis of life time credit loss
method, in addition fo specific provision considering the uncertainty of recoverability of
certain receivables.

Write-off

Impaired loans and receivables are written off, against the related allowance for loan
impairment on completion of the Company’s internal processes and when the Company
concludes that there is no longer any realistic prospect of recovery of part or all of the loan.
For loans that are individually assessed for impairment, the timing of write off is determined
on a case by case basis. A write-off constitutes a de-recognition event. The Company has a
right to apply enforcement activities to recover such written off financial assets. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Collateral valuation and repossession

To mitigate the credit risk on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where
possible as per the powers conferred on the Non-Banking Finance Companies under the
Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Securities Interest
Act, 2002 (“SARFAESI”).

The Company provides fully secured, partially secured and unsecured loans to individuals
and Corporates. In its normal course of business upon account becoming delinquent, the
Company physically repossess properties or other assets in its retail portfolio. Any surplus
funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, the residential
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properties, vehicles, plant and machinery under legal repossession processes are not recorded
on the balance sheet and not treated as non—current assets held for sale unless the title is also
transferred in the name of the Company.

Presentation of ECL allowance for financial asset:

Type of Financial asset Disclosure
Financial asset measured at | shown as a deduction from the gross carrying
amortised cost amount of the assets

Loan commitments and financial | shown separately under the head “provisions™
guarantee contracts

Modification and De-recogniticx of financial assets
Modification of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash
flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition
and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the
contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. The Company renegotiates
loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximise collection and minimise the risk of
default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all
reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default
ot default has already happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised
terms. The tevised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the
loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment),
reduction in the amount of cdsh flows due (principal and interest forgiveness}. Such accounts
are classified as stage 3 immediately upon such modification in the terms of the contract.

Not all changes in terms of loans are considered as renegotiation and changes in terms of a
class of obligors that are not overdue is not considered as renegotiation and is not subjected
to deterioration in staging.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when:

1} the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

2} the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, or the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i)
the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed)
and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or
loss. :
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Any cumulative gainfloss recognised in OCI in respect of equity investment securities
designated as at FVTOCI is not recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of such
securities. Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is
created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Securitization and Assignment

In case of transfer of loans through securitisation and direct assignment transactions, the
transferred loans are de-recognised and gains/losses are accounted for, only if the Company
transfers substantially all risks and rewards specified in the underlying assigned loan
contract,

In accordance with the Ind AS 109, on de-recognition of a financial asset under assigned
transactions, the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liability and Equity

Debt and equity instraments that are issued are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at the amortised cost using the effective
interest method, unless at initial recognition, they are classified ag fair value through profit
and loss. Interest expense are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the Company or a contract that will or may be settled in the
Company’s own equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Company
is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a
derivative contract over own equity that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of

a fixed amount of cash {or another financial asset) for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

Classification

The Company classifies its financial liability as "Financial liability measured at amortised
cost" except for those classified as financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit
and loss (FVTPL).

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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b)

Equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. A conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

No gain/loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and
interest rate risk exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and
accounted for separately if certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The
resulting gain/loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and is effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of
the recognition in the statement of profit and loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

The Company designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability
in cash flows associated with its floating rate borrowings arising from changes in interest
rates and exchange rates.

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Company documents the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also documents
the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including
whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are expected to
offset each other.

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of
changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised in OCI and accumulated in the other
equity under ‘effective portion of cash flows hedges’. The effective portion of changes in the
fair value of the derivative that is recognised in OCI is limited to the cumulative change in
fair value of the hedged item, determined on a present value basis, from inception of the
hedge. Any ineffective portion of changes in fair value of the derivative is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. ’

The Company designates only the change in fair value of the spot element of forward
exchange contracts as the hedging instrument in cash flow hedge relationships. The change
in fair value of the forward element of the forward exchange contracts (‘forward points’) is
separately accounted for as cost of hedging and recognised separately within equity.

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is
sold, expires, is terminated or is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued
prospectively. If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, then the
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amounts that have been accumulated in other equity are immediately reclassified to profit or
loss.
Cash, Cash equivalents and bank balances

Cash, Cash equivalents and bank balances include fixed deposits, margin money deposits,
and earmarked balances with banks are carried at amortised cost.

xii. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

a)

b)

d)

PPE

PPE acquired by the Company are reported at acquisition cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Estimated cost of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which its located does not arise for owned
assets, for leased assets the sam< are borne by the lessee as per the lease agreement. The
acquisition cost includes any cost attributable for bringing an asset to its working condition
net of tax/duty credits availed, which comprises of purchase consideration and other
directly attributabie costs of bringing the assets to their working condition for their intended
use. PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Subsequent expenditure on PPE after its purchase is capitalized only if it is probable that
the future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. ‘

Capital work-in-progress

PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “capital
work-in-progress” and carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses
and attributable interest.

Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed,
if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. Administrative and other
general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to the acquisition of intangible
assets are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets. Expenses on
software support and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during
the vear in which such costs are incurred.

Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed
as “Intangible assets under development”.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciable amount for tangible property, plant and equipment is the cost of an asset, or

other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment deployed for own use has been
provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the
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Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of buildings, computer equipment, office equipment
and vehicles, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed based on the nature of
the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history
of replacement, etc. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each
financial year end with the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/residual value
is accounted on prospective basis. Depreciation for additions to/deductions from owned
assets is calculated pro rata to the remaining period of use. Depreciation charge for
impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying
amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful life. All capital assets with
individual value less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year in which they are
purchased.

Purchased software / licenses are amortised over the estimated useful life during which the
benefits are expected to accrue. The method of amortisation and useful life are reviewed at
the end of each accounting year with the effect of any changes in the estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Amortisation on impaired assets is provided by
adjusting the amortisation charge in the remaining periods so as to allocate the asset’s
revised carrying amount over its remaining usefu! life.

Estimated useful life considered by the Company are:

Leasehold Improvements As per lease period
Fumiture and Fixtures 10 years

Computer Equipment 4 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Vehicles 4 years

Software Licenses 1 to 10 years
Buildings / Investment Property 25 years

Plant & Machinery 10 years

f) Investment property

Properties held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as Investment
properties and measured and reported at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition its measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. When the use of an existing property changes from
owner-occupied to investment property, the property is reclassified as investment property
at its carrying amount on the date of reclassification.

Depreciation on investment property is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation is
provided on useful life of assets as prescribed in Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of property is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period.
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2)

h)

Impairment of assets

Upon an observed trigger, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE,
investment property and intangible asset to determine whether there is any indication that
the asset have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment
property and intangible assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment
loss, if any.

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such
deficit is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss
and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss is recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. An intanpible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

xiii. Non-Current Assets held for sale:

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is intended to be
recovered principally through a sale (rather than through continuing use} when the asset is
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sale of such asset and the sale is highly probable and is expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

The Company has a policy to make impairment provision at one third of the value of the Asset
for each year upon completion of three years up to the end of five years based on the past
observed pattern of recoveries. Losses on initial classification as Held for sale and subsequent
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Xiv,

gains & losses on remeasurement are recognised in Statement of Profit and loss. Once classified
as Held for sale, the assets are no longer amortised or depreciated.

Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution benefits include superannuation fund.

Defined Employee benefits include gratuity fund, provident fund, compensated absences and
long service awards.

Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution to superannuation fund is considered as defined contribution plan
and is charged as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss based on the amount of
contribution required to be made anid when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

The Company makes Provident Fund centributions, a defined benefit plan for qualifying
employees. Under the Schemes, both employees and the Company make monthly contributions
at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary (currently 12% of employees’
salary). The contributions, except that the employer’s contribution towards pension fund is
paid to the Regional Provident Fund office, as specified under the law, are made to the
provident fund set up as an irrevocable trust by Tata Capital Limited (“the ultimate parent
Company™). The interest rate payable to the members of the trust shall not be lower than the
statutory rate of interest declared by the Central Government under the Employees Provident
Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and shortfall on account of , if any, shall be
made good by the Company. Hence the Company is liable for annual contributions and any
deficiency in interest cost compared to interest computed based on the rate of interest declared
by the Central Government. The total liability in respect of the interest shortfall of the Fund is
determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation. The interest liability arising only to the extent
of the. aforesaid differential shortfalls is a defined benefit plan. There is no such shortfall as at
March 31, 2024,

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined
using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each
Balance Sheet date. As per Ind AS 19, the service cost and the net interest cost are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect
of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.
Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested.
The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value
of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as reduced by
the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past
service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions
to the schemes.

Short-term employee benefits

"The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render
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the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are
expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the
employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that
increase their entitlement of future compensated absences; and

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

Other long-term employee henefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of
the year in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the
present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date less the fair value of
the plan assets out of which the obligations are expected to be settled. Long term service
awards are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at
the balance sheet date.

The obligation is measured on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected unit credit
method and remeasurements gains/ losses are recognised in P&L in the period in which they
arise.

Share based payment transaction

The stock options of the Parent Company, granted to employees pursuant to the Company’s
Stock Options Schemes, are measured at the fair value of the options at the grant date as per
Black and Scholes model. The fair value of the options is treated as discount and accounted as
employee compensation cost, with a corresponding increase in other equity, over the vesting
period on a straight line basis. The amount recognised as expense in each year is arrived at
based on the number of grants expected to vest. If a grant lapses after the vesting period, the
cumulative discount recognised as expense, with a corresponding increase in other equity, in
respect of such grant is transferred to the General reserve within other equity.

xv. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are recorded on initial
recognition using the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet date, foreign
currency monetary items are reported at the rates prevailing at the year end. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated.

Functional currency of the Company and foreign operations has been determined based on the
primary economic environment in which the Company and its foreign operations operate
considering the currency in which funds are generated, spent and retained.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary
items at each Balance Sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they arise.

xvi.Operating Segments

The Company is engaged. in the business of providing loans for purchase, construction, repairs
and renovation etc., of houses/ flats to individuals and corporate bodies and has it’s operations
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xvii.

xviii.

within India. The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company is the Board of
Directors.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing net income attributable to ordinary
equity holders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid
up equity share is included as fully paid equivalent according to the fraction paid up.

Diluted earnings per share has been computed using the weighted average number of shares and
dilutive potential shares, except where the result would be anti-dilutive

Taxation
Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity when they
relate to items that are recognized in the respective line items.

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates
(and tax law) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the fitture tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases,
and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and
unused tax credits could be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on
a net bagis.




TATA CAPITAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Confinued)

xix.

XX,

xxi

Goods and Services Input Tax Credit

Goods and Services Input tax credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the
supply of goods or service received is accounted and when there is no uncertainty in
availing/utilising the credits.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecenomic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company determines the
level of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current
rates specific to the liability, The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement
of Profit and L.oss net of any reimbursement.

Contingent assets/liabilities

A possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or; present obligation that arises from past events where it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability are
disclosed as contingent liability and not provided for, Contingent assets are disclosed where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial
statements. :

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract is
recognised and measured as a provision.

Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as
follows:
a) estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
for;
b) other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered matetial and
relevant in the opinion of management.
c) other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are
not disclosed to avoid excessive details.
commitments under Loan agreement to disburse Loans.
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xxii, Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and

financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting

the net profit for the effects of:

i. changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash

nature;

ii. non-cash items such as depreciation, Impairment, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign currency
gains and losses, and undistributed profits of associates and joint ventures; and

iii. all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows
exclude items which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet.

xxiii. Dividend payable

Interim dividend declared to equity shareholders, if any, is recognised as liability in the period in
which the said dividend has been declared by the Board of Directors. Final dividend declared, if
any, is recognised in the period in which the said dividend has been approved by the
Shareholders.

The dividend payable is recognised as a liability with a corresponding amount recognised
directly in equity.

xxiv. Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.

For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to
the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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3.

31

4.1

4.2

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

PARTICULARS As at
March 31, 2024

(a) Balances with banks

As at|
March 31, 2023

- in fixed deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less) - 200.12
- in current accounts 1,538.34 497.97
(b) Cheques on hand 119.77 0.19
Total 1,658.11 698.28

Of the above, the balance that meet the definition of Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statement is Rs,

1,658.11 crore (March 31, 2023 : 698.28 crore)

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

PARTICULARS As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balances with banks

- In fixed deposit accounts (Refer note 4.1 below) 50.78 045

- In current accounts (Refer note 4.2 below) 024 0.07

Total 51.02 0.52

Balance with banks in fixed deposit accounts comprises deposits that have an original maturity exceeding 3 months at balance
sheet date and to the extent held as margin money or security against the borrowings, guarantees, other commitments,

Balance with banks in current accounts comprises of Rs. 0.24 crore (March 31, 2023 : Rs.0.07 crore) towards unclaimed

matured debentures and accrued interest thereon.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

PARTICULARS Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

At amortised cost

(i) Reccivables considered good - Unsecured 23.83 9.53

(ii) Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk 5.67 15,82

(iii) Receivables - credit impaired 0.33 14.89

29.83 40.24

Less: Impairment loss allowance

{i) Receivables considered good - Unsecured 0.10 -

(ii) Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk 0.02 -

(iii) Receivables - credit impaired 0.33 14.89

Total 29.38 25.35

Trade receivables include amounts due from the related parties Rs. 24.36 crore (March 31, 2023: Rs. 0.61 crore).

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are ge s of 3 months to 1 year.
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5.3 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at March 31,2024
PARTICULARS i -
CU. Unbitled Not Dae Lesathan 6 6 menths -1 I-2years  2-3years More than Totat
Dues months year Jyears
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good - - 23,83 - - - - 2383
(ii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in eredit risk - - 5.67 - - - - 567
(ii1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - 031 - - 0.01 0.01 033
(iv) Disputed Teade Receivabl idered good - - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in eredi risk - - - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - - -
‘Total 29.83
Note : Ageing of the trade receivables is determined from the date of transaction till the reporting date.
As at March 31,2023
PARTICULAR! i -
CcuU § Unbiiled Nt Due Less than 6 6 months -1 12years 2-3years More than Total
Dues months year 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — idered good - - 9,53 - - - - 0.53
(i) Undisputed Trade Reccivables — whith have significant increase in eredit risk - - 1582 - - - - 1582
(iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - 14,87 0,61 0.0t - 14.89
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in eredit risk - - - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Total ' 40.24
L

Note : Ageing of the trade receivables is determined from the date of transaction tll the reporting date.
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6. Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 March 2024 As 8131 Marth 2023 !
Part1 Notional Fair value Notional Fair value- Notions]  Falrvalue Notional Fair valuc-
value assets vahwe Liabilities value assety valoe Liabilities
(i) Currency derivatives : 1
Spot and Forwards - - 226 1% 6.57 - - 23079 016
Cufiency swaps 625,10 46.78 - - 615.85 43,07 - -
Subtotal () 625.10 46.78 226.15 657 615.85 45.07 232,79 1| 0.16
|
(i) Interest rate derivatives §
Interest mate gwaps' . 272 - - - 0.06 - -
Subtotal (1) - 172 - - - 0,06 - -
Total derivatives 625.10 4920 225.15 657 61585 4513 23&79 .16
Part 11
Included in above {Part T arc derivative held for hedging and risk |
mtnagement purpose os follows: !
{i) FaI valuc kedging
(i} Cash Mow hedging
Carrency derivabives 625,10 4678 22615 6.57 615.45 35.07 32.79 Q.16
Interest rate derivatives - 2.72 - - - .06 - -
Total derivatives 525,10 4950 22615 £.57 615.85 4513 232,79 0,16
Notes:

L. Interest rate swop has been tken in respect of the same contract for which forward contract has beza entercd, sccordingly notional value of Tnterest rate swap is a0t ghown nepnmtcly,

2. Notional amounts of the respective currencies have been converted using exchange rates as at the balance shaet date.
3. Fair value nssers and liabilitis are presented es derivative fivancial Inctruments in the financial etatements.

6.1  The impact of the cashflow hedgss in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive imcome

All hedges are 100% «ffeetive ie. there is no inefTectiveness.

b
PARTICULARS Hedging gains or (losses) Hedge ineffectiveness |
recognised In other recognised in statement of |
comprehensive kncome profit and (fosy)
For the year Fortheyear Fortheyear Forthe year i
ended ended ended ended 1
March 31, March31, March3), March3l, 200
2023 2023 204 |
IFonward ¢xchange ontracts, interest mic swaps and currency !
swaps (B.60) 1037 - - |
I
62  Change in fair value of hedging mstrument and hedged itzm:
PARTICULARS Change infzir valee of  Change in the value of bedged
hedging instrument item*
Forthe year Fortheyear Fortheycar Forthe year
ended ended ended ended [
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,2023 t
201 2023 2024
:‘:rn::rd exchange contracts, interest rate swaps end Cumency @y 2640 1233 14.58
*Change in the value of hedged item are p d a3 part of b ings in the financinl
63  Movements in the Cesh fow hedge reserve are as follows: !
\
PARTICULARS Forthe year  For the year
ended ended '
March 31, Mareh 31,
2044 2023
Opening Balance 1028 252
Ellective portion of changes in fair value Q.20 56.40
Forcign currency translation differences {12.33) 14.58
Amortisation of forward premium 594 {60.51)
Tax oN MOVEMENIS on reserves during the year 2,16 (2.61)
i
Clasing Batance —_d3 1038 '
'
|
|

8.4  Hedge Ratio: There i an cconomic relationship berween the hedged item and the hedging instrument as the terms of the forward contracts, intezest rate swops and cross currency swaps
contrace maich that of the foreign currency borrowings. The Company has cstablished a hedge ratio of 1:} for the hedging relationships ag the underlying risk of the forward conmu interest
tate swaps £nd cross currency swaps are identical to the hedged risk components. Te test the hedge cffectivencss, the Company uses the dollar offset method and compares the c!nmg:g in the
fair value of the hedging instruments against the changes in fair value of the hedged items attributable fo the hedged risks. The hedge ineffectivencss can arse maindy if there is @ change in
the credit risk of the Company or the counterparty.

65  Netinvesmenthedging : Nil -

66  Undesignated Derivatives : Nil
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7. LOANS
PARTICULARS Asat As at|
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At amortised cost
m ‘Term loans
- Housing Lozns 36,524.27 27,075.72
- Non Housing Loans 15,309,17 10,445.22
- Credit Substitutes {refer note no. ¥ below) 20030 201.49
- Retained portion of assigned loans 597 8.67
Others
= Loan to TCL Employee Welfare Trust (refer note no. VI below) 237 237
Gross Leans 52,042.08 37,733.47
Less: Impairment loss allowance
- Stage 1& T 33442 429,70
- Stage Il 286.51 348.65
Loans net of impairment loss allowance 51,421.15 36,955,12
- Unamortised loan sourcing costs 17011 101.14
- Income received in advance (190.38) (139.55)
Total -1 S1.401.88 36,816.71
(m
- Secured by tanpible assets (refer note no. VII below) 48,120.93 35,140.50
- Secured by intangible assets {cefer note no. VI below) 1,730.77 1,117.34
= Covered by bank / government guarantees 1938 62.89
- Unsecured 2,171.00 1,91274
Gross Loang 52,042.08 37,733.47
Less: Impairment loss allowante
- Stagelé& I 33442 42970
- Stage III 286.51 348.65
Loans net of impairment loss allowance £1,421.15 36,955.12
- Unamortised lean sourcing costs 171.11 101.14
- Income received in advance {15038) (139.55)
Total - 1L 51,401.88 36,916.71
(I
Loans in India
~ Public sector - -
= Others (refer note no. IX below) 52,042,08 37,133.47
Gross Loans 52,042.08 37,73347
Less: Impairment loss allowance
- StageI& Il 33442 429.70
- Stage Il 286,51 348.65
Loans net of impairment loss allowance 51,421.15 36,955.12
- Unamortised loan sourcing costs 171.11 101.14
« Income received in advance (150.38) (139.55)
Total - IIT 51,401.88 36,916,71
(Iv)
= Secured 48,192.54 3431823
= Unsecured 2,171.00 141274
- Significant increase in credit risk (SICR) 1,184.65 1,417.32
- Credit impaired 493.89 585.18
Gross Loans 52,042,08 37,733.47
Less: Impairment loss allowance
- Stage I& 1T 33442 429.70
- Stage Il 286.51 348.65
Loans net of impairment loss allowance 51,421.15 36,955.12
- Unamortised loan sourcing costs 171.11 101.14
- Income received in advance (190.38) (139.55)
Total - IV Sldﬂl.sﬂ 36216.71




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

™)

¥

Investments in bonds, debentures and other financial assets which, in substance, form a part of the Company's firancing activities ("Credit Substitutes”}

have been classified under Loans. Management believes that the classification results in a better presentation of the substance of these receivables and is in
alignment with regulatory filings.

Loan repayable on demand pertains to loan given to TCL employee-welfare trust {related party) and accounts for 0.01% of total gross loans and advances
(March 31, 2023 : 0.01%).

Loans granted by the Company are secured by any or all of the following as applicable, based on their categorisation and disclosed accordingly as secured;
a} Equitsble / registered mortgage of property.

b) Undertaking to create a security.

¢) Against securities.

(VIII) Loans secured by intangible assets amounting fo Rs. 1,730.77 crore (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,117.34 crore) backed by development rights / slum development

(IX}
X)

(X1}

i

(Xum

rights as collateral, The estimated value of such collateral is Rs. 6,189.07 crore (March 31, 2023: Rs. 5,033.29 crore).

Laoans to others include loans to retail and corporate other than public sector undertakings {PSUs).

As per the Company's policy in terms of RBI circular RBI/2019-20/170, DOR. (NBFC).CC.PD.Ne.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020, the
Company can sell upto 10% out of it3 loans.

Disclosures for Loans or advances granted to promoters, directors and the related parties:

Amount of loan or advance in Perceatage to the total
Type of Borrowers . Loans and Advances Remarks

the nature of loan outstanding | .

in the nature of loans
Promoter - 0%
Directors - 0%
KMPs - 0%
Related Patties 47087 0.90% Repayable on demand /
Bullet payment

Disclosure of details as required by Noetification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR FIN HFC.CC No.120/03,10.136/2020-21 dated February 17, 2021 as amended
under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction —
Nen-Banking Financial Company —Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as amended

Loans to Directors, Senior Qfficers and Relatives of Directors:

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Diirectors and their relatives - _
Entities associated with directors and their relatives . B
[Senior Officers and their retatives - -

Particulars

Impaimment loss allowance excludes impairment all on loan commi of Rs, 27,75 crore (March 31, 2023; Ra. 33.33 crore)




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

8. INVESTMENTS

PARTICULARS l Asat As af|
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Investments in India

(A) Investments carried at amortised cost - Quoted

Government Securities 612.60 405.09
Treasury Bills 34923 84.55
(B) Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss - Quoted

Mutual funds : 7.46 2,158.79
Total 969.29 2,648.43

8.1  There are no investments outside India.

8.2 Investments

PARTICULARS As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Value of Investments
() Gross value of Investments 969.29 2,648.43
(a) In India 969.29 2,648.43

{b) Outside India - -
(if) Provisions for Depreciation - -

(a) In India - -

(b) Outside India ‘ - -
(iii) Net value of Investments 969.29 2,648.43

(2) In India’ 969.29 2,648.43

(b) Outside India - .

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

(i) Opening balance - -
(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year - -
(iii) Less: Write-off / Written-back of excess provisions during the year - -
({iv) Closing balance - -




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)

as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

9.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

PARTICULARS Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

{a) Security deposits 16.31 16.04

(b) Advances to employees 0.32 0.20

Total 16.63 16.24




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
10. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET)

The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at March 31,2024 are as follows:

Particulars Opéening Recognised / Recognised / Closing Balance,
Balance (reversed) (reversed)
through profit through OCI
and loss

Gross Deferred Tax Assets :-

(a) Impairment loss allowance - stage 111 77.33 (5.13) - 72.22
(b) Impairment loss allowance - stage [ & II 116.53 (25.38) - 91,15
(c) Employee benefits 1.28 0.42 - 1.70
{d) Deferred income 34.65 1271 - 47.36
{e) Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 0.71 0.19 - 0.90
{f) Right to use asset 2.61 1.76 - 437
{g) Other deferred tax assets - 0.31 - 0.31

Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities :-

(a) Deduction w's 36(1)(viii) (92.19) (44.91) - (137.10)
(b) Fair value measurement of investments (1.19) 0.80 - (0.39)
() Fair value of cost flow hedge (3.45) - 2.16 (1.29)
Net deferred tax asset 136.30 (59.23) 2.16 79.23

The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023 are as follows:

Particulars Opening Recognised / Recognised / Closing Balance
Balanee {reversed) (reversed)
through profit through OCI
and loss

Gross Deferred Tax Assets :-

{a) Impairment loss allowance - stage III 54.44 2291 - 7735
(b) Impairment loss allowance - stage I & IT 133.82 (17.29) - 116.53
(c) Employee benefits 0.92 0.36 - 1.28
(d) Deferred income 2735 7.30 - 34.65
(e) Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 0.99 (0.28) - 0.71
{f) Right to use asset .17 0.86 - 2.61

Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities :-

(a) Deduction w/s 36(1)(viii) (68.46) (23.73) - 92.19)
{b) Fair value measurement of investments (0.28) (0.92) - (1.19)
{c) Fair value of cost flow hedge (0.84) - (2.61) (3.45)

Net deferred tax asset 149.70 (10.79) (2.61) 136.30




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
10, DEFERRED TAX ASSET (Continued)
101 INCOME TAXES

A. The income tax expense consist of the following:

Particulars For the year For the year ended

ended March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024

Current tax:

Current tax expense for the year 331.62 269,34

Current tax benefit pertalning to prior years 0.51 -

Total 332.23 269.34

Deferred tax benefit

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 59,23 10.79

Total income tax expense for the year 39146 . 280.13

B. The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss is as follows:

Particulars For the year For the year ended|

ended March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024

Profit before income taxes 1,539.13 1,100.98

Indian statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%

Expected income fax expense 387.37 277.09

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense:

Non deductible expenses 3.48 3.05

Tax on income at different rates - (0.01)

Tax pertaining to prior years 0.61 -

Total income tax expense (effective tax rate of 25.40%, March 31, 2023 25.39%)' 391.46 280.1=3

Note: The Company's reconciliation of the effective tax rate is based on its domestic tax rate applicable to the respective financial year,

C. Amounts recognised in OC1

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023
Before Tax Net of Before Tax Net of]
tax (expense) tax tax {expense) tax|
benefit benefit

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or

loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability 0.46 (0.12) 0.34 (2.33) 0.59 (1.74)
liability / (asset)

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

The effective portion of gains and Ioss on (8.60) 2.16 (6.44) 10.37 (2.61) 1.76
hedging instruments in a cost of hedge

Total (8.14) .04 (6.10) 8.04 (2.02) 6.02




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continned)
as at March 31, 2024

{Rs. in crore)

102 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

PARTICULARS

Advance tax (net of provision for Income tax Rs. 410.03 crore (March 31, 2023; Rs, 550,50 crore)

Total

For the year For the year ended
ended  March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024
527 13.83
527 13.83

103 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

PARTICULARS

Provision for tax (net of advance tax Rs. 712.14 crore (March 31, 2023: Rs. 346.18 crore}

Total

For the year For the year ended
ended March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024
24,99 59.31
24,99 59.31




/D001 05 5 W 553] o

. ‘0 #SUIOADT UL S
00 a1p1awaS jou pip e Ayedosd woy ssusdia Funemdg exg
£00 €00 oo
ey papmauad jeqy Aedord woyg esusdxe Sunersdyy ey
T - LO'0 00 wmeow] [RUH )
€202 “TE NEIN 125V FZO0T “I€ JMER 18 5V SIBRIpIE]
sépradord y0XT)SIAT LM TODIFTUOD O] PALITIU I5UIT3 puw pawes smosny
“1edk sy Surmp panjeast s mba pue jueid d 3o ss2[2 9y} JO BUON

“Kuredhrtory S1) J0 SURU 811 W PJoY are seswuerd pasea] o) (6 1) SjrauadsEe asps] pue sonradord SpqrACKIIE JO SPIIp 3N 3y Je Smipued Aurdwrad) oY

“(m) g5¢ P (B ¢] 010U Jayor SEmmoLIoq §SUTEST pareoatpod Y 51 (31033 470 SY ETOT ‘1€ PR SLAI0 77°0 " 0) Sununowre snfea SmALED 190 Fuaey Auedord gjqraounay

(33033 OR'ET S S£Z0Z ‘1§ YOMA) 103 §T°7Z “SY 51 7oK O, 10 5J055T asn 0} FH U0 HOREIKIda(] SHASSE 85N 03 JYFU U0 UOKEILIAEP SIPAIILY SSOT P JJOIJ JO JAUSIEIS ST UL IEAL S J0f PARIETY) Toereldap [EI0T 4
“ranfma Anadosd yuspusdopur o e &) pARULIEP Ussq Sy senradaid RIAITSeAT ST JO SN[RA T AT (2015 £5°8 S ¢ £20Z "TE PIVIA) 200,658 SH $ZOZ L€ YSIEI U0 S Azedoud ustmisaamm jo anfea e
"€20T “1€ [OTRIA 09 S32[01 jaoRIq W SAMBLY  AION

[(oF P57 09°95) (39 6L €1} (£ 82F 106 067 09/ (X7 (X

90'8L 6F'1S L T0'IT 09'9¢ S56TT vEL 659 06°06 woL
({2 B - [T [532Z] (TR - (32 (17X

95'8 $6'0% - sy'e 6TL 05761 - oTr 06T . TVLOL - SLASSY TTAIONY.LNI
(fos} [(147] - [(£%7] (4] foe 1) - (558 (26708

958 +601 - §9°¢ 6L 0561 - (14 0£'s1 armyog
f62'9¢) (1562 fzg's} (G (&9°£c} (09752 209 (zo9e) [y

0569 s50r L oCRI I€'67 507011 vEL 65Ty 09'st TYLOL - INTWIINOT NV INVT ‘ALHId08d
o9z} e} fosa (c20 st} {595} 237 (7% ] (897

0% 66T SED vl 741 00's 5970 17k 4 88'¢ SSPIPA
fory) 1) con (3 60} res) oo 527 o€

86’9 S6'T £70 %0 %1 €68 50 6HE PL'S Aoumpep 33 Weld
fE6'e) fcrs) oo} (5o} (62} g1 (A7) 67) 6z

595 89'Y £20 991 STE £E0T 970 Its 8L wewdmbg 20mo
feo61) o Tr) 6ok} [T €91} fe6°15) fosr) (cocn) 5561}

ST 591 19 1£'6 0Ley ooy [543 99°Er 1384 wAndmby winduos
©6°c) ogc) @ew) (r2n e fz52) fore) (226 fery)

(33 LIS 9 181 98¢ oL 650 867 WL sampay 7y Smyumy
sz 01) (Bz9) @ro (5671} (g2 fzsar) (147 {6r2) (re's)

6E°TT F143 950 SL'E B9 98°1€ 620 8091 LE9T Slusuraaordur] ployasea]
eer) Ho0) - 00 oo tor-a) - - 57

w1 Lo - 1o 950 8z - - L1 sauppeg

SLASSY TTAIONV.L

free) ary - z¢ 0} g0} cew) - - et

T0°E [l - 610 rr EY - - ey it fpadoag yoaunsenny

witak

$T0Z ‘TE YIIELY $TOT ‘TE YE am g0 woyuspuowy €707 1 1y $20Z ‘I€ PIEIN €207 ‘1 udy

e 51 1€ SE due[eq M_h_mnunv SuonaNI ....:amun_uﬂh.muﬁ JESE eq 3 1 .-H- 1E 58 eq un-mme_nv O3 SUoIppY 18 5% IMIE|Eq unm_non_o

anjeA, Buiue)) 1N nesgaoe pue oogepadap paje) v Ha01g Ss0A) RIEmAIE]

ALYAIONd INTIWISTANI ANV INTWJAINOT "INV ‘ALHAJOHd ‘11
(1o )

FEOT 15 YHOP 10 S8
{panunuo))) syuam)elg reroueanlg g jo Jed Surnuey snopN

panwi saueur] Sursney [eyde)) ve,



Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)

as at March 31, 2024
(Rs. in crore)

11.1 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

As at Asat
PARTICU S March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 10.16 352
Additions (Net) 3231 42.71
Deductions 4239 36.07
Closing Balance 0.08 10,16
As at March 31, 2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of

PARTICULARS Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than'3 Total

years
(i) Projects in propress 0.08 - - - 0,08
(ii} Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 0,08
CWIP completion schedule

To be completed in

PARTICULARS Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

years
(i) Projects in progress 0.08 - - - 0.08
(ii) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 0,08
As at March 31, 2023

Amount in CWIP for o period of

PARTICULARS Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

years
(i) Projects in progress 10.16 - - - 10.16
(ii} Projects temporatily suspended - - - - -1
Total 10,16
CWIP completion schedule

To be corapleted in

PARTICULARS Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total|

years
(i) Projects in progress 10.16 - - - 10.16
(ii) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 10.1




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as al March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

11.2 INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

As at Asat
PARTICULARS March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 0.18 0.56
Additions (Net) 5.06 3.95
Deductions / Adjustments 4.20 4.33
Closing Balance 1.04 0.18
As at March 31, 2024
Amotnt in Intangible assets under development for a period of

PARTICULARS Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

years
(i) Projects in progress 0.99 - 0.05 - 1.04
(if) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 1.04
Intangible assets under development completion schedule

To be completed in

PARTICULARS Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total|

years
(i) Projects in progress 1.04 - - - L.o4
(ii) Projects temporarily suspended - - . - -
Total 1.04
As at March 31, 2023

Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of

PARTICULARS Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

years
(i) Projects in progress 0.08 0.10 - - 0.18
(i1} Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 0.18 |
Intangible assets upder development ¢ letion schedule

To be completed in

PARTICULARS Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

years .
(i) Projects in progress 0.18 - - - 0.18
(ii} Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total _____0.18 ]

There are no projects whose completion is overdus or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
12. OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

PARTICULARS As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31,2023

{a) Capital advances 0.27 1.05
(b) Prepaid Expenses 8.29 6.31
(c) Balances with government authorities 5.64 5.23
(d) Other advances 391 2.78
Total 18.11 15.37




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
13. TRADE PAYABLES
PARTICULARS As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) Accrued expenses 144.85 123.13
(ii) Payable to Dealers/Vendors 7.96 9.10
(iii) Others 5.60 1.24
1Total 158.41 133.47

13.1

Note - The information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

The amount of principal and interest outstanding during the year is given below :

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

PARTICULARS

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year

(¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year;

{e) The amount further of interest due and payable even in the succeeding
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid
to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as deductible
expenditure under section 23

Total

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1.27 2.27
1.27 2.27




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

132 TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

As at March 31, 2024
PARTICULARS Unbilled NotDne Lessthanl 1-2years 2-3years More than Total
Dues year 3 years
(i) MSME - - 1.27 - - - 1.27
(ii) Others 144.85 12.29 - - 157.14
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - . - - -
Total 144.85 - 13.56 - - - 158.41
Note : Ageing of the trade payables is determined from the date of transaction till the reporting date.
As at March 31,2023
PARTICULARS Unbilled NotDue Lessthanl 1-2years 2-3years Morethan Total
Dues year 3 years
(i) MSME - - 227 - - - 227
(ii) Others 123.13 - 8.07 - - - 131.20
(iii} Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - - .
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - -
Total 123,13 - 10.34 - - - 133.47

Note : Ageing of the trade payables is determined from the date of transaction till the reporting date.




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continned)
as at March 31, 2024

{Rs. in crore)

14. DEBT SECURITIES

PARTICULARS Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At amortised cost
Secured - In India
Privately Placed Non-Convertible Debentures (Refer note 14.1 (p) and 14.2 below ) 16,485.19 13,831.53
Privately Placed Non-Convertible Debentures - Zero Coupon Bond (Refer note 14.1 (a) and 14.3 below) 627.25 1,179.96
Public issue of Non-Convertible Debentures (Refer note 14.1 (b) and 14.4 below) 475,45 474,63

Unsecured - In India

Commercial paper (Refer note 14.5 below) 3,850.08 801.31
[Net of unamortised discount of Rs. 149.81 crore (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 48.66 crore) and anciilary borrowing

cost of Rs. 0.11 crore (March 31, 2023 : 0.03 crore)]

Total 21,437.97 16,287.43

14.1(a) Privately Placed Non-Convertible Debentures are secured by pari passu charge on the specific immovable property, specified receivables and book debts arising out of
Secured/Unsecured loans, investments in nature of credit substitutes, lease and hire purchase receivables, trade advances & bill discounting facility extended to borrower and sundry
debtors and other assets of the Company.

14.1(b) Public issue of Non-Convertible Debentures are secured by way of a first ranking pari passu charge by way of mortgage over our Company's specific immoveble property and any of the
identified receivables, both present and future, in connection with business of the company, monies, cash flows and proceeds accruing to the company of any nature or arising of out of
said receivables.

14.1(c) The Company has, at all times, for the secured Non-Convertible Debentures, maintained sufficient security cover as stated in the respective information memorandum towards the
principal amouant, interest accrued thereon, and such other sums as mentioned therein.




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)

as at March 31, 2024
(Rs. in crore)
14,  DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)

14.2

Particulars of Privately Placed Secured Non-Convertible Debentures.

Debentures

TCHFL NCD "A* FY 2021-22

TCHFL NCD "I" FY 2021-22

TCHFL NCD "E" FY 2021-22

TCHFL NCD R FY 2014-15

TCHFL NCD V FY 2014-15

TCHFL NCD"Q" FY 2015-16

TCHFL NCD D Series FY 2022-23 - Option - 1
TCHFL NCD "AE" FY 2015-16

TCHFL NCD "AG" FY 2015-16

TCHFL NCD "G" Series FY 2022-23 - Option - 1
TCHFL NCD "AM" FY 2015-16 - Option 1

TCHFL NCD "G" FY 2020-21

TCHFL NCD "AU" FY 2015-16 Option [

TCHFL NCD "H" FY 2022-23

TCHFL NCD "H" FY 2022-23 — Reissue Na. 1
TCHFL NCD "B" FY 2021-22

TCHFL NCD "B" FY 2021-22 = Reissue No. |
TCHFL NCD "B" FY 2021-22 Reissue No,2
TCHFL NCD "I" FY 2016-17

TCHFL NCD: "A™ FY 2023-24

TCHFL NCD "D" FY 2023-24

TCHFL NCD "C" FY 2023-24

TCHFL NCD "C" FY 2023-24 — Reissue No. 1
TCHFL NCD "A" Series FY 2022-23

TCHFL NCD “A"” Serics FY 2022-23 — Reissue No. 1
‘TCHFL NCD “A” Series FY 2022-23 — Reissue No. 2
TCHFL NCD “A"” Series FY 2022-23 — Reissue No. 3
TCHFL NCD D Series FY 2022-23 - Option - 11
TCHFL NCD "G" Series FY 2022-23 - Option - IT
TCHFL NCD "G* Serdes FY 2022-23 - Option - 11 - Refssue
No. 1

TCHFL NCD UNLISTED “A” SERIES FY 2022-23
TCHFL NCD "B" FY 2023-24

TCHFL NCD "F" 2019-2020

TCHFL NCD "F* Series FY 2022-23 - Reissue No. 1
TCHFL NCD "E" Serjes FY 2022-23

TCHFL NCD "G" FY 2021-22

TCHFL NCD "K* FY 2021-22

TCHFL NCD “B" Series FY 2022-23

TCHFL NCD “B” Series FY 2022-23 — Reissue No. 1
TCHFL NCD B Series FY 2022-23 - Reissue No.2
TCHFL NCD "E® Series FY 2022-23

TCHFL NCD "E" FY 2023-24

TCHFL NCD "E" FY 2016-17

TCHFL NCD "B" FY 2020-21

TCHFL NCD "C" FY 2020-21

TCHFL NCD "A" FY 2020-21

TCHFL NCD "F" FY 2020-21

TCHFL NCD "E" FY 2020-21 - Option 11

TCHFL NCD "AP" FY 2015-16 - Option II

TCHFL NCD "L" FY 2021-22

TCHFL NCD "H" FY 2020-21

Total

Add: Unamortised premium
Add: Interest accrued but not due
Total

Less: Unameortised bermowing cost
Less: Unamortised discount
Total

Privately Placed Non-Convertible Debentures

Description of Privately placed Secured Non-Convertible

Issue Date

18-May-21
20-Jul-21
15-Sep-21
09-Dec-14
23-Jan-15
16-Jun-15
05-Aug-22
31-Aug-15
08-0Oct-15
03-Nov-22
06-Nov-15
19-Jan-21
30-Mar-16
08-Feb-23
18-May-23
15-Jun-21
24-Jan-23
20-Feb-23
30-Jun-16
10-Jul-23
21-Feb-24
21-Dec-23
24-Jan-24
18-May-22
13-Jul-22
18-May-23
27-Feb-24
05-Aug-22
03-Nov-22

16-Nov-22

27-Dec-22
13-Dec-23
18-Nov-19
29-Mar-23
19-0ect-22
09-Nov-21
16-Feb-22
27-lun-22
13-Jul-22
26-Aug-22
13-8ep-22
22-Mar-24
04-May-16
26-May-20
27-Jul-20
12-May-20
31-Dec-20
03-Dec-20
12-Jan-16
23-Feh-22
25-Mar-21

Redemption
Date

17-May-24
19-Jul-24
13-Sep-24
09-Dec-24
23-Jan-25
16-Jun-25
05-Aup-25
29-Aug-25
08-Oct-25
03-Nov-25
06-Nov-25
19-Jan-26
30-Mar-26
08-May-26
08-May-26
15-Jun-26
15-Jun-26
15-Jun-26
30-Jun-26
18-8ep-26
19-Feb-27
19-Mar-27
19-Mar-27
18-May-27
18-May-27
18-May-27
18-May-27
05-Aup-27
03-Nov-27

03-Nov-27

26-Dec-27
13-Dec-28
16-Nov-29
17-0ct-31
19-Oct-31
07-Nov-31
16-Feb-32
25-Jun-32
25-Tun-32
25-Jun-32
13-Sep-32
22-Mar-34
04-May-23
26-May-23
27-Jul-23
11-Aug-23
23-Nov-23
01-Dec-23
12-Jan-24
23-Feb-24
25-Mar-24

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31,2023

No. of NCDs Rs, In Crore No. of NCDs
2,600 260.00 2,600
1,850 185.00 1,850
5,000 500.00 5,000
2,000 200.00 2,000
1,500 150.00 1,500

200 20.00 200
2,920 292.00 2,920
200 20,00 200
15 7.50 75
8,000 800,00 £,000
350 35.00 350
850 85.00 850
150 15.00 150
30,000 300.00 30,000
50,000 500,00 -
1,700 170,00 1,700
8,000 800.00 8,000
1,500 150.00 1,500
100 10.00 100
25,000 250,00 -
90,100 901,00 -
50,000 500,00 -
35,000 300,00 -
1,780 178,00 1,780
4,000 400.00 4,000
5,000 500.00 -
4,000 400.00 -
2,000 200.00 2,000
2,700 270.00 2,700
4,300 430,00 4,300
11,250 1,125.00 11,250
89,800 898.00 -
10,000 1,800.00 10,000
5,000 500,00 5,000
10,000 1,000,00 10,000
3,030 303.00 3,030
5,000 500.00 5,000
811 8110 811
265 26.50 265
400 40,00 400
7,220 722.00 7,220
1,00,000 1,680.00 -
- - 200
- - 4,500
- - 2,500
- - 5,000
- - 3,000
- - 3,000
- - 150
8 - 5,500
- - 2,500
Igl]ld.ll]
182
505.41
509.23
(13.92)
(34.22)
!48.14!
16,485.19

Rs. In Crore

260.00
185,00
500,00
200.00
150.00
20,00
292,00
20.00
7.50
800.00
35.00
85.00
15.00
300.00
170.00
800.00
150,00
10.00

200.00
270.00

430.00
1,125.00

1,000.00
500.00
1,000.00
303.00
500,00
81.10
26,50
40.00
72200
20.00
450,00
250,00
500.00
300.00
300.00
15.00
550.00
250,00

13,410.10

3.04
475.45
478.49

(15.47)
(41.59)
—— 5700

13,831,535




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
14. DEBT SECURITIES (Centinned)
14.3 Particulars of Privately placed Secured Non-Convertible Debentures - ZCB.
Description of Privately Placed Noo-Convertible Issue Date Redemption As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Debentures - ZCB Date No. of NCDs Rs, In Crore No. of NCDs Rs. In Crere
TCHFL NCD “C” Series FY 2022-23 06-Jul-22 05-Jul-24 1,600 160.00 1,600 160.00
TCHFL NCD "C" FY 2021-22 23-Jun-21 23-Sep-24 1,350 135.00 1,350 135.00
TCHFL NCD "C" FY 2021-22 - Reissue No. 1 08-Sep-21 23-Sep-24 2,000 200.00 2,000 200.00
TCHFL NCD “I" FY 2021-22 17-Dec-21 17-Dec-24 1,500 150.00 1,500 150.00
TCHFL NCD "H" FY 2021-22 23-Nov-21 23-Nov-23 - - 1,750 175.00
TCHFL NCD "D" FY 2020-21 27-Oct-20 24-Jan-24 - - 2,000 200,00
TCHFL NCD “]” FY 2021-22 01-Feb-22 31-Jan-24 - - 2,000 200.00
Total 645,00 1,220.00
Add: Interest acerued but not due - 29.39
Total - 29.39
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost (0.04) (0.15)
Less: Unamortised discount (17.71) (69.28)
Total (17.75) (69.43)]
Privately Placed Non-Convertible Debentures - ZCB 627.25 1,179.96 |
Note: Coupon tate of above outstanding as on March 31, 2024 varies from $,70% 10 7.31% (March 31, 2023 : 5,37% 10 7.31%).
14.4 Public issue of Non-Convertible Debentures
Description of Public issue of Non-Convertible Issue Date Redemption As at March 31, 2024 Asg at March 31, 2023
Debentures Date No. of NCDs Rs. In Crore No. of NCDs Rs. In Crore
TCHFL NCD "Series [[" FY 2019-20 14-Jan-20 14-Jan-25 51,892 5.19 51,892 519
|TCHFL NCD *Series I" FY 2019-20 14-Jan-20 14-Jan-25 541,471 54.15 541,471 54.15
TCHFL NCD "Series ILI" FY 2019-20 14-Jan-20 14-Jan-25 3,35925 33.59 3,35,925 33.59
TCHFL NCD "Series III" FY 2019-20 14-Jan-20 14-Jan-25 23,48,032 234,80 23,48,032 234.80
TCHFL NCD "Series IV" FY 201920 14-Jan-20 14-Jan-28 12,025 1.20 12,025 120
TCHFL NCD “Series IV" FY 201920 14-Jan-20 14-Jan-28 3,82,776 3828 3,82,776 3828
TCHFL NCD "Series V" FY 2019-20 [4-Jan-20 14-Jan-28 1,17,900 1179 1,17.900 11.79
TCHFL NCD "Series V" FY 2019-20 14-Jan-20 14-Jan-28 9,05,697 90.57 9,05,697 90,57
Total 469,57 469.57
Add: Interest accrued but not due 6.96 6.90
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost (1.08) (1.84)
Tofal 5.88 5.06
Public issue of Non-Convertible Debentures 475.45 474.63
Note: Coupon rate of above outstanding as on March 31, 2024 varies from 7.92% to 8.40% (March 31, 2023 : 7.92% to 8.40%).
14.5 Coupon Rate on Commercial Paper varies from 7.05% to 8.05% (March 31, 2023 : 5.24% to 8.10%).
146  The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of debt securities and interest thereon for the yvear ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,
14.7

Debt securities held by related parties as on March 31, 2024 is Rs. 153.86 crore (March 31, 2023; Rs. 174,46 ¢rore),




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

15.

15.1

152

153

15.4

158

15.6

15.7

15.8

15.9

15.10

BORROWINGS (OTHER THAN DEBT SECURITIES)

PARTICULARS Asat As at|
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

At amortised cost

() Term loans
Secured - In India

(i) From Banks (Refer note 15.1 and 15.2 below) 13,836.37 10,212.67
(ii) From Others (Refer note 15.3 and 15.4 below) 100.11 -
(iii) From National Housing Bank (Refer notes 15.5) 8,197.41 534111
Secured - Qutside India

From Banks (Refer note 15.1 and 15.2 below) 835.80 821.94

(b) Loans repayable on demand
Secured - In India

From Banks
(i) Bank Overdraft (Refer note 15.1 and 15.6 below) 0,02 -
(if) Working capital demand loan (Refer note 15.1 and 15.6 below) 1,086.12 420.02

Unsecured - In India
Working capital demand loan (Refer note 15.6 below) 400.00 400.00

(c) Loan from related parties
Unsecured - In India
(i) Inter corporate deposits from related parties (Refer note 15.7 below) - 443.75

Total 24,455.83 17,639.49

Loans and advances from banks are secured by pari passu charge on the receivables of the Company through Security Trustee.

Loans and advances from banks are repayable at maturity ranging between 1 month to 6 years {(as at March 31, 2023: 3 months to 7 years) from the
date of loan taken. Rate of interest payable to banks varies between 6.99% to 8.70% (March 31, 2023 : 6.60% to 8.65% ).

Loans and advances from others are secured by pari passu charge on the receivables of the Company through Security Trustee,

Loans and advances from others are repayable at maturity ranging between 6 months to 7 years (as at March 31, 2023: Nil) from the date of loan
taken. Rate of Interest payable to others is 8.10% (March 31, 2023 : Nil).

Loan from National Housing Bank is secured by way of hypothecation of book debt and guarantee / letter of comfort from Tata Capital Limited and
is repayable in 3-39 (March 31, 2023: 14-60) quarterly installments. Rate of interest payable on National Housing Bank varies between 2.80% to
8.50% (March 31, 2023: 2,80% to 8.50%).

Rate of Interest payable on Bank Overdraft & Working Capital Demand Loan varies between 7.28% to 8.45% (March 31, 2023 : 6.15% to 8.28%).

Rate of Interest payable on Inter Corporate Deposit as at March 31, 2024 is Nil (March 31, 2023 7,36 %).

As at March 31, 2024, the Company had undrawn committed borrowing facilities of Rs. 3,330 crore (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 3,650 crore).

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities) and interest thereon for the year ended March 31, 2024
and March 31, 2023,

The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of
accounts.




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
16, SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES

PARTICULARS

At amortised cost

Unsecured - In India
Debentures

Total

Privately Placed Non-Convertible Subordinated Debentures (Refer note 16.1 below)
Public issue of Non-Convertible Subordinated Debentures (Refer note 16.2 below)

As at As at]
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

1,298.22 1,026,72
78.95 78.86

l£77.18 1,105.58

Notes:

() The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of Subordinated Lisbilities and interest for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

(b) Subordinated Liabilities held by related parties as on March 31, 2024 is Rs. 18.62 crore (March 31, 2023: Rs. 20.42 crore),

16.1 Particalars of Unsecured Privately Placed Non-Convertible Subordinated Debentures

Deseription of Unsecured Privately Placed Issue Date  Redemption
Non-Convertible Subordinated Debentures Date
TCHFL Tier Il Bond A FY 2014-15 26-Sep-14 26-Sep-24
TCHFL Tier-II Bond A FY 2015-16 28-Apr-15 28-Apr-25
TCHFL Tier Il Bond B FY 2015-16 22-Jul-15 22-Yul-15
TCHFL Tier Ii Bond C FY 2015-16 16-Sep-15 16-Sep-25
TCHFL Tier Il Bond D FY 2015-16 21-Sep-15 19-Sep-25
TCHFL Tier I Bond E FY 2015-16 04-Nov-15 04-Nov-25
‘TCHFL Tier [1 Bond F FY 2015-16 15-Dec-15 15-Dec-25
TCHFL Tier I Bond G FY 2015-16 17-Dec-15 17-Dec-25
TCHFL Tier Il Bond H FY 2015-16 15-Mar-15 13-Mar-26
TCHFL Tier I Bond AFY 2016-17 04-Aug-16 04-Aug-26
TCHFL Tier I Bond A FY 2020-21 : 11-Jan-21 10-Jan-31
TCHFL Tier Il Bond A FY-2021-22 19-Apr-21 18-Apr-31
TCHEL Tier Il Bend B FY-2021-22 14-Mar-22 12-Mar-32
TCHFL Tier Il Bond B FY-2021-22 - Reissus 1 28-Mar-22 12-Mar-32
TCHFL Tier 11 Bond A FY-2022-23 19-Aug-22 19-Ang-32
TCHFL Tier Il Bond A Series FY 2022-23 Reissue No.1 15-Mar-24 19-Aug-32
TCHFL Tier Il Bond A FY-2013-14 [5-Apr-13 15-Apr-23
TCHFL Tier Il Bond B FY-2013-14 23-Apt-13 23-Apr-23
TCHFL Tier Il Bend CFY 2013-14 20-May-13 19-May-23
TCHFL Tier Il Bond D FY 2013-14 10-Jan-14 10-Jan-24
TCHFL Tier 11 Bend E FY 2013-14 18-Mar-i4 18-Mar-24
Total

Add: Interest acerued but not due

Less: Unamortised borrowing cost

Less: Unamortised discount

Total

Privately Placed Non-Convertible Subordinated Debentures

As at March 31, 2024

No. of NCDs

480
400
350
100
150
300
250
250
200
2,000
500
1,500
25
146
129
300

Rs. In Craore

48.00
40,00
35,00
10.00
15.00
30.00
25,00
25,00
20.00
200,00
50,00
150.00
25,00
146,00
129,00
300.00

1,248,00

L ]

5733
(3.24)
(.87
50,22

1,298.22

e ]

As at March 31,2023
No. of NCDs Rs. In Crore|

480 48.00
400 40,00
350 35,00
100 10,00
150 15,00
300 30.00
250 25.00
250 25.00
200 20,00

2,000 200.00
500 50.00

1,500 150.00

25 25.00
146 146.00
120 129.00
250 25.00

21 2,10

10 1.00

77 7.70

4 0,40
934,20

44.97
(2.45)

42.52

1;026.72

Note: Coupon rate of above outstanding as on March 31, 2024 varies from 7.33% to 10.15% (March 31,2023 : 7.33% to 10.25%).

16.2 Particulars of Unsecured Public issus of Nen-Convertible Subordinated Debentures

Convertible Subordinated Debentures
TCHFL Tier 11 Bond Series VI FY-2019-20 14-Jan-20

Add: Interest accrued but not due
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost

Total
Public issue of Non-Convertible Subordinated Debentures

Description of Unsecured Pablic issue of Non- Issue Date  Redemption

Date
14-Jan-30

As at March 31, 2024

No. of NCDs

7.80,402

Rs. In Crore

78.04
78.04

1.44
(0.52)

0.92
78.96

As at March 3], 2023
No. of NCDs Rs. In Crore

7.80,402 78.04
78.04

1.43
(©.61)

0.82
78.86

% (March 31, 2023 : 8.70%).




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)

as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

17.

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

PARTICULARS

(a) Payable for capital expenditure
(b) Advances from customers
(c) Accrued employee benefit expense
(d) Amounts payable - assigned loans
(¢) Unclaimed matured debentures and accrued interest thereon
(f) Claimed amount under CGTMSE, ECLGS and other arrangements
(2) Book Overdraft
Total

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.91 0.94
6.34 9.32
60.75 2242
0.74 0.80
0.24 0.07
0.66 -
15.72 381.91
85.36 415.46




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

18. PROVISIONS

PARTICULARS

Provision for employee benefits:

(a) Provision for gratuity

(b) Provision for compensated absences
(c) Provision for long-term service award

Others:

(a) Provision for off Balance Sheet exposure

Total

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.09 1.21
6.95 . 5.07
0.41 0.33
27.75 33.33
35.20 39.94




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

19. OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

PARTICULARS

{a) Statutory dues
(b) Others
Total

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
46.45 24.35
14.06 12.23
60.51 36.58




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statemeats (Continued)
asat March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
20. SHARE CAPITAL
PARTICULARS Arat Asat
March 3, 2024 March 32, 2023/
AUTHORISED
2,500,000,000 (a3 at March 31, 2023: 2,500,000,000 shares) Equity shares of Ra.10 each 2,500,00 2,500.00
2,000,000,000 (a3 at March 31, 2023: 2,000,000,000 shares) Preference shares of Rg, 10 each 2,000.00 ] 2,600.00
4,500.00 4,500.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP
59,61,45,835 (as at March 31, 2023: 57,07,46,705 shares) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each Fully paid up 596.15 570,75
Total £96.15 svw_

20.1 Details of shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Company are given below:

Particulars Asn at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares Ras. in Crore % holding No. of shares Rs. in Crore % holding

Tata Cepital Limited
" 59,61,45,835 X 00% 51,07,46,706 70.75 100%
(Holding Company) [ 9615 100% 5 .

202 Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding

Particulars No, of Shares Rs. in Crore

Equity Shares, Face Value R, 10 fully paid up

Opering balancs es on April 01, 2022 54,75,55,612 547.56
Additions during the year 2,31,91,094 23.19
Closing Balance as on March 31, 2023 57,07,46,706 570.75
Additions during the year 2,53,99,129 2545
Closing Balance as on March 31, 2024 59,61,45,835 596.15

During the year, the Company has issued 2,53,95,129 equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each fully pnid up, at & price of Rs. 275.60 each, including a premiun; of
Ra, 265.60 each (March 31, 2023: 2,31,91,094 equity shares of faco value Rs. 10 each fully paid up, at & price of Rs. 215.60 each, including a premiumn of Rs,
205.60 each),

203 Rights, prefereaces and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares: The Company has one class of equity shares having & par value of Rs. 0 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim
dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferentia!
amounits, in proportion to their shareholding.

204 Investment by Tata Capital Limited (Holding company / Promoter). The entire share capital is held by Tata Capital Limited and its nominees.

Name of company Particulars of issue No. of Shares Rs. in Crore
Tata Capital Limited (Holding Company / Promoter)
Equity Shares Opening Balance as on April 1, 2022 54,75,55,612 541.56
. Additions during the year 2,31,91,004 23.19
Closing Balance as on March 31, 2023 57,07,46,706 57075
Additions during the year 2,53,99,129 25,40
Closing Balance as on March 31, 2024 £9,61,45,83% 59615
% change doring the year ny on March 31, 2023 4.24%
% change during the year as on March 31, 2024 4.45%

20.5 There are no shares in the preceding 5 years ellotted as fitly paid up without payment being received in cash / bonus shares / beught back.

20.6 ‘Thers are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares ar disinvestment.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
11. OTHEREQUITY

PARTICULARS As at As al
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Securities Premium Account 3,008.07 233351
(b) Special Reserve Accouni 803.85 $§7432
(¢) Retined eamings 228227 1,364.13
(d) Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Effective portion of cash flow hedge reserve 3.84 1028
(ii) Remeasurement of defined benefit {liabilityVasset (0.45) {0.80)
(e) Share options outstanding account 6.66 772
() General Reserve 10.62 413
Total . 6,114.85 429329

2L1  As required by Section 29C of National Housing Bank Act 1987 and Section 36 (1) (viii) of the Income Tax Act,1961, the Company has transferred an
zmount of Rs. 229.53 crore (March 31, 2023: Rs. 164.17 crore) to Special Reserve.

Disctosure of details as required by Notification No, RBI/2020-21/100 DORFIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated Febnury 17, 2021 25 amended
under Master Direction — Nen-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Compimy (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction = Non-
Banking Finoncial Company = Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as amended

Particulars Asat As at
Mareh 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year

a) Statutory Reserve as per Section 29C of Netional Housing Bank Act, 1587 208.09 133.21
b) Amount of Special Reserve w's 36 (1) {viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for

the purposas of Statutory Reserve under scction 29€ of NHB Act, 1987 36623 271.94
Tatal (A) 57432 410.15

Addition ! Appropriation/ withdrawzl during the year

Add: a) Amount transferred w's 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 51.09 6588
b) Amount of Special Reserve /s 36 (1) (viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for 17844 9420
the purposes of Statutory Reserve under section 29C of NHB Act, 1987 N

Less: a) Amount eppropriated from the Statuiory Reserve ws 29 C of the NHB Act 1987 - -
b) Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve wis 36 (1) (viii) of Income Tax Act,1961 which
has been taken into account for the purpose of provision w's 29C of NHB Act, 1987

Total (B) 219.53 164.17

Balance at the end of the year
) Statutory Reserve w's 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 259.18 208,09
b) Amount of special teserve ws 36{1Xviii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken inte account for the

purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C ef the NHB Act, 1987 344,67 36623
Total (A+B) 50388 57432

212 The Company has transferred an amount of Rs. 178.44 crore (March 31, 2023; Rs, 94.29 crore) 10 Special Reserve Accomnl in terms of section
36(1 )(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, which has also been considered as a trensfer of profit 10 a reserve fund for the purpose of complience with section
29 C (i) of the National Housing Bank Act 1987 (The Company is required to transfer ot Ieast 20% of net profits every year to a reserve).

213 The Company has not declared and paid, an interim dividend for financial year 2023-2024 on equity shares (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 32.31 crorz).

214 Nature and Purpose of Reserves a3 pex Para 79 of Ind AS 1

Sr.No. Particulars INsture and purpese of Reservea
1 Securities Premium Account IPremium teceived upon issuance of equity shares

As prescribed by Section 29C of National Housing Benk Act 1987, and
Section 36 (1) (viii) of the Income Tax Act,1961. No eppropriation ef any]
sum from the reserve fund shall be made by the Company except for the;
purpase as may be specified by NHB from time to time.

2 Special Reserve Account/Statutory Reserve

3 Retained eamings Created out of accretion of profits

Created upon employees siock options that expired unexercised or upon)

4 General Reserve forfeiture of cptions granted.

5 Share Options Quistanding Account Created upon grant of Holding Company options to employees
5 Other Comprehensive Income
It represents the amortisation of premi on hedge i 3 and)
(i) Effective portion of cash flow hedpe rescrve cumulative gains/(losses) arising on revaluation of the hedged items and|

hedge instruments. -

(ii) Rerneasurement of dofined benefit (liability)/asset It represents the cumulative gainsilosses) arising cn remeasurement cf post

employment benefit obligation.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended Marck 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

22,

23.

24,

INTEREST INCOME
PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
On Finauncial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
(a) Interest on loans 478628 3,570.27
(b) Interest income from investments 41.87 27.98
(c) Interest income on deposits with banks 1.82 11,57
(d) Other interest income 10.67 15.26
Total 4.840.64 3,625,08
FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME
PFARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
(a) Foreclosure charges 26.43 2391
(b) Others (valuation charges, PDD charges etc) 51.28 35.56
Total 77.71 59.47
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i Type of service
- Fee and commission income 7.7 59.47
- Branch advertisement income (refer note no. 26) 38,54 84.32
- Income from distribution of financial products (refer note no. 26) 12093 -
Total 287.18 143.79
ii. Primary geographical market:
- Qutside India - .
- India 287.18 143.79
Total revenue from contracts with customer 287.18 143.79
fii. Timing of revenue recognition
- at a point in time upon rendering services 287.18 14379
- over period of time upon rendering services - -
Total 287.18 143.79
LTS
iv. Trade receivables towards contracts with customers
- Opening Balance 25.35 16,26
- Closing Balance 28,38 25.35
v. Impairment on trade receivables towards contracts with customers 045 14.89

As on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the Compary does not have any unsatisified/partially satisified performance obligation.




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

25,

26.

NET GAIN / (LOSS) ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(A) Net gain / (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss - -
(i) On trading portfolio
- Investments - -
- Derivatives - -
- Others - -
(i) On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss - -
(B) Others
- On equity securities - -
- On other financial securities 56.57 47.43
- On derivative contracts - -
{C) Total net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 56.57 47.43
(D) Fair value changes
-Realised 5975 43.76
-Unrealised (3.18) 3.67
Total net gain/{loss) on fair value changes 56.57 47.43
OTHER INCOME
PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Branch advertisement income 88.54 84.32
(b) Income from distribution of financial products 120.93 -
(c) Miscellaneous Income 481 2.02
Total 214.28 86.34




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)

for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Rs, in crore)

27. FINANCE COSTS

PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At Amortised cost
(&) Interest on borrowings 1,437.17 996.68
(b) Interest on debt securities 1,116.31 82541
(c) Interest on subordinated liabilities 88.28 89.16
(d) Interest on lease liabilities 8.90 507
() Discounting Charges on debt securities
(i) Oncommercial paper 23291 70.13
(ii) On debentures 51.56 65.09
Total 2,935.13 2,051.54
28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended

(&) Salaries, wages and bonus

(b) Contribution to provident and other fund
(c) Staff welfare expenses

(e) Share based payments to employees

Total

(d) Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

399.55 273.97
14.99 11.52
2319 1746

3.03 2.00
6.00 327
446.76 308.22




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

29.

IMPAIRMENT / (REVERSAL) ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

PARTICULARS

(a) Loans - at amortised cost

(i) Impairment allowance - stage 1 & 11
(i) Impairment allowance - stage IIT

(iii) Write off - Loans (net of recoveries)*

(b) Trade receivables - at amortised cost
(i) Impairment allowance
(if) Write off - Trade receivables (net of recoveries)*

Total

Note:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(100.85) (68.68)

(62.13) 91.78
(1.40) (5.83)

(14.44) 14.87

3035 -
{148.47) 32.14

* includes write off amounting to Rs. 158.50 crore (March 31, 2023: Rs. 117.90 crore) and write back amounting to Rs.

129.55 crore (March 31, 2023: Rs. 123.73 crore)




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
30. OTHER EXPENSES
PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Advertisements and publicity 30.56 19.36
(b) Brand Equity and Business Promotion 14.07 10.43
(c) Corporate seeial respensibility cost (refer note no. 30.3) 16.53 12.58
{(d) Incentive / commission / brokerage 0.19 0.21
(e) Information technology expenses 76,91 61.85
(f} Insurance charges 1.16 0.12
(g) Legal and professional fees 40.05 36.80
(h) Loan processing fees 32.26 28.29
(i} Printing and stationery 4.76 332
{j) Power and fuel 4.82 3.29
(k) Repairs and maintenance 1.44 0.99
(I) Rent 15.02 10.58
(m) Rates and taxes 1.80 1.37
{n) Service providers' charges 72.65 58.59
(0) Training and recruitment 7.26 5.78
(p) Telephone, telex and leased line 331 118
{q) Travelling and conveyange 16.12 15.52
(r) Assets written off 0.04 -
(5) Net loss on derecognition of property, plant & equipment 0.14 -
(t) Collection Charges 10.19 11.21
(u) Audit Fees (refer note no. 30.1) 1.29 1.24
(v) Other expenses 21.69 14.87
Total 37226 297.58
30.1 Auditors Remuneration (excluding taxes) are as below. !
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Aundit Fees 0.90 0.90
Tax Audit Fees 0.10 0.10
Other Services (Certification) 0.29 0.24
Total 1.29 1.24
* Other Services include out of packet expenses of Rs. 0.07 creore {March 31, 2023: Rs. 0.02 crore)
30.2 Expenditure in foreign currency
Particulars For the year ended For the year endedj
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Other expenses:
Legal and Professional fees - 0,29
Informaticn technology expenses 5.20 5.51
Training and recruitment 0.02 0.01
Total 522 5.81




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
30.3 Corporate social responsibility expenses

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year was Rs. 16,53 crore (March 31, 2023: Rs.12.58 crore)

(b) Amount spent during the year on:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
Paid 2.19 292
Yet 10 be paid - -

(ii) On purposes other than above (i)
Paid 14.34 9.66
Yet to be paid - -

{c¢) The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: Nil.

(d) The total of previous years” shortfall amounts: Nil

(e) The reason for above shortfalls by way of a note: Not Applicable

(f) The nature of CSR activities undertaken by the Company: The CSR activities are undertaken as per Section 135 CSR Rules of
the Companies Act 2013, The company’s mission is to improve the lives of the community, especially the socially and
economically underprivileged communities, by making a long term, measurable and positive impact through projects in the
areas of Climate Action, Health and Skill Development.

{g) Details of related party transactions: Nil

(h) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the
provision during the year should be shown separately: Not Applicable




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

J1. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for):

(a) Contingent Liabilities:
Particulars As at As ot
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Suits filed against the Company 356 5.50
Income Tax {Pending before Appellate authorities) 0.68 0.68
Bank Guarantees 0.75 0.25
(b) Commitments:

(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net off advances given) Rs. 11.82 crore (March 31, 2023:

21.46 crore).
(1) Undrawn Commitment given to Borrowers
As on March 31, 2024 Rs, 8,256.20 crore (March 31, 2023: Rs. 6,820.01 crore )
Less than 1 year: Rs, 2,213.96 crore (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,845.45 ¢rore )
More than 1 year; Rs. 6,042.24 crore (March 31, 2023: Rs. 4,974.56 crore )

32. Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) — 24 on “Related Party Disclosures” notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015:

A

List of related parties and relationship:

Ultimate holding Company Tata Sons Private Limited

Holding Company Tata Capital Limited

Subsidiaries of Holding Company Tata Capital Pte. Limited
Tata Capital Growth Fund [

Tata Capital Special Situation Fund

Tata Capital Healthcare Fund T

Tata Capital Healthcare Fund II

Tata Capital Innovations Fund
Tata Capital Growth Fund II

Tata Capital Growth II General Partners LLP

Tata Capital Advisors Pte. Ltd.
Tata Capital Plc

Tata Capital General Partners LLP

Tata Capital Healthcare General Partners LLP
Tata Opportanities General Partners LLP

Tata Securities Limited

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited (merged with Tata Capital Limited w.e.f. January 01,

2024)

Tata Capital Healthcare II General Partrers LLP
Tata Cleantech Capital Limited (merged with Tata Capital Limited w.e.f. January 01, 2024)

TCL Employee Welfare Trust
Associates of Holding Company Fincare Business Services Limited
(with which the company had transactions) Indusface Private Limited
Retiral Plans of Holding Company Tata Capital Limited Gratuity Scheme

Tata Capital Limited Employees Provident Fund Trust
Tata Capital Limited Superannuation Scheme




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore}

Subsidiaries, associates, joint venture & retiral plans of ultimate ~ Tata Consultancy Services Limited

helding company and its subsidiarfes & associates Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited
Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited
Infiniti Retail Limited

Tata Teleservices Limited

Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited
Tata Communications Limited

Voltas Limited

Titan Company Limited

Tata Technelogies Limited

The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Piem Hotel Limited

Tata Motors Finance Limited

TtF Business Services Limited

Innovative Retail Concepts Private Limited
Tata Electronics Private Limited

Teta Img Technologies Private Limited

Tata Unistore Limited

Tata Steel Ltd Provident Fund

Tata Industries Superannuation Fund Trust
Tata Motors Limited Gratuity Fund

Tata Sons Consolidated Provident Fund

Tata Sons Consolidated Superannuation Fund
TCE Employees Provident Fund

Titan Industries Gratity Fund

Titan Watches Provident Fund

Voltas Limited Employees Superannuation Scheme
Voltas Limited Provident Fund

Voltas Managerial Staff Provident Fund

Tata Consulting Engineers Limited

(with which the company had ransactions)

Key Management Personnel ("KMP") Mr. Anil Kaul (Managing Director) (Ceased to be Managing Director w.e.f 17th July 2023)
Mr. Sarosh Amaria (Appointed as Managing Director w.e.f 18th July 2023)
Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal (Chainman & Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Ankur Verma (Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Mehernosh B. Kapadia (Independent Director)
Ms, Anuradha E, Thakur (Independent Director) (Ceased to be Independent Director w.e.f 30th
December 2022)
Mr. Sujit Kumar Varma (Independent Director)
Ms. Malvika Sinha ({Independent Director) (Appointed as a Independent Director w.o.f 31st
December 2022)
Mr. Nagaraj lajri (Independent Director) (Appointed as a Independent Director w.e.f 1st April
2024)
Mr, Mahadeo Bhiku Raikar (Chief Financial Officer)
Ms, Priyal Shah (Company Secretary) (Appointed as a Company Secretary w.e.f 31lst
December 2021) (Ceased to be Company Secretary w.e.f 11th June, 2022)
Ms. Sanna Gupta {Company Secretary) (Appointed as a Company Secretary w.e.f 6th
December 2022)




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

B. Transactions carried out with related parties referred in “A” above:

Sr. Party Name Nature of transaction 2023-24 2022-23
No.
1 ‘Tata Sons Private Limited Expenses
BEBP Expenses 14.10 10.43
Training Expenses 0.02 0.01
Consultancy charges - 0.04
Liabilities
Balance payable (Net) 14.10 10.43
2 Tata Capital Limited*
Income
Rent recovery 5.44 1.92
Reimbursement of valuation expenses 123 0.97
Guest House Recovery 0.04 0,06
Expenses
Inter-Corporate Deposit (TCD) interest 11.59 792
Service provider charges 12,19 12,50
Insurance expenses 0.06 0.03
Rent expenses 10,86 10.37
Contribution towards Provident Fund - 0.26
Reimbursement of Professional charges 070 0.10
Guest house expenses 0.10 0.05
Referral Fees 193 0.32
Reimbursement of [nformation technology expenses 0.15 -
Other transactions
Interim Dividend paid - Equity Shares - 3231
Inter-Corporate Deposit received 1,355.00 245484
Inter-Corporate Deposit repaid 1,798.67 2,011.17
Il;urf:;:zl)m Equity Share (inclusive of securities 700.00 500.00
Security Deposit paid - 12.60
* Purchase of Fixed Assets - 0.00
Sale of Fixed Asset 0.16 , -
Assets
Security Deposit receivable 12.60 12.60
Liahilities
[CD Payable - 441.67
Accrued Interest on ICD Outstanding - 0.08
Balance Payable (Net) 2.26 1.87
3 Tata Consultancy Services Limited Expenses
Information technology expenses 37.23 30.66
Liabilities
Balance payable (Net) 13.24 13.05
4  Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited Income
Branch advertisement income 50.69 -
Income from distributien of financial products 16.02 -
Expenses
Insurance Expense for Employees 1.17 102
Other transactions
Advance given 1.10 L5
Assets
Balance Receivables (Net) -




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
g‘; Party Name Nature of transaction 2023-24 102223
5  Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited Income
Income from distribution of financial products 30.24 -
Expenses
Insurance expenses 0.69 0.17
Other Transactions
Interest paid on Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) 10.15 10.15
Advance given 0.59 0.09
Assets
Balance Receivables (Net) 6.88 -
Liabilities
Payable towards NCDs 124.46 12446
6  Infiniti Retail Limited Other Transactions
* Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment - 0.00
7  Tata Teleservices Limited Expenses
Telephone Expenses 0.03 0.03
8  Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited Expenses
Telephone Expenses 0.02 0.02
Liabilities
* Balance payable (Net) 0.00 -
9 Tata Communications Limited Expenses
Information technology expenses 152 1.08
10 Voltas Limited Expenses
Repair & Maintainence 0.13 0.05
Other transactions
Purchase of Fixed Assets 1.77 2.07
Liabilities
Balance payable (Net) 0.04 -
11 Titan Company Limited Expenses
* Staff welfare 0.01 0.00
Other Transactions
Advance given - 0.01
12 Tata Capitsl Limited Employees Provident Fund
“Trust Expenses
Contribution to Provident Fund 9.26 7.04
Other transactions
Employees Contribution to Provident Fund 14.57 10.84
Interest paid on NCDs 0.05 0.05
Repayment towards NCDs 0.50 -
Liabilities
Payable towards NCDis - 0.50
13 Tata Capital Limited Superannuation Scheme Expenses
Contribution to Superannuation 0.15 0.11
14  Tata Securities Limited Income
Rent income 0.13 0.39
Expenses
* Referral Fees 0.00 0.01
* DP Cost 0.00 -
Assets
Balance receivable 0.01 -
Linbilifies -
Balance payable




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs, in crore)
::' Party Name Nature of transaction 1023-24 2022-23
15 Tata Technologies Limited Expenses
Information technology expenses 1.08 1.02
16  The Indian Hotels Company Limited Expenses
Staff welfare 0.09 0.52
Other Transactions
Advance given 0.04 -
17 Piem Hotel Limited Expenses
Staff welfare 0.01 004
18 Tata Motors Finance Limited # Expenses
Rent Expenses 0.74 -
Liabilities
Balange Payable (Net) 0.08 -
19  TMF Business Services Limited ## Expenses
Rent Expenses 0.25 0.89
Liabilities
Balance Payable (Net) - 0.08
20 Innovative Retail Concepts Private Limited Expenses
* Staff welfare expenses 0.01 0.60
21 Indusface Private Limited Expenses
Information technology expenses 0.01 0.02
22 Tata Electronics Private Limited Income
Interest income on loan 3.00 -
Other Transactions
Lecan given 113.90 -
Loan repaid 113.%0 -
23  Fincare Business Services Limited Income
Interest income on loan 3.50 -
Other Transactions
Loan given 465.00 -
Assets
Loan receivable including interest accrued 468.50 -
Commitments
Off balance sheet exposure 35.00 -
24 Tata Img Technologies Private Limited Expenses
Stalfl welfare expenses 0.03 -
25 ‘Tata Unistore Limited Expenses
* Staff welfare expenses 0.00 -
26 Tata Steel Ltd Provident Fund Other Transactions
Interest paid on NCDs 335 437
Liabilities
Payable towards NCDs 37.50 37.50
27 Tata Industries Superannuation Fund Trust Other Transactions
Interest paid on NCDs 0.09 0,10
Repayment towards NCDs 1.00 -
Liabilities
Payable towards NCDs - 1.00
28 Tata Motors Limited Gratuity Fund Other Transactions
Interest paid on NCDs 0.79 0.80
Repayment towards NCDs 220 -
Liabilities
Payable towards NCDs




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs, in crore)
::' Party Name Nature of transaction 202324 2022-23
29 Tata Sons Consolidated Provident Fund Other Transactions
Interest paid on NCDs 0.09 0.09
Repayment towards NCDs 0.90 -
Liabilities
Payable towards NCDs - 0.50
30 Tata Sons Consolidated Supcrannuation Fund Other Transactions
Interest paid on NCDs 0.15 0,15
Repayment towards NCDs 1.60 -
Liabilitics
Payable towards NCDs - 1.60
31 TCE Employees Provident Fund Other Transactions
Interest paid on NCDs - 0.10
32 Titan Industries Gratuity Fund Other Transactions
Interest paid cn NCDs 0.09 0.09
Liabilities
Payable towards NCDs 1.00 1.00
33 Titan Watches Provident Fund Other Transactions
Interest paid on NCDs 0.14 0.14
Liabilities
Payable towards NCDs 1.50 1.50
34 Voltas Limited Employees Superannuation Scheme  Other Transactions
Interest paid on NCDs 015 .15
Liabilities
Payable towards NCDs 2.00 200
35 Voltas Limited Provident Fund Other Transactions
Interest paid on NCDs 0.15 0.15
Liabilities
Payable towards NCDs 2.00 2.00
36 Voltas Managerial Staff Provideat Fund Other Transactions
Interest paid on NCDs 0.30 0.30
Liabilities
Payable towards NCDs 4.00 4.00
37 Tata Consulting Engineers Limited Other Transactions
Interest paid on NCDs 2.01 -
Repayment towards NCDs 10.00 -
Liabitities
Payable towards NCDs - 10.00
38 TCL Employee Welfare Trust Assets
Loan receivable 237 2.37
39 Close Member (Relative) of KMP Other Transactions
Interest paid on NCDs - 0.01
Liabilities
Payable towards NCDs - 0.10
40  KMP of Holding Company Other Transactions
* Interest paid on NCDs 0.00 0.00
Linbilities
Payable towards NCDs 0.02 0,02




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements {Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
::'. Party Name Nature of transaction 202324 2022-23
41 Key Management Personnel (KMF) Remuneration to KMP ###
Short Term Employee Benefits 45.01 679
Post Employment Benefits 021 018
* Termination Benefits 043 0,00
- Share based payments {No. of Shares) ~
(i) Options granted till date 55,71,209 28,94,046
(i) Options exercised till date 35,43,012 46,420
Other Tramactions
Interest paid on NCDs - 0,01
Liabilities
Payable towazds NCDs - 0.10

33.

34.

*Less than Rs.50,000/-

~ Tata Capital Financial Services Limited and Tata Cleantech Capital Limited got merged with Tata Capital Limited with effect from January 01, 2024

#Name changed from Tats Motors Finance Solutions Limited with effect from October 26, 2023
## Name changed from Tata Motors Finance Limited with effect from August 07, 2023
##HThe above figures do not include provisions for encashable lesve, gratuity and premium paid for group health insurance, a3 separate actuarial valuation /

premium paid are not available,

/ESOP has been granted by Tata Capital Limited (Holdings Company) - Refer note 1o 35,
All transactions with these related parties are priced at arm’s length and are in the ordinary course of business,

Earnings per Share (EPS);
Particulars 2023-24 2012-23
Profit efter tax Ras. in crore 1,147.67 320.85
Add: Preference dividend (including dividend distribution tax) Ras.in crore - . -
Profit afier tax attributable to parent company Rs. in crore 1,147.67 820.85
Weighted averzge number of Equity shares used in computing Basic / Diluted EPS Nos 57,26,20,412 54,81,27,447
Facs value of equity shares Rupees 10.00 10.00
Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted) Rupees 20.04 1498
Movement in Impairment loss allowance - Stage I & II (provisions against standard assets) during the year is as under:
Particulars 101324 1022.23
Opening Belence 429.70 507.31
Additions during the year 90.49 263.00
Utilised during the year (185.77) (340.61)
429,70

Closing Balance

3442
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Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements {Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

36. Employee benefit expenses

A. Defined contribution plang

The Company makes contribution towards superannuation fund, a defined contribut
superannuation fund set up as Trust by Tata Capital Limited {“the parent Company”™), The
Company recognizes such contribution as an expense in the year of contribution. The C
contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

B. Defined benefit plan
1) Provident Fund

on retirement plan for qualifying employecs. The Superannuation fund is administered by
‘Cornpany is liable to pay to the superannuation fund 1o the extent of the emount contributed. The
pmpeany kas recognised X 0.15 crore (March 31, 2023 : 2 0,11 crore) for Superanmustion Fund

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions, a defined contribution plan for qualifying empioyees, Under the Schemes, hoth employees and the Company make monthly

contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees' salary (cutrently 12%

of employees” basic salary). The contributions, except that the employer’s contributien towards

pension fund is paid to the Regiona! Provident Fund office, as specified under the law, are made to the provident fund set up as an irrevocable trust by Tata Capital Limited (“the ultimate

parent Company™). The interest rate payable to the members of the trust shall not be lo

Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and shortfall, if any, shall be made good by the C:

wer than the statutory rate of interest declared by the Central Government under the Employees
p Hence the € v is Hable for annual ¢ontributions and any

deficiency in interest cost compared to interest computed based on the rate of interest declared by the Central Government. The total liability in respect of the interest shortfall of the Fund is
determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation. The interest liability arising only to the extent of the aforesaid differential shortfalls is a defined benefit plan. There is no such shortfall as

at March 31, 2024,

The Provident Fund contributions afong with the interest shortfall if any are recognized gs an expense in the year in which it is determined. The Company has recognised ¥ 13.86 crore
(March 31, 2023 ; T 10.71 erore} for Provident Fund contributions and I Nil (March 31, 2023 : ¥ Nil) for interest shorfalls in the Statément of Profit and Loss.

2) Gratuity
The Company offers its employees defined benefit plans in the form of a gratuity schems

(a lump-sum amount), Benefits under the defined benefit plans are typically based on years of

service and the employee's compensation (generally immediately before retirement). The gratuity scheme covers substantially all regular employees. Commitments are actuarially determined

at year-end. These commitments are valued at the present value of the expected future pay , with consideration for caloulated future salary increases, using a discount rate
comresponding to the interest rete estimated by the actuary having regard to the interest rate on Government bends with a remaining temm that is almest equivalent o the average balance
working periad of employess. Actuasial valuation is done based on "Projected Unit Credit" method. Gains and losses of changed actuarial assumptions are recorded in the Other
Comprehensive Income. The Company provides gratuity for employees in India as per payment of Gratity Act, 1972. The gratiity scheme for emplayees is as under;

Eligibility Continuous service for 5 years (not applicable in case of death or disability while in service)
Benefit payable upen Retirement, Withdrawal, Death/Disbility
Benefit payable For service less than 10 years: 15/26 X gala.ry X-Service
For service greater than 10 years: Salary X Service
Salary definition Last drawn monthly basic salary + Dearness Allowance
Service definiion Number of years of service rounded to the nearest integer
Normal retirement age 60 years

There ar¢ no statutory minimum finding requirements for grawity plans mandated in India. However, a Company can fund the benefits by way of a separate irevocable Trust to take
advantage of tax exemptions and also to ensure secusity of benefits.

The Tata Cepital Limited Gratuity Scheme is funded by way of a separate imevocable Trust and the Company is expected to make regular contributions to the Trust. The fund is managed
intemnally by the Company and the assets are invested as per the pattem prescribed under Rule 67 of Tncame Tax Rules, 1962, The asset allocation of the Trust is set by Trustees from time
10 time, taking into account the membership profile, the liquidity requirerents of the plan and risk appetite of the plan sponsor as per the investment nomms, Each year asset-liability
matching study is performed in which the consequences of the strategic investment policies are analysed in terms of risk and retum profiles. Investment and Contribution policies are
integrated within this stady.

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed 10 a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
1. Interest rate risk: The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on|government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

2. Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation

3. Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disabitity and refirement. The effect of these
decrements ot the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate
withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career ernplore typically costs less per year ag compared to a long serviee employee,

4. Investment risk : For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instrnaments backing the liability. In
such cases, the present value of the essets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant
changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation peried.

5, Legislative risk ; Legislative risk is the dsk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduetion in the plan assets due to change in the legislationregulation. The govermment may amend the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees, This will directly affect the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the
same will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

36.

Emplayee benefit expenses (Continued)

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) / liability
) Reconciliation of balances of Defined Benefit Obligations.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Total Funded Totsl Unfunded Total Funded  Total Unfunded
Delined Qbligations at the beginning of the year 13.22 - 9.90 -
Current serviee cost H kX)) - 210 -
Interest cost ; 0.87 - 0.51 -
Amalgamations / Acquisitions ] 3.08 - 0.06 -
8. Due to change in financial assumptions 0.31 - 0.14 -
b. Due %o change in expetience adjustments 147 - 136 -
Benefits paid directly by the Company (1.92) - {0.95) -
Deflined Obligations at the end of the year 20.05 - 13.22 -
i
f
b) Reconciliation of balances of Fair Value of Plan Assets
'
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Particulars \ Total Funded Total Unfunded Total Funded  Total Unfonded
As on 31 March 2020 |
Fair Value at the beginning of the year 12.01 - 11,99 -
Expected return on plan assets 224 - (0.82) -
Employer contributions 1.72 - B -
Amalgamstions / Acquisitions 3.08 - 0,06 -
Interest Income on Plan Assets | 091 - 0.78 -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year , 19.96 - IEI -
1
c) Funded status
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars ! ‘Total Funded Total Unfunded Total Funded  Total Unfunded
Deficit of plan assets over obligations ‘ {0.09) - {1.21) -
Total ‘ {0.09) - (l._21} -
d) Categories of plan assets ‘
, For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Particulars Total Funded Total Unfunded Total Funded  Total Unfunded
Corparate bonds 0.04 - 030 -
Govemnment securities 0.04 - 0.03 -
Insurer managed funds - ULIP Product 19.83 - 1167 -
Cash 005 - 0,01 -
Total 19.96 -




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)}
36. Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

c) Amount recognized in Balance sheet

' For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Total Fuoded Total Unfunded Total Funded  Total Unlunded
Present value of the defined benefit obligation 20,05 - 1322 -
Fair value of plan assets 19.96 - 12,01 -
Net asset / {liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet i {0.09) - (1.21) -
|
f) Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Losgs ‘
‘ For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars ' Total Funded Total Unfunded Total Funded  Total Unfunded
t
Current Service Cost 3.01 - 210 -
Interest Cost (net) (0.04) - (0.17) -
Expenses for the year 2.97 - 1.93 -
£) Amount recognised in OCI |
| For the year ended For the yeor ended
, March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Total Funded Tatal Unfunded Total Funded  Total Unfunded
a. Due to change in financial assumptions 031 - C.14 -
b. Due to change in experience adjustments 147 - 1.36 -
<. (Return) on plan assets (exc). interest income} (2.24) - .32 -
Tatal remeasurements in OCI ! (0.48) - 233 -
Tota! defined benefit cost recognized in P&L and OCI . 2.51 - 4.26 -
h) Expected cash flows for the following year
Particulars ' For the year ended  For the year ended)
, March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expected total benefit payments | 34.68 2352
Year 1 1.63 136
Year 2 168 1.30
Year 3 217 1,62
Year 4 L 254 1.61
Year 5 327 2.06
Next 5 yers ! 2339 15.56




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
36,

Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

i) Major Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars

Discaount Rare (%)
Salary Escalation/ Inflation (%6)

Expected Return on Plan assets (%)
Aftrition
Mortality Table

Medical cost inflation
Dizability
'Withdrawal (rase of employee mumover)

Retirement Age
Weighted Average Duration
Estimate of amount of contribution in the immediate next yzar

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2024

6.90%
1 Non CRE: 9.00%, CRE
' & J Grade: 6.50%

6.90%

Indian assured lives
Mortality {2005-08)
(modified) Ult.

CRE and J Grade : 40%
Non CRE :

Sefvice Rate

Less than 5 years 25%
More than 5 years 10%

60 years
6 years
1.63

For the year ended
Mareh 31,2023

7.10%

Non CRE: 9.00%,
JLCRE& ]
Grade;6,50 %
7.10%

Indian assured lives
Mortality (2006-08)
(modified) Tlt.

CRE and J Grade :
40%

Non CRE :

Service Rate

Less than 5 years 25%)
More than 5 years 10%

60 years
6 years
1.36

The estimates for future salary i considered in

jal valuation, take intp accour

nt inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

The expected return on plan assets is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the period, for returns gver the entire life of the related obligation,

i) Sensitivity anatysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to ene of the relevant actrarial assnmpﬁf)ns, holding other assumptions constant, weuld have affected the defined benefit obligation by the

amounts shown below.

For the year ended l For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Increase Decrease Increase Decrease|
Discount rate (1% movement) {1.49) 1.69 5‘ (0.98) 112
Future selary growth (1% movement) 1.64 (1.47) 1.09 (0.97)
Others (Withdrawal rate 5% movement) (1.84) 273 (1.20) 1.78
!
Experience adjnstments Defined benefit  Plan asseis Surplus/ Experience Experience
obligation (defirit) adjustments on plan  adjustments on plan
' finbilities assets
Funded
2023-24 20.65 19.96 {0.09) (147 224
2022-23 1322 12.01 {1.21) (1.38) (0.82)
Unfunded
202324 - - - - -
2022-23% - - - - -
i) Provision for leave encashment
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2013
Particulers Non current Current Non current Current
Liability for compensated absences 490 1.83 3.52 151
k) Provision for long service award scheme
For the yesr ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Non carrent Current  Non current Current]
Liability for long tetm service awards 036 0.05 0.26 007




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

3.

Fair values of financial instruments

See accounting policy in Note 2(iv).

I
. Valuation models ’
t

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements:

a) Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at measurement
date

b} Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included wi:Lhin level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instfuments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active, or other valuation techniques in
which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

¢) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assLts or liabilities that the Company can access at measurement date, This
category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs that are not observable and the unobservable inputs have a
significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.
Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, income approach, comparison with similar instruments for
which observable market prices exist, option pricing models and otPer valuation models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques
include risk-free returns, benchmark interest rates and credit spreads used in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, foreign currency
exchange rates, equity and equity index prices and expected price volatilities and correlations.

The objective of valuation techniques is to ammive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would be received to sell the asset or
paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

The Company uses widely recognised valuation models ta determine: the fair value of financial instruments, such as forward rate agreement, that
use only observable market data and require little management judgement and cstimation, Observable prices or model inputs are usually
available in the market for listed equity securities. The availability of observable market prices and model inputs reduces the need for

management judgement and estimation and also reduces the uncertainty associated with determining fair values.

For more complex instruments, the Company uses proprietary va:luation models, which are usually developed from recognised valuation
models. Some or all of the significant inputs into these models may not be observable in the market, and may be derived from market prices or
rates or estimated based on assumptions. Valuation models Ll'Lat employ significant unobservable inputs require a higher degree of
management judgement and estimation in the determination of fair{value. Management judgement and estimation are usually required for the
selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued,
determination of the probability of counterparty default and prepayments, determination of expected volatilities and correlations and selection
of appropriate discount rates. '

Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any Othcl factors, such as liquidity risk or model uncertainties, to the extent that the
Company believes that a third party market participant would take Ihem into account in pricing a transaction. Fair values reflect the credit risk
of the instrument and include adjustments to take account of the c!redit risk of the Company and the counterparty where appropriate. Model
inputs and values are calibrated against historical data, where possible, against current or recent observed transactions in different instruments.
This calibration process is inherently subjective and it yields ranges of possible inputs and estimates of fair value, and management uses
Jjudgement to select the most appropriate point in the range. ‘

Discounting of the cash flows of financial asset/ financial liability q‘or computing the fair value of such instrument: the future contractual cash
flows of instrument over the remaining contractual life of the instrument are discounted using comparable rate of lending/borrowing as
applicable to financial asset/ financial liability in the month of reporting for a similar class of instruments,

Derivatives held for risk management : ‘
The Company enters into structured derivatives to mitigate the currency exchange risk and interest rate risk on account of fluctuation in the
foreign exchange rates and floating rates towards the principal and interest repayments of external commercial borrowing. Some of these
instruments are valued using models with significant unobservable inputs, principally expected long-term volatilities and expected correlations
between different underlyings.

In the valuation of derivative instruments, the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method plays a pivotal role. This method involves projecting the
future cash flows that the derivative is expected to generate or obligate over its life. These cash flows are then discounted back to the present
value using an appropriate discount rate, which reflects the risk profile of the cash flows and the time value of money.

The discount rate is typically derived from market-based inputs to ensure an objective valuation, Tn the context of derivatives, the DCF method
accounts for various factors such as underlying asset price movements, interest rate changes ility, as well as contractual terms of the
Jderivative. The strength of the DCF approach lies in its flexibility to model the unique feal . J




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore}

37.

Fair values of financial instruments (Continued)

See accounting policy in Note 2(iv).

. Valuation framework

The Company has a established a policy for the measurement of fair values addressing the requirement to independently verify the results of all
significant fair value measurements. Specific controls include:

1) verification of observable pricing basis actual market transactions;

2) re-performance of model valuations;

3} areview and approval process for new models and changes to models

4) annual calibration and back-testing of models against observed market transactions;

5) analysis and investigation of significant annual valuation movements; and

6) review of significant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and significant changes to the fair value measurement of Level 3
instruments compared with the previous year.

When third party information, such as valuation agency report is used to measure fair value, the Company assesses the documents and evidence
used to support the conclusion that the valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS. This includes:

1) understanding how the fair value has been arrived at, the extent to which it represents actual market transactions and whether it represents a
quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument;

2) when prices for similar instruments are used to measure fair value, how these prices have been adjusted to reflect the characteristies of the
instrument subject to measurement; and

3) if a number of quotes for the same financial instrument have been obtained, then how fair value has been determined using those quotes.

Significant valuation issues are reperted to the Audit Committee.




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statemeats (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

37. Fair values of financial instruments (Continued)

C. Financial assets and liabilities

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Fair value Fair Value Derivnli‘ye ) Derivative Total
Particolars (brough Profit through Other instrumentsin  instruments Amortised Carryi
g! X N . - rrying
or Loss Comprehensive bedging not in hedging cont Value
Income relationship relationship
Finnncial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 1.658.11 1,658.11
Other balances with banks - - - - 51.02 51.02
Derivative financial instruments - - 49.50 - - 49.50
Trade receivables - - - - 29.38 29.38
Loans - - - - 51,401.88 51,401.83
Investments. 7146 - - - 961.83 969.29
Other financial assets - - - - 16.63 16.63
Total 7.4_6 - 49,50 - 54I118.85 54'17&
Financlal Liabilities:
Desivative financial instruments - - 6.57 - - 5.57
Trade and other payables - - - - 158.41 158.41
Borrowings * - - - - 47,270.98 47,270.98
Lease Liabilities - - - - 12232 122,32
Other financial liabilities - - - - 8536 85.36
Taotal - - 6.57 - 47,637.07 47,643.64

* Borrowings includes Debt Securities, Bomowings (Other than debt securities) and Subordinated liabilities.

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories a3 at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Particulars Fair value Fair Value Derivative Derivative Amortised Total
through Profit through Other instruments in  instruments cost Carrying;
or Loss Comprehensive hedging not in hedging Value,

In¢ome  relationship  relationship

Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 698.28 658.28
Other balances with banks - - - - 0.52 0.52
Derivative financial instruments - - 45.13 - - 4513

Trade receivables B - - - 2535 25,35

Loans - - - - 36,916.71 36,916.71
Investments 2,158 719 - - - 489.64 2,648.43
Other financial assets - - - - 16.24 16.24

Totsal ﬂ'm - 4&2 - 38,146.74 40250.66
Finantial Liabilities:

Derivative financial instruments - - 0.16 - - 0.16

Trade and other payables - - - - 133.47 133.47
Borrowings * - - - - 35,032,50 3503250
Lease Liabilities - - - - 78.93 78.93

Other financial liabilitics - - - - 415.46 415.46
Total - - 0,16 - 35,66036 35l660.52

* Borrowings includes Debt Securities, Borrowings (Other than debt securities) and Subordinated liabilities.
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Fair values of financial instrumeats (Continued)

Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, and trade payables as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 approximate the fair value becawse
of their short-term nature, Difference between camrying amounts and fair values of bank deposits, other financials assets, other financial liabilitics and borrowings
subsequently measured at amortised cost is not significant in each of the period presented.

Fair value hierarchy:

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and consist of the
following three tevels:

Level 1 — Inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2 — Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices). For mutual funds, published net asset value ( NAV) is used for the purpese of computation of fair value.

Level 3 — Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation mode] based on
assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

a) Fair value is computed for financial asset carried at amortised cost by comparing the contracted internal rate of return with the weighted average coupon rate for
the loans disbursed in the reporting month.

b) For all cther financial assels and finaneial liabilities, the carrying value approximates the fair value of the instniment.

The following table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis :

As at March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets:

Investments - 746 - 7.46

Derivative financial instruments - 49,50 - 49,50

Total - 56.96 - 56.96
i, i

Financial Liabilities:

Derivative financial instruments - 6.57 - 6.57

Total - 6.57 - 6.57
Ll i

As at March 31,2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets:

Investments - 2,158.79 - 2,158.79
Derivative financial instraments - 45.13 - 45.13
Total - 2,203.92 - 2.203.92

Financial Liabilities:

Derivative financial instraments - 016 - 0.16
Total - 0.16 - 0.16
— LN

The following table summarises disclosure of fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost:

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Measured at Level 3 c .
. . arrying Y
Carrying Value Fair value Value Fair value

Financial Assets at amortised cost:
Loans 51,401.88 54,215.54 36,916.71 39,387.65
Investments 951.83 946,20 489.64 474,03
Total 5£2,363.71 55!161.14 37,406.35 35.861.68
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost:
B i includes debt iti i

Borrowings (includes debt securities and subordinated 47,27098 4739242 3503250  34,957.37
liabilities)
Total 471270.93 41&92.41 35,032.50 3495737
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The following table summarises valuation techniques used to determine fair value, fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs {level 3) and
valuation inputs and relationship to fair value

Financial instruments Fair value as at
Relationship
N Significant of
As at Asat ;21:"::}'“ Valuali;:: t::h::t(}:;e(s) and unchservable unobservable
March 31,2024 March31, 2023 ¥ ¥ e input(s)  inputs to fair
value
Loans 54,215.54 3%,387.65 Level 3 Discounted cash flows Discounting Higher the

rate and future  discounting
expected cash  rate lower the

flows fair value of
loans
Financial Assets at Fair value 54‘.2_15.54 39,387.65
Financial instruments Fair value as at Relationship
of
Fair value Valuation technique(s) and Sgnificant yphseryabe
As at As at N N unebservable ;000 4o fai
hierarchy key input{s) N inputs to baur
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 input(s) value
Borrowings (includes debt securities and 47,392.42 34,957.37 Level 3 Discounted cash flows Diiscounting Higher the
subordinated liabilities) rate and future  discounting
expected cash  rate lower the
flows fair value of
Borrowings

Financial Liabilities at Fair valpe 4739242 34,957.37

Fair value of the Finaneial instruments measured at amortised cost:

The fair value of loans given is based on observable market transactions, to the extent available. Wherever the observable market transactions are ot available, fair
valug is estimated using valuation models, such as discounted cash flow techmigues. Input into the vatuation techniques includes interest rates, prepayment rates,
primary origination or secondary market spreads. Input inta the medels may include information obtained from other market participants, which includes observed
primary and secondary transactions,

To improve the accuracy of the valuation estimate for retzil and smaller commercia! loans, homogeneous loans are grouped into portfolios with similar

ch ics such as p

I

The fair value of borrowings is estimated using discounted eash flow techniques, applying the rates that are offered for borrowings of similar maturities and terms,
Treasury Bills and Government Securities are valued based on market quotes.
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38.

Risk Management Framework
A) Introduction

The Company aims to operate within an effective risk management framework to actively manage all the material risks faced by the organisation and make it resilient
to shocks in a rapidly changing environment. The Company is exposed to various types of risks namely credit risk, liquidity risk, market risks, operational risk,
strategic risk (including emerging & external risks) and compliance & reputation risk, The Company have adopted a holistic and data driven enterprise level risk
management approach which includes monitoring beth internal and external indicators.

Changes in internal and external operating environment, digitalization, techrological advar and agile way of working have increased the significance of
Fraud, Information & Cyber Security and Operational Risks. The Company continues to focus on inereasing operational resilience and mitigation of these risks. We
periodically adjust our strategy in cognizance with industry risk dynamics and emergence of new chall and opp ities. Risk management framework has been
latd down with Iong term sustainability and velue creation covering the below objectives:

The Company’s Risk Management framework has been created with an intent to:

*Build profitable and sustainable business with conservative risk management approach,

+Have risk management as an intepral part of the organization’s business strategy.

sHndertake businesses that are well understeod and within acceptable risk appetite.

*Manage the risks proactively across the organization,

Adopt best risk management practices with resultant shareholder value creation and increased stakeholder confidence.
~Develop a sirong risk culture acress the organization,

The risk management practices of the Company are compliant with 1SO 31000: 2018 which is the international stendard for risk management that lays down
principles, guidelines and framework for risk management in an organisation.

B) Company’s Ri;!k Management Framework for Measuring and Managing Risk

Risk Manapement Framework

The Company’s Capital Risk Management is an integral part of all organizational activities. The structured approach contributes to consistent and comparable results
along with customization of external and intemal objectives. Important pillars of the risk management approach are developing a strong risk management culture
within the Company through alignment of risk by creating, preserving and realizing vahie,

A comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) Framework has been adopted by the Company which uses defined Key Risk Indicators based on
quantitative and qualitative factors. A two-dimensional quantitative data management tool - Heat Map — has been implemented, which enables the Management to
have a comprehensive view of various identified risk areas based on their probability and impact.

The 11 categories of risks identified and monitored by the Company are Credit Risk, Market Risk, Liquidity Risk, Process, Peaple, Qutsourcing, Compliance &
Govemnance, Technology, Business Continuity, Cyber Security and Reputation risk.

Nature of Rigsk Framewaork Governing Committees
Credit Risk Enterprise Risk Management Risk Management Committee of the
Various Credit Policies, Portfolio review and|Board
trigger monitoring Investment Credit Committee of the|
Board
Credit Commitiees
Market Risk & Liquidity Risk Enterprise Risk Management Risk Management Committee of the
Asset Linked Market Policy Board
Asset Liability Management
Committee
Process Risk Operational Risk Policy Operattonal ~ Risk  Management
Committes
People Risk Operational Risk Policy Risk Management Committee of the
HR Policies Board
Operational Risk  Management|
Committee
Outsourcing Operational Risk Policy Risk Management Comumittee of the
Qutsourcing Policy Board
Operational Risk Management|
Committee
Technology Operational Risk Policy Risk Management Committee of the
Information Technology Policy Board
IT Strategy Committee of the Board
Business Continuity Operational Risk Policy Operational  Risk  Management
Business Continuity Management Policy Commitlee
Cyber Security Information & Cyber Security Policy Risk Management Comimittee of the
Board
IT Strategy Management Committee
of the Board
Reputational Risk Enterprise Risk Management Framework Risk Management Cormmittee of the!
Compliance & Governance Ethics Policy Board
POSH Policy
Tata Code of Conduct
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38.

Risk Management Framework

Board level committees

Risk Management Committee of the Board (RMC): The purpase of the Committes is to assist the Board in its oversight of various risks (i) Credit Risk (ii)
Market & Liquidity Risk (iii) Operational Risk (Process, People, Outsounrcing, Technology, Business Continuity and Fraud) (iv) Strategic Risks (including emerging
and external risks) (v} Compliance and Governance (vi) Reputation Risk {vii) Information Security and Cyber Security Risk.

Investment Credit Committee of the Board (ICC): Provide guidance on nature of investments that shall be undertaken, and approve credit limits for various
counterparties, where exposures in agpregate exceed a certain level,

IT Strategy Committee: Reviews and approves IT strategy and policies. Monitors [T resources required to achieve strategic goals and to institute an effective
governance mechanism and risk management process for all outsourced IT operations so that maximum value is delivered to business,

The Conpany’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. The risk management polictes and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the activities
of the Company. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control envitonment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. The Risk Management Committee reviews risk management policies of the Company pertsining to
credit, market, liquidity and operational risks. It oversees the monitoring of compliances with the risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy
of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

The Audit Committes is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Commitiee,

Senior Manapement Committees

Management Credit Committee (MCC); The members of committee are senior management of the company as defined in the prevailing delegation of authority. It
recommends proposal including review to ICC / Board for loan facilities falling beyond assigned Delegation of Power and Authority. The committes is governed as
per the delegation of authority applicable to the company.

Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC): ORMC is the oversight committee for ensuring effective management of operational risks. . The conmittee
reviews and approves the following :

+(Operational risk manag policy and including amendments if any.

«Tsurance management framework.

=Oomective actions on operational risk incidents, based on analysis of the KRIs, operational risk process reviews, etc,

+Operaticnal risk profile based on the KRIs which are beyond the tolerance limit

Fraud Risk Management Committee (FRMC): An independent Fraud Risk Management Committee (FRMC) comprising of top management representatives has
been constituted that reviews the matters related to fraud risk and approves/recommends actions against frauds. It reviews the frauds reported and investigated with
detailed root cause analysis and corrective action.

Asset Liability Management Committee of the Board (ALCO): ALCO reviews the Liquidity Risk and Interest Rate Risk on a regular basis and suggests
necessary actions based on its view and expectations on the liquidity and interest rate profile.

C) Company’s Rigk Mansgement Approach for handling various type of risks

a) Credit Risk

The Credit Risk management framework is based on the philosophy of First and Second line of Defence with underwriting being responsibility of Credit department
and controls around policies and processes are driven by Risk department. Each process and business verticals have Credit underwriting, Risk analytics, Policy and
Operational Risk unit. Delegation of Authority is defined based on value at risk and deviation matrix as approved by the Board.

The Company has reviewed Credit policies from time to time based on macroeconomic scenarios, pandemic and government scheme/prants, The Compzny have
robust early wamning signals process to ensure resilience in the policy framework for adopting changing business scenario and to mitigate various business risks,

Company has a sirong fraud risk and vigilance framework to weed out fraudulent customers from system at the time of origination with support of analytical tools.
Identified fraud eases in the portfolio are reviewed basis detailed root cause analysis and reported to regulator, Process improvements based on 1oot cause analysis
are implemented to control such forese=n losses in fature,

Introduction of new products are based on market potential, Operational risk, Credit risk and Compliance risks. All new product launches are signed off by Risk
department to mitigate key risks arising while developing strategy around launching of new product, All innovative process changes/digitization goes through rigour
of risk review and highlighting risk associated with change of the process and mitigents around the same. All introduction of new preducts goes through a complete
governance process and are approved by Board/respective committees.

b) Market Risk

Risk due to change in market prices — e.g. interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads, but not relating to changes in the obligor’sfissuer’s
credit standing and will affect the Company's income or the value of ifs holdings of financial instruments. The objective of the Company’s market risk management is
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable risk tolerances levels to ensure the solvency and low volafility while optimising the balance between
profitability and managing associated risks,

Under Liquidity Risk Management (LRM) framework for the Company, ALCO sets up limits for each significant type of risk/agpregated risk with liquidity being a
primary factor in determining the level of limits. The monitoring of risk limits defined as per ALM policy is done by ALCO on regular basis. The company has Asset
Liability Management (ALM) support group prescribed by RBI which meets on regular basis to ensure internal controls and reviews the liquidity risk management of
the Company,
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Risk Management Framework

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is measured through Interest rate sensitivity report where gaps are being monitored classifying all rate sensitive assets and rate sensitive Lishilittes
into various time period categories according to earliest of contracted/behavigural maturities or anticipated re-pricing date. The Company monitors interest rate risk
throuph traditicnal gep and duraticn gap appreaches on a monthly basis. The interest rate risk limits are approved by the ALCO.

Refer Nete No 39.C.ii for summary on sensitivity to a change in interest rates as on March 31, 2024.

Currency Risk
The company is exposed to currercy risk arising due to external commercial bormowings. The foreign currency loan in form of external conmercial borrowing (ECB)
raised by the Company are fully hedged basis.

The hedging policy as approved by the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) prescribes the hedging of the risk associated with change in the interest rates and
fluctuation of foreign exchange rates. Couater party risk is reviewed periodically in terms of exposure to varfous counter parties,

The Company's hedging policy ouly allows for effective hedging relationships to be considered as hedpes as per the relevant Ind AS. Hedge effectiveness is
determined at the inception of the hedge relationship and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists
between the hedged item and hedging instrument. The Company enters into hedge relationships where the eritical terms of the hedging imstoument mateh with the
terms of the hedged item, and so a qualitative and quantitative assessment of effectiveness is performed. Ail hedges entered into by the Company are cash flow
hedges.

Refer Note No 39.C.idi for summary of foreign currency risk exposure as on March 31, 2024,

Equity price risk

The Company investments in equity carry a risk of adverse price movement. To mitipate pricing risk emerging from investments in equity, the Company
intermittently observes the performance of sectors and measures MTM gains/losses as per applicable accounting policy of the Company.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity Risk is the risk that a Company will encounter difficulties in meeting its short-term financial obligations due to an asset— liability mismatch or nterest rate
fluctuations. The liquidity risk is being managed as per ALM policy which has following key elements:

i) ALCQO sets the strategy for managing liquidity risk commensurate with the business objectives;

ii) ALCQC has set various gap limits for tracking liquidity risk.

iif) The ALM policy is being reviewed on annual basis, including the risk tolerance, process and control. ALCO monitors the liquidity and interest rate gaps on
regular basis.

iv) Company manages the liquidity position on a day-to-day basis and reviews daily reports covering the liquidity position. The regulatory compliance to the liquidity
risk related limits are being ensured.

¥) The Company is fully complied to the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) framework as mandated by RBL

Company's liquidity risk management strategy are as follows:
a. Maintaining a diversified funding through market and bank borrowings resources such as debentures, commercial papers, subordinated debt, perpetual debt, Inter-
corporate deposits (ICD’s), overdraft and bank term loans. Unused bank lines as well as High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) maintained under LCR, framework

constitute the main liquidity back up to meet the contingency funding plan, Additionally, based on Market scenaric, the Company also maintains a portfelio of highly
liquid mutual fund usits,

b. The Company complies with the ALM guidelines and submits various returns and disclosures in accordance with the regulatory guidelines.

¢. The Company carries out liquidity stress testing based on the cash flows and results are reported to ALCO on periodic basis. The Company has contingency
funding plan in place which monitors the early warning signals arising out of company specific and market wide liquidity stress scenarios.

‘The Company has honoured all its debt ohgations on time, Based on liguidity risk ent, cash-flows mi hes are within the stipulated regulatory limits. The
Company has been successful in maintaining the adequate Liquidity by raising fresh/renewal of bank [ines, reguler access to capital market and financial institation
under the various schemes promulgated by RBI to raise medium to long term funds, Owing to the sbove measures, the Company has not seen a rise in its iquidity
risk.

Refer Note No 39 B ii for the Maturity analysis for Company’s financial liabilitics and financial assets as on March 31, 2024,

£) Operational Risk

Operational Risk has been defined as “The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external events”, The risk
of direct or indirect potential loss arising from a wide variety of ceuses associated with the company's processes, personnel, systems, or from external factors other
than strategic and reputation risk M ent of operational risk forms an integral part of the Company’s cnterprise wide risk management systems. The
crganisation thrives towards incremental improvements to its operational risk management framework to address the dynamic industry landscepe. Clear stratepies
and oversight by the Board of Directors and senior management, a strong operational risk management culture, effective internal control and reporting and
contingency planning are crucial elements of the Company’s operational risk management framework,

The operational risk team monitors and reports key risk indicators (“KRI™) and KRI exceptions. Suitable risk mitigation actions are tzken wherever required to curtail
the potentiol risk at the acceptable levels,

ORMC meets periodically to review the operational risk profile of the organization and oversee the implementation of the risk management framework and policies.
FRMC meets periodically to review matters relating to fraud risk, inclading corrective and remedial actions as regards people and processes.

The Company has a Business Continuity Planning “BCP™ framework in place, to ensure uninterrupted business operations in case any distuptive event oceurs.

The Company has an IT Disaster Recovery Planning “IT-DRP” which provides the technology framework to continue day-to-day operations using secondary/back-
up systems when primary system fails, It also protects the organisation against loss of computer based data and information.
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Cyber Security Risk

The Company has adopted *Framework for Improving Critical Infrastruchrre Cyber Security” published by the National Institute of Standards & Technalogy (MIST)
and complies with regulatory guidelines Various measures are adopted to effectively protect the Company against phishing, social media threats and rogue
mobile.We have a Centralized menitoring solution - 24 x 7 x 365 Security Operations Centre (SOC) and improved capabilities to detect and respend to a cyber
threats. There is a Robust Security incident manapement processes and Best-in<lass EDR & Privilege access management solution has been implemented. Periodic
vulnerability and risk assessments are performed to help reduce the likelihood and impact of cyber threats, malware, data leakage and security yulnerabilities.

d) Regulatory and Compliance Risk )

The Company bas a robust compliance risk management framework in place approved by the Board, which lays down the toles and responsibilities of employees
towards ensuring compliance with the applicable laws and regulations as also the role of the Compliance Department in monitoring compliance, The management of
compliance risk is an integral component of the governance framework along with other intemal control and risk management frameworks.

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP): Scale based regulation issued on October 22, 2021 required NBFC-UL and NBFC-ML to make a thorough
internal assessment of the need for capital, commensurate with the tisks in their business on similar lines as ICAAY prescribed for commercial banks under Pillar 2.
The Company has already put in place a Board approved ICAAP policy and asssed the capital requrements based on the ICAAP policy and stressed scenarios,

Changes in intemal and external operating environment, digitalization, technological advancements and agile way of working have increased the significance of
Frand, Information & Cyber Security and Operational Risks. At the Company, there is continued focus on increasing operational resilience and mitigation of thess
risks,
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39. Risk Management review

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to following risks and its management of capital,

For information on the financial risk management framework, see Note 38
A. Credit risk

i. Credit quality analysis

ii. Collateral held and other credit enhancements

ili. Amounts arising from ECL

iv. Concentration of credit risk

B. Liquidity risk
i. Maturity analysis for financial liabilities and financial assets
ii. Financial assets position- pledged/unpledged

C. Market risk
i. Exposure to interest rate risk — Non-trading portfolios
ii. Exposure to curmrency risks — Non-trading pertfolios

D. Capital management
i. Regulatory capital
ii. Capital allocation
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A Credit risk
For the definition of eredit risk and information on how credit risk is mitigated by the Company, see Note 38,

1) Days past due based method implemented by Company for credit quality onatysis of Loans

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to eredit risk based on the days past due and year-end stage classification of Loans. The amounts presented are
gross of impairment allowances.

2) Qutstanding Gross Loans As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023
Count Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Count Stagel Stage2 Stage 3 Total|
Days past due
Zero overdue 2, 72218 50,133.37 708.33 1123 50,853.93 1,96,783 35,533.13 907.37 15.14 3645564
1-30 days 1,957 230.17 [22.58 232 355,07 1,849 197.84 173.23 626 37733
31-60 days 1,435 - 285.48 4.13 289.61 1,284 - 276.50 1991 296.81
61-90 days 353 - 57.26 10.92 78.18 346 - 55.82 3289 9271
More than 90 days 2,035 - - 46529 - 465.29 1,921 - - 51098 51098
Total 2,77,998 50,363,54 1,184.65 493,39 52,042.08 2,021183 JSI'?JU.!J‘? lﬂﬂi’l ﬁlﬂ 37,733.47
b) Impairment allowance on As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
Loans Stage 1 Stage2 Stage 3 Total Stoge 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Days past due
Zero overdue 15779 102.7% 631 266.38 135.67 146.37 9.73 291.77
1-30 days 397 2197 1.73 27.67 279 3231 280 37.90
31-60 days - 35.16 1.67 36.83 - 7229 0.88 8217
61-50 days - 12.75 9l 16.66 - 4027 1579 56.06
More than 90 days - - 27289 272.8% - - 31045 31045
Total 161.76 172.66 286.51 520,93 133.46 291.24 343.65 778.35
ECL coverage ratio 0.32% 14.57% 58.01% 1.19% 0.39% 20.55% 59.55% 2.06%




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
39. Financial risk review (Continued)

A, Credit risk

Trade Receivables

PARTICULARS As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023

Category of Trade receivables Gross Impairment Net Gross Impairment Net
allowance allowance

Stage 1: Considered good 23.83 0.10 2373 9.53 - 9.53

Stage 2:Significant increase in credit risk 5.67 0.02 5.65 15.82 - 15.82

Stage 3: Credit impaired 0.33 0.33 - 14.39 14.89 -

Net Carrying value of trade receivables 29.83 0.45 29.38 40.24 14.89 2535

Trade receivables overdue for 31 to 90 days are classified in Stage 2; Significant increase in credit risk.
Lifetime expected credit losses are considered for trade receivables as per simplified approach.
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A

Finaneial risk review (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit quality analysis continued

Derivative Financial Instroments

The Company enters into derivatives contract for risk management purposes and has elected to apply hedge accounting requirements. The table below shows

the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts. The notional ameunts indicate the value
of transactions outstanding at the year end and are not indicative of either the market risk or credit risk.

Derivatives held for Risk As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
management purposes
Notional  Fair Value - Fair Value - Notional  Fair Value- Fair Yalue -
Amounts Assets Liabilities Amounty Assets Liabilities
Spot and Farwards 226.15 - 6.57 232.79 - 0.16
Currency swaps 625.10 46.78 - 615.85 45,07 -
Interest rate swaps - 2.72 - - 0,06 -
Total 351.25 49.50 6.57 848.64 45.13 0.16

Derivatives held for risk management purpeses:

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk related to external commercial borrowings and the primary risk of change in the floating interest rate and
payment in foreign currency towards principal and interest at future date is managed by entering into a interest rate swap and foreign exchange forward rate
purchase agreement respectively.

The Corporation’s risk management strategy and how it is applied to manage risk is explained in Note 38.

The Interest rate swap and foreign exchange forward currency agreements are entered to fully hedge the risk on account of change in interest rate and foreign
exchange fluctuations on account of the external commercial borrewings.

Interest rate swap has been taken in respect of the same contract for which forward contract has been entered, accordingly notional value of interest rate swap is
not shown separately.
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39. Financial risk review (Continued)
A. Credit risk

i Collateral held and other credit enhancements
The Company holds collateral and other credit enhancements against certain of its credit exposures
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty.
The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

For housing leans, mortgage against residential property is obtained. For loan against property, mortgage against residential and commercial property is
obtained. For Construction finance, additionally mortgapge over residential and commercial project is obtained,

The table represents categories of collaterals available against the loan exposures;

Particulars Category of collateral available

Financial assets
Term Loans

Housing Loans Mortgages over residential properties
Charges over:
Non housing loan / Retained portion of 1) real estate properties (including residential and commercial),
assigned [oans land and under construction flat
if) marketable securities (equity)
Credit Substitutes Unsecured loan
Others
Loan to TCL Employes Welfare Trust Unsecured loan

Assets obtained by taking possession of collateral.

The Company's collection policy is to pursue timely realisation of the collateral in an orderly manner. The Company upot a customer account becoming
delinquent, undertakes the process to physically repossess properties with the help of legal proceeding to recover funds and setile outstanding debt. Any
surplus funds if any received are returned to the custemers/obligors. As a resuit of this practice, the residential properties under legal repossession
processes are not recorded on the balance sheet and not treated as non—current assets held for sale. Asset in the form of real estate property received
upon final settlement of the loan is recorded as non-current assets held for sale.

Loans granted by the Company are secured by any or all of the following as applicable, based on their categorisation:
a) Equitable / registered mortgage of property.

b) Undertaking to create a security.

¢) Against securities.

Manapement monitors the market value of collateral as per the Credit monitoring process and will request additional collateral in accordance with the
underlying agreement as applicable.
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39. Financial risk review (Continued)
A. Credit risk

ii Collateral held and other credit enhancements (continued)

The table show the value of the credit impaired asset and the value of the collateral available.

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Credit . Credit S .
Impaired Security held Impaired ecurity held
Loans
Housing Loans 178.36 486.19 35851 685.20
Non housing loan 315.53 387.22 226.67 361.29
Total 493.89 873.41 585.18 1,046.49
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Financial risk review (Continued)
Credit risk
Amounts arising from ECL

Impairment allowance on financizl asset is covered in note 2 (xi)

Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used for estimating ECL

Inputs:

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Company’s historical experience, expert credit assessment and
including forward looking information.

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on days past due, which is a quantitative factor that indicates the risk
of default. Additional qualitative factors are applied such as fraudulent customer, reschedulement of loans and discontinued portfolios are
also considered as qualitative factor.

These factors are applied uniformly for each lending preduct. Upon review the committee may conclude that the account qualifies for
classification as stage 2 since there is increase in credit risk. The determination of the credit risk is for each product, considering the
unique risk and rewards associated with it. The Company has observed varied level of risk across various buckets within each stage and a
significant increase in risk in stage 2, based on assessment of qualitative parameters such as decline in net-worth, downgrade in internal
ratings and external ratings.

The objective of the ECL assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for an exposure by
comparing the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with the remaining lifetime PD for this point in
time that was estimated at the time of initial recognition of the exposure and adjusted for changes on account of prepayments,

In assessing the impairment of loan assets under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model, the loans have been segmented into three stages
based on the risk profiles. The three stages reflect the general pattemn of credit deterioration of a financial instrument,

Refer note 2(xi) in Significant accounting policies for definition of Stages of Asset.

Assumptions:

The Company has applied following assumptions for determination of ECL.

Loss given default (LGD) is an estimate of loss from a transaction given that a default occurs.

Probability of default (PD) is defined as the probability of whether the borrowers will default on their obligations in the future. For assets
which are in Stage 1, a 12-month PD is required. For Stage 2 assets a lifetime PD is required while Stage 3 assets are considered to have
a 100% PD.

Exposure at default (EAD) represents the expected exposure in the event of a default and is the gross carrying amount in case of the
financial assets held by the Company including lean commitments.

Definition of default: A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make the contractual payments within 90 days of
when they fall due. Accordingly, the financial assets shall be classiffed as Stage 3, if on the reporting date, it has been 90 days past due,
Further if the customer has requested forbearance in repayment terms, such restructured, rescheduled or renegotiated accounts are alse
classified as Stage 3. Non-payment on another obligation of the same customer is also considered as a stage 3. Once an account defaults
as a result of the days past due condition, it will be considered to be cured only when entire arrears of interest and principal are paid by
the borrower.

Forward looking information

The Company incorporates forward looking information into both assessments of whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased
significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement of ECL. Based on the consideration of a variety of external actual and
forecast information, the Company forms a ‘base case’ view of the future direction of relevant economic variables such as real GDP,
domestic credit growth, meney market interest rate etc. as well as a representative range of other possible forecast scenarios. This
process involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each outcome. The
base case represents a most likely outcome while the other scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes. More
weight is applied to pessimistic outcome consistently as a matter of prudence than optimistic outcome.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

The credit risk on a financial asset of the Company are assumed to have increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
paymendts are more than 30 days past due. Additionally, accounts identified and reviewed by the Executive committez for labelling as
breaching pre-defined critical credit risk parameters will also be classified as stage 2, Accordingly, the financial assets shall be classified
as Stage 2, based on the quantitative as well as qualitative factors.
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39. Financial risk review (Continued)
A, Credit risk
iti Amounts arising from ECL
3) Estimation techniques:

The Company has applied the following estimation technique for ECL model:

a) The Company has used histeric default rates for calenlating the 12-month PD and Lifetime PDs

b} Loss given default is calculated afier considering outstanding at the time of default and adjusting for actual recoveries basis time value of
money.

c)  Credit risk monitoring techniques
Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoring, which may indicate that a significant increase in credit risk has occurred on an exposure.
The monitoring typically involves use of the following data for Corporate and Retail exposures:
i) Overdue status
ii) Restructuring, reschedulement of loans and requests for granting of forbearance
iil) Frauduient customer
iv) Exit directed by the Risk Management Committee
v} Accounts classified by SICR, committee indicating significant increase in credit risk
vi) Information published in the Basel IRB (Basel internal rating based approach refers to set of credit measurement techniques proposed by
the Basel committee on Bank Supervision ( BCBS) for capital adequacy purpose) norms is also used,

d) Days past due are a primary input for the determination of the PD for exposures. The Company collects performance and default
information about its credit risk exposures analysed by product. For some portfolios, information published in Basel IRB norms is also
used.

e} The Company employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of the remaining lifetime -PD of exposures
and how these are expected to change as a result of the passage of time. Such statistical models are selected considering the availability
of information related to the probability of default for each product.

This analysis includes the identification and calibration of relationships between changes in default rates and changes in key macro-
economic factors. Key macro-ecenomic indicators include but are not limited to Private consumption, Real GDP, Consumer prices, Long:
term bond yield, Unemployment rate, Gross fixed investment rate etc.

For the purpose of determination of impact of forward-looking information, the Company applies various macro-economic (ME)
variables as stated above to each product and assess the trend of the historical probability of defaults as compared to the forecasted
probability of default. Based on the directional trend of output, management applies an overlay if required. Overtime, new ME variable
may emerge to have a better correlation and may replace ME being used now.

f) Based on advice from the external risk management experts, the Company considered variety of external actual and forecast information
to formulate a ‘base case’ view of the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a representative range of other possible
forecast scenarios. Such forecasts are adjusted to estimate the PDs.

g) Predicted relationships between the key indicators and default and loss rates on various portfolios of financial assets have been
developed based on analysing historical data over the past 5 years.
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Financial risk review (Continued)
Credit risk

Amounts arising from ECL

A maximum of a 12-month PD or actual contractual tenure is considered for financial assets for which credit risk has not significantly
increased. The Company measures ECL for stage 2 and stage 3 assets considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual
period over which it is exposed to credit risk.

The loans are segmented into homogenous product categories to determine the historical PD/LGD. This segmentation is subject to
regular review.,

For portfolios in respect of which the Company has limited historical data, external benchmark information is used to supplement the
internally available data.

Techniques for determining LGD:

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Company estimates LGD parameters based on the history of recovery
rates against defaulted counterparties, The LGD models consider the cash flow received and assets received in lisu of settlement of loan.
LGD estimates are calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the contractual interest rate (approximation to expected EIR) as the
discounting factor, The Company has adopted collection curve method for computation of loss given defaults to determine expected
credit losses. In the Absence of observed history of default, LGD applied is based on Basel IRB norms for certain products.

Technigues for computation of EAD

a) EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Company derives the EAD from the current exposure to the
counterparty. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount. For lending commitments, the EAD includes the amount drawn,
as well as potential future amounts that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on credit conversion factor for
various loan commitments.

b) When estimating ECL for undrawn loan commitments, the company estimates the expected portion of the loan commitment that will
be drawn down over its expecied life. ECL is the difference between the present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to the Company if the holder of the commitment draws down the loan and the cash flows that the Company expects to
recetve if the loan is drawn down.
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Financial risk review (Continued)

Credit risk

Amounts arising from ECL

ing amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to lending is, as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 35,730.97 1,417.32 585.18  37,733.47 26,923.64 1,918.00 469.52 2931116
New assets originated or purchased (including 5 55 9 19.73 537 2337849 2372790 94420 21564  24,887.74
charges levied on existing exposure)
:;Z";'ts derecognised or repaid (excluding wiite o o)) 00y (05 g6)  (168.11)  (5.989.06) (14852.26) (1349.48) (17392) (16.375.66)
Transfers to Stage 1 88.68 (64.82)  (23.86) - 14701  (73.08)  (73.93) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (190.55) 22040 (20.85) - (78.40) 0.99 (12.59) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (96.86)  (105.52)  202.3% . (136.53)  (111.34) 247.87 -
Amounts written off* . G60  (77.22) {80.82) (0.39) (1979 874D (89.77)
Gross carrying amount closing balance 50,363.54 1,184,685 493.89 52,042.08 35,730.57 1,417.32 585.18 37,733.47
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total
ECL allowance - opening balance 138.46 291.24 348.65 778.35 91.20 416.10 256.87 764.17
New assets originated or purchased (including 87.05 3.44 45.11 135.60 $0.50 18242 149.15 412,16
re-measurement)
itfg;‘s derecognised o repaid (excluding write (7.80)  (109.19)  (12126)  (23825) S6S0 (260.20)  (12971)  (33341)
Transfers to Stage 1 0.58 (0.48) (0.10) - 0.68 (0.43) {0.25) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (19.48) 25.52 (6.04) - (3.81) 10.59 (1.78) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (37.05) (37.44) 7449 - (BLT0)  (5656) 13826 -
Amounts written off * - (043)  (54.34) (54.77) - (0.68)  (63.89) (64.57)
ECL allowance - closing balance 161.76 2&66 286.51 620.93 138.46 291.24 34&65 778.35

* The above amount written off is subject to the enforcement of the security.
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Financial risk review (Continued)

Credit risk

Amounts arising from ECL
Modifted financial assets

The Company renegotiates loans given to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as forbearance activities, restructuring or
rescheduling) to maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of default. Under the Companies forbearance policy, loan
forbearance is granted on a selective basis if the customer is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk of default, there is
evidence that the customer made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the customer is expected to be
able to meet the revised terms,

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments and amending the terms of loan
covenants, Both retail and corporate loans are subject to the forbearance policy. The Risk Management Committee regularly reviews
reports on forbearance activities.

Upon renegotiation, such accounts are classified as stage 3. Such accounts are upgraded to stage 1 only upon observation of satisfactory
repayments for at least one year from the commencement of the first payment of interest or principal (whichever is later).

Pursuant to RBI Covid restructuring policy, accounts for which Covid restruciuring facility were given have been reclassified from
Stage I to Stage II if DPD at invocation was between 0-30 and If the DPD was 30+ then the accounts were further downgraded within
Stage II and corresponding staging wise ECL provision was done.

Exposure to modified financial assets

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Amortised Cost Amortised Cost

Loan exposure to modified financial assets
(i) Gross carrying amount 1,055.78 1,444.39
(ii) Impairment allowance 228.31 345.52

(iii} Net carrying amount (i-if) 827.47 1,098.87
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39. Financial risk review (Continued)

A Credit risk
Loans by Division

iv.  Credit concentration by division under various stages:

1) Lean exposure by division
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on year-end stage classification of Loans by division. The amounts
presented are gross of impairment allowances.

a) Gross carrying amount of As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Divisien
Housing 35,604.88 603.86 31553 36,524.27 26,032.46 684.75 358.51 27,075.72
Non Housing 14,756.29 580.79 178.36 15,515.44 9,696.14 732.57 226,67 10,655.38
Others 2.37 - - 2.37 237 - - 237
Total 50,363.54 1,184.65 493,89 52,042.08 35,730.97 1,417.32 585,18 37,733.47

b) Impairment allowance pn As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
Leans Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Days past due
Housing 111.78 104.36 197.91 414,05 106.86 179.75 22422 510.83
Non Housing 49.97 68.30 88.60 206.87 31.59 111.49 124.43 267.51
Others 0.01 - - 0.01 0.01 - - 0.01
Total 161.76 172.66 286.51 620,93 138.46 291.24 348.65 778.35
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B.

Financial risk review (Continued)

Liquidity risk

For the definition of liquidity risk and information on how liquidity risk is managed by the Company, see Note 38.

Exposure to liguidity risk
The Company has set tolerance limits in the light of the Company’s business objectives, strategic direction and overall risk appetite. The tolerance

limits reflects balance between profitability and managing liquidity risk and considers Company’s current financial condition and funding capacity,
The Company maintains liquidity buffer of unencumbered highly liquid assets (if required) to insure against adverse liquidity events.
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Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Slntemenls (Continued)

Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs.in crore)
39. Financlal risk review (Continged)
B.  Liquidity risk
il. i is of inbifiti
The table below set out camrying amount of assets and lisbilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. With regard to loans and advances
10 customers, the Company uses the same basis of expected repay behaviour a8 used for estimating the EIR, Issued debt reflect the contractual coupen
amortisations,
ASSETS Az at March 31,2024 Ay at March 31,2023
Within 12 After 12 months Total Within 12 After 12 months Total
months monthy
Financial acsets .
Cash and cash equivalents 1,658.11 - 1,658,11 698,28 - 698.28
Balances with bank in deposit account 5064 0.38 5102 0.52 - 0.52
Derivatives financial instruments - 49.50 49.50 - 4513 45.13
Trade Receivables 2938 - 2938 2535 - 1538
Loans 9,687.51 - 41,7437 51,401.88 T,156.79 29,759.92 36,916.71
Investmenty 961,83 T.46 969.29 2,643.56 487 2,648.43
Other financial assets 16,63 - 16.63 16.24 - 16.24
Noo-flnanclal Azsets
Current tax assets (Net) 527 - 5327 13.83 - 13.83
Deferred tax Assets (Net) - 79.23 7923 - 136.30 136.30
Investment propesty - 3.02 3.02 - an 321
Property, Plant and Equipment - 69.50 69.50 - 46.29 1619
Capml work-in-progress - 0.08 0,08 - 10.16 10.16
ible assets under develop . 1.04 1.04 - 0.18 0.18
Other intangible assets } - 8.36 8.56 - 8.01 8.01
Right of use assets - 11472 114,72 - 76.38 7638
Other non-Enancial asgets - 18,11 18.11 - 15.37 1537
Total Assets —d A0S 5447534 L 3 0582 20,660.39
B.  Liquidity risk (Continued)
ii.  Matority apalvyis of sysets and liabilitics (Continued)
LIABILITIES Az at March 31, 2024 As 8t March 31, 2023
Within 12 After 12 months Total Within 12 After 12 months Total
meonths montha
Finaccizl Lisbllities
Derivative financial instnsments 0.18 539 6.57 0.07 0.09 0.16
Trade Payables
= Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and 127 - 127 227 - 227
small enterprises
- Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than 157.14 - 157.14 13020 - 131.20
micro enterprises and small enterprises
IDebt Securities 6,584 14,853.24 2143797 4,319.72 11,967.71 16,287.43
Bomrowings (Other than debt securities) 7.670.37 16,785.45 2445583 5,029.18 12,610.31 17.639.49
[ Subordinated lisbilities 99.14 1,278.04 1,377.18 157.58 948,00 1,105.58
Lease Liebilities 16.14 106.18 122.32 12,49 65.44 7893
Other financial lishilities 85,36 - 8536 - 41546 - 41546
Noo-Fingncial Liabilities
Current tax lisbilities (Net) 2499 - 24.99 3931 - 9.3
Provitions 27,75 7.45 . 35.20 3333 6.61 3994
Other non-financial liabilities 60.51 - 6051 36,58 - 36.58
Total Gabilities 14,727.58 133,036.76 47,764.34 10,197.1% 25,599.16 35,796.38
Net 2.313.21 9.029.21 6,711.00 357.37 4.506.67 4.864.04
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39.

B.

Financial risk review (Continued)

Liquidity risk
Finaneial assets position- pledged/unpledeed

The total financial assets demonstrating position of pledged and not pledged assets are shown in the below table: -

ASSETS

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with bank in deposit account
Trade Receivables '

|Loans

Investments
Other financial assets

Non-financial Assets

Cument tax asset

Deferred tax Assets (Net)
Investment property

Property, Plant and Equipment
Capital work-in-progress

Intangible assets under development
Other intangible assets

Right of use assets

Other non-financial assets

Total Assets

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
Pledged Not Pledged Total Pledged ~ Not Pledged Total
52,852.61 1,323.20 54,175.81 39,531.94 818.72 40,350.66
1,658.11 - T 1,688.11 698.28 - 698.28
- 51.02 51.02 - 0.52 0.52
- 2938 2938 - 2535 2535
51,194.50 207.38 51,401.88 36,680.18 236,53 36.916.71
- 969.29 969,20 2,153.48 494,95 2,648.43
- 16.63 16.63 - 16.24 16.24
0.22 2_9_9.31 299.53 0.24 305.49 309.73
- 5.27 527 - 13.83 13.83
- 79.23 79.23 - 13630 136,30
0.22 2,80 3.02 0.24 297 321
- 69.50 69.50 - 46.29 46.29
- 0.08 0.08 - 10.16 10.16
- 1.04 1.04 . 0.18 0.18
- 8.56 3.56 - "8.01 8.01
- 114.72 114,72 - 7638 7638
- 18.11 . 1811 - 15.37 15.37
52,852,383 1,622.51 54,47534 39,532.18 1,128,21 40,660.39
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

39. Financial risk review (Continued)
C. Market risk

i For the definition of market risk and information on how the company manages the market risks of trading and non-trading
portfolios, see Note 38.

The following table sets out the allocation of assets and liabilities to non-trading portfolios. The Company does not allocate
the assets and liabilities to trading portfolios.

Carrying amount Market risk measure
i As at March 31, As at March 31,
‘| Assets subject to market risk 2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 1,658.11 698.28
Balances with bank in deposit account 51.02 0.52
Derivative financial instruments 49.50 45.13
Receivables 29.38 25.35
Loans 51,401.88 36,916.71
Investments 7.46 2,158.79
Other Financial Assets 16.63 16.24
Liabilities subject to market risk
Derivative financial instruments 6.57 0.16
Trade payables 158.41 133.47
Debt securities 21,437.97 16,287.43
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 24,455.83 17,639.49
Subordinated liabilities 1,377.18 1,105.58
Lease Liabilities 122.32 78.93
Other financial liabilities 85.36 415.46
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

39. Financial risk review (Continued)
C. Market risk

ii Exposure to interest rate risk — Non-trading portfolios

The Company carries out interest rate sensitivity analysis to assess the impact on earnings of interest rate movement considering the rate sensitive
assets and rate sensitive liabilities upto one year period. The fixed rate assets and liabilities which are falling due on residual basis within one year
have been considered as floating rate assets and liabilities basis the minimum of ‘inferest rate reset date or maturity of the contract’, The basis risk
between various benchmark linked to assets and liabilities are considered to be insignificant.

Below table illustrates impact on eamings on account of 100 bps change on in interest rate on the assets and liabilities due for repayment / rate reset in

next one year.

As at March 31, 2024

Rate sensitive Less than 1 Year @ 100bps change @ 100bps change
increase decrease

Rate sensitive assets 56,957.08 543.06 (543.06)

Rate sensitive liabilities 33,147.81 246.51 (246.51)

Net Gap ( Asset - liability) 23,809.26 286.55 (296.55)

As at March 31, 2023

Rate sensitive Less than 1 Year @ 100bps change @ 100bps change
increase decrease|

Rate sensitive assets 45,141.68 412.56 (412.56)

Rate sensitive liabilities 22.368.08 161.93 {161.93)

Net Gap ( Asset - liability) 22,773.59 250.63 (250.63)

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the break-up of borrowings into variable rate and fixed rate

. As at As at
Particul
Arfieiars March 31,2024  March 31,2023
Variable rate borrowings 46% 42%
Fixed rate borrowings 54% 58%
Total borrowings ) 100% 100%

fit Exposure to currency risks — Non-trading portfolios

There are no exposure to foreign currency risks in the non trading portfolio as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, since Company has entered
into derivative contract to fully hedge the risk, (Refer Note no. 6 for disclosure relating to derivative financial instruments.)
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
39. Financial risk review (Continued)

C. Market risk

iv Disclosure persuant to Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™

Changes in Liabilities arising from financing activities

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars April 1, 2023 Cash Flows (Net) Exchange Others March 31, 2024
Difference

Debt Securities [6,287.43 5,096.00 - 54.54 21,437.97

Borrowings {Other than debt securities) 17,639.4% 6,789.54 12.34 14,46 24,455.83

Subordinated liabilities 1,105.58 25991 - 11.69 1,377.18

Total 35,032.50 12,145.45 12.34 80.69 47,270.98

Other column includes the effect of interest accrued but not due, amortisation of borrowing cost, amortisation of premium/discount on CPs/NCDs.

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars April 1, 2022 Cash Flows (Net) Exchange Others March 31, 2023
Difference

Debt Securities 12,378.68 3,723.68 - 185,07 16,287.43

Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 13,784.04 3,805.54 (17.21) 67.12 17,639.49

Subordinated liabilities 1,054.90 45.70 - 0.98 1,105.58

Total 27,217.62 7,578.92 (17.21) 253.17 35,032.50

Other column includes the effect of interest accrued but not due, amortisation of borrowing cost, amortisation of premium/discount on CPs/NCDs.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
39. Financial risk review (Continued)
D. Capital management

i Regulatory capital

The National Housing Bank (NHBY) sets and monitors capital adequacy requirements for the Company from time to time.
The Company's regulatory capital consists of the sum of the following elements.

Tier 1 Capital includes:

1) Ordinary share capital,

2) Securities premium reserve,

3) Retained earnings,

4) Special reserve

3) General reserve

Tier 1 Capital does not include unrealised fair value gain/loss booked for financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss.
Following items are dedueted from Tier I

a) Intangibles

b) Deferred revenue expenditure for raising borrowings

¢) Deferred tax assets

d) Prepatd expenses and unamortised loan acquisition cost

¢) Right of use assets

Tier II capital includes
1} subordinated debt
2) impairment allowance provisioning for stage 1 financial assets to the extent the same does not exceed 1.25% of Risk weighted assets




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
39. Financial risk review (Continued)

D.  Capital management
ii Regulatory capital

The Company’s capital management strategy is to effectively determine, raise and deploy capital so as to create value for
its shareholders. The same is done through a mix of either equity and/or convertible and/or combination of short term /long
term debt as may be appropriate.

The Company is subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the National Housing Board (NHB). Under NHB’s capital
adequacy guidelines, the Company is required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio consisting of Tier I and Tier IT Capital.
The total of Tier II Capital at any point of time, shall not exceed 100 percent of Tier I Capital.

The minimum capital ratio as prescribed by RBI guidelines and applicable to the Company, consisting of Tier I and Tier II
capital, shall not be less than 15 percent of its aggregate risk weighted assets on-balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of
off-balance sheet.

Particulars As at March 31, Asat March 31,
2024 2023
Ordinary share capital 596.15 570.75
Securities premium reserve 3,008.07 2,333.51
Retained earnings 2,280.11 1,358.45
Special reserve 803.85 57432
General reserve 10.62 4.13
Less:
-Deferred revenue expenditure (32.11) (33.31)
-Software (8.56) (8.01)
-Intangible assets under development (1.04) (0.18)
-Unamortised loan acquisition cost (171.11) (101.14)
-Deferred tax asset (79.23) (136.30)
-Right of use assets (114.72) (76.38)
Tier I Capital 6,292.03 4,485.84
Subordinate Debt 998.04 787.64
Impairment loss allowance 189.51 171.76
Tier II Capital 1,187.55 959.40
Tier I + Tier 11 Capital 7,479.58 5,445.24
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Rs. in crore)

39.

D.

iii

Financial risk review (Continued)

Capital management

Capital allocation

Management uses regulatory capital ratios to monitor its capital base. The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities is, to a
large extent, driven by optimisation of the retumn achieved on the capital allocated. The process of allocating capital to specific operations and
activities is undertaken independently of those responsible for the operation by Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCQ).

Although maximisation of the return on risk-adjusted capital is the principal basis used in determining how capital is allocated within the Company
to particular operations or activities, it is not the sole basis used for decision making. Account is also taken of synergies with other operations and
activities, the availability of management and other resources, and the fit of the activity with the Company's longer-term strategic objectives, The
Company's policies in respect of capital management and allocation are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)
40, Leases:

As a lessee the Company classified property leases as operating leases under Ind AS 116. These include residential premises taken on lease for employee
residence and office premises for branches, The leases typically run for a period of one to seven years. Leases include conditions such as non-cancellable
period i.e. lock in period, notice period before terminating the lease or escalation of rent upon completion of part tenure of the lease in line with inflation
in prices.

Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities are presented separately on the face of the Balance Sheet.

Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below.

Right-of-use assets

Particulars Ason March 31,2024  As on March 31,2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 76.38 36.25
Additions during the year 63.08 5436
Deletion during the year (2.55) (0.43)
Depreciation charge for the year 22.19) (13.80)
Balance at the end of the year 114,72 76.38
Movement of Lease liabilities

Particulars As on March 31, 2024 As on March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 78.93 40.41
Additions during the year 61.63 49.45
Deletion during the year (3.02) (0.65)
Finance cost for the year 8.90 5.07
Payment of lease liabilities for the year (24.12) (15.35)
Balance at the end of the year 122.32 78.93

Future minimam lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were payable as follows:

Particulars As on March 31, 2024 As on March 31, 2023
Less than ohe month 2.18 1.57
Between one and three months 429 3.05
Between three months and one year 17.95 13,03
Between one and five years 86.77 55,68
More than five years 44.43 2559
Total 155.62 98.92
Amonnts recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars As on March 31,2024  As on March 31, 2023
Interest on lease liabilities 8.20 5.07
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets 22,19 13.80
Gain/(loss) on termination of [eases 0.49 0.11
Rent concession related to COVID-19 - 0.04
Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows:

Particulars As on March 31, 2024 As on March 31, 2023
Total cash outflow for leases (24.12) (15.35)

The Company has considered entire lease term for the purpese of determination of Right of Use assets and Lease liabilities.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

41. Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation
Directions, 2023 as amended

41.1  Capital

(Rs. in crore)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
(D) CRAR (%) 18.80% 18.20%
(i) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 15.82% 15.00%
(iii)  CRAR = Tier Il Capital (%) 298% 3.20%
(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- IT Capital 300.00 129.00
V) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instraments - -

41,2 There were no unhedged foreign currency transactions during current year (March 31, 2023 Rs. Nil).

41,3 The Company has not dene any Securitisation during the financial year. (March 31, 2023: Rs Nil).

41.4  Details of Financial Assets sold to Secaritisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023: Rs Nil),
415 Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by HFCs is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023: Rs Nil).

41.6  The Company does not have purchase / sale transaction of non-performing financial asset {March 31, 2023: Rs Nil).

41,7 Asset Liability Management

Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities as per NHB format
For the year 2023-24

(Rs, in crore)
Liabilities Assets
Particulars Borrowings Market Foreign Advances#  Investments Foreign
from Banks Borrowings Currency Currency
Liabllities Assets
1 day to 7 days 28.38 1.32 - 520,22 961.83 -
8 days to 14 days 122 0.39 0.54 02,61 - -
15 days to 30/ 31 days 231.83 14.12 - 285.55 - -
Over One month to 2 months 1,156.22 1,758.70 3.79 754.08 - -
Over 2 months puts 3 months 1,730.00 558.78 - 724.92 - -
Over 3 months to 6 months 1,564.34 1,433.54 - 2,257.29 - -
Over 6 months to 1 year 2,954.05 2,917.02 - 4,842.84 - -
Over 1 year to 3 years 9,326.53 5,805.50 831.47 6,261.67 7.46 -
Over 3 years to 5 years 5,505.26 5,042.84 - 4,892.31 - -
Over 5 years 1,122,20 5,282.94 - 30,560.39 - -
Total 23,620,03 22,815.15 835.80 51,401.88 969.29 -

#Loans reporting as per ALM includes Stage I and II provisions and excludes Stage ITl {net of provisions)
Assets and liabilities bifiercation into various buckets is based on NHB guidelines.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

41. Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.N0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation
Directions, 2023 as amended

41.7  Asset Liability Management (Continued)

For the year 2022-23
(Rs. in crore)
Liabilities Asgets

Particulars Borrowings Market Foreign Advances#  Investments Foreign

from Banks Borrowings Currency Currency

Liabilities Assets
1 day to 7 days - - - 167.26 2,646.28 -
8 days to 14 days 221.92 - - 196.06 - -
15 days to 30/ 31 days 479.96 27.10 - 210.12 - -
Over One month to 2 months 160,65 471.00 - 558.14 - -
Over 2 months puts 3 months 1,266,91 200,00 - 594.53 - -
Qver 3 months to 6 months 994,82 954,89 - 1,976.47 - -
Over 6 months to 1 year 1,904.94 2,814,30 - 3,45421 - -
Over ] year 1o 3 years 7,398.32 3,790.23 821.94 499537 215 -
Over 3 years to 5 years 3,514.28 4,874.84 - 3,120.13 - -
Over § years 875.76 4,250.64 - 21,644.42 - -
Total 16!817.55 17,393.01 §21.94 36,916.71 2,648.43 -
#Loans reporting as per ALM includes Stage I and Il provisions and exchudes Stage IT (net of provisions)
Assets and liabilities bifurcation into various buckets is based on NHB guidelines.
41.8 Exposure
41.8.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector
(R3, in crore)

Category 2013-24 2022-23

a) Direct Exposure

m Residential Mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is 53,230.61 40,424.75
rented

(i) Commercial Real Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial 1eal estates (office buildings, retafl space, multipurpose 7,067.67 4,128.73
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, ete,). Exposure includes non-fund
based (NFB) limits.
(i) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
2. Residential - -
b. Commercial Real Estate - -
b) Indirect Exposure

Fund based and noan-fund based exposures on National Heusing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies - -
{HFCs)

Total 60,298.28 44,553.48

Note : Exposure to Real Estate Sector includes accrued interest and undrawn commitment given to borrowers.
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41. Disclosure of details as required by Notificatien No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.-HFC.CC.N0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direcfion — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation
Directions, 2023 as amended

41.8  Exposure (Continued)

41.8.2 Exposure to Capital Market

(Rs. in crore)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
(D Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented - -
mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;
(ii) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment - -
in shares (incleding IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-orfented
mutual funds;
(iiiy  Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity - -
oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;
(iv)  Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds - -
or convertible debentures or nnits of equity orented mutual funds ie, where the primary security other than
shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity criented mutual funds does not fully cover
the advances;
) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market - -
makers;
(vi)  Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean 501.81 55.49
basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companics in anticipation of raising resowrces;
(vii)  Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; - -
(viii)  All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (beth registered and unregistered) - -
‘Total Exposure to Capital Market 501.81 55.49

41.8.3 No Parent Company products were financed during the year (March 31, 2023: Rs Nil).

41.8.4 The Exposure to a single borrower and group of borrower does not exceed the limit stipulated by the NHB prudential norms applicable to HFC
(March 31, 2023: Rs Nil).

41.8.5 Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business

5L No, Description Amount %of ed Amount %of ed

Fund Fund
2023-24 2023-24 2022223 2022.23
] Exposure to any single entity in a group engaged in real estate basiness - - - -
(if) Exposure to all entities in a growp engaged in real estate business : - - -

41.9  Miscellaneous

41.9.1 The Company has following Registrations effective as on March 31, 2024:

Issuing Authority Registration No., if  Date of Valid upto Registered ns
any registration
National Housing Bank 04.0073.09 02-Apr-09 - Housing finance institution
without permission to accept|
public deposits.
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India CAO870 21-Sep-23 20-8ep-26 Corporate agent

41.9.2 No penzlties has been imposed on the Company during the year (March 31, 2023: Rs Nil).

41.9.3 No loans granted apainst the coflateral gold jewellery by the company (March 31, 2023: Rs Nil).
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(Rs. in crore)
41. Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17, 2021 as amended noder Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Repulation
Directions, 2023 as amended

41,9.4 Group $tructure

Ultitnate holding Company Tata Sons Private Limited
Holding Company Tata Capital Limited
Subsidiaries of Holding Company Tata Capital Pte, Limited
Tata Capital Growth Fund T
Tata Capital Special Situation Fund
Tata Capital Healthcare Fund I
Tata Capital Healthcare Fund IT
Tata Capital Innovations Fund
Tata Capital Growth Fund I
Tata Capital Growth 11 General Partners LLP
Tata Capital Advisors Pte. Ltd.
Tata Capital Plc
Tata Capital General Parmers LLP
Tata Capital Healthcare General Partners LLP
Tata Opportunities General Partners LLP
Tata Securities Limited
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited (merged with Tata Capital Limited w.e.f.
January 01, 2024)
Tata Capital Healthcare 11 General Partners LLP
Tata Cleantech Capital Limited {merged with Tata Capital Limited w.e.f January
01, 2024)
TCL Employee Welfare Trust
Retiral Plans of Holding Company Teta Capital Limited Gratuity Scheme
Tata Capital Limited Employees Provident Fund Trust
Tata Capital Limited Superannuation Scheme

41.9.5 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year,

3] Rating Assigned to Short Term Debt, Long Term Debt, Tier I Debt
(ii) Date of Rating ICRA - 24th November, 2023, CRISIL - 4th March, 2024, IND - 1st November,
2023
(iii)  Rating Valid up to ICRA - 23rd November, 2024, CRISIL - 4th March 2025, IND - 31st October 2024
(iv)  Name ofthe Rating Agency ICRA Limited (ICRA), CRISIL Ratings Limited {CRISIL) and India Ratings and
Research Private Limited (IND)
(A2 Rating of products
(a) Commmercial Paper [ICRAJA 1+ and CRISIL Al+
(b) Secured Non-Convertible Debentures (Listed) CRISIL AAA /Stable and [ICRA] AAA (Stable)

(c) Secured Non-Convertible Debentures {Unlisted) CRISIL AAA /5table
{d) Secured Non-Convertible Debentures - Market linked

Debentures CRISIL PPMLD AAA/Stable

(e) Unsecured Sub Debt Tier II Debentures CRISIL AAA /Stable and [ICRA] AAA (Stable)

(f) Secured Non-Convertible Debentures - Public CRISIL AAA /Stable, [ICRAJAAA (Stable) and IND AAA/ Stable
{g) Long Term Bank Loans CRISIL AAA/ Stable and IND AAA/Stable

During the year under review, rating agencies re-affirmed/fissued ratings to the Company as above,
41.10 Additional Disclosures

41.10.1 Provisions and Contingencies

(Ra. in crore)
Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies® shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account 2023-24 2022-23
(i) Pravision made / (reversed) towards income tax 391.46 280.13
(i) Provision made / (reversed) towards NPA [Impairment allowance - stape III (net of recoveries)] (63,53) 85,95
(iify  Provision made / (reversed) for standard assets [Impainment allowance - stage I & II] - (100.85) (68.68)
(iv) Provision made / (reversed) for trade receivables 1591 14,87
(iv) Provision made / (reversed) for depreciation on fixed assets 44,39 27.86
(v) Provision made / (reversed) for grajut 2,57 4.33
(vi) Provision made / (reversed) for ¢ 441 3.16
(vii}  Provision made / (reversed) fo, Eng s 0.08 0.04

%ﬁﬁn Ar',(‘Jo‘b
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

41, Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation
Directions, 2023 as amended

The Company has assessed its obligations arising in the normal course of business, proceedings pending with tax authorities and other contracts
including derivative and long term contracts. In accordance with the provisiens of Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 37 on ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Centingent Assets”, the Company recognises a provision for material foreseeable kosses when it has a present obligation as a result of a
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. In
cases where the available information indicates that the loss on the contingency is reasonably possible but the amount of loss cannot be reasonably
gstimated, a disclosure to this effect is made as contingent liabilities in the financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these
proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial statements.

41,10,2 The disclosure for drawdown of reserves during the year has been disclosed in Note no 21.

41.10.3 The disclosure of the Concentration of Deposits taken is not applicable as the Company carries oo the business of a housing finance institation
without accepting public deposits (March 31, 2023: Rs Nil).

41.10.4 Concentration of Loans & Advances

(Rs. in crore)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Toetal Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers # 4,100.95 3,034 81
Percentage of Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the HFC 7.88% 8.04%
# Includes Loans & Advances and interest accrued thereon,
41,10.5 Concentration of all Exposure {including off-balance sheet exposure)
(Rs. in crore)
Particolars 2023-24 2022-23
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers # 5,325.93 4,365.05
Percentape of Exposure to twenty largest bommowers / customers to Total Exposure of the HFC on borrowers / customers
8.83% 9.80%
# Includes Loans & Advances and interest accrued and undrawn exposure thereon.
41.10.6 Concentration of NPAs
(Rs. in crore)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Total Exposure to top ten NPA aceounts 153.44 163.97
41.10 Additional Disclosures (Continued)
41.10.7 Sector-wise NPAs
Sr. No. Sector Percentage of NPAs to Total Percentage of NFAs to Total
Advances in that sector Advances in that sector
2023-24 2022-23
A. Housing 0.86% 1.32%
1. Individuals 0.68% 1.08%
2. Builders/Project 1.88% 236%
3. Corporates 0.87% 2.95%
4, Others (specify) 0.00% 0.00%
B. Non-Housing 1.15% 2,13%
1. Individuals 124% 2.17%
2. Builders/Project 1.42% 2.64%
3. Corporates 0.35% 1.07%
4. Others (specify) 0.00% 0.00%
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
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41, Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RB1/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation
Directions, 2023 as amended

41.10.8 Movement of NPAg

(Rs. in crore)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
(1) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.40% 0.63%
(11) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance 585.18 469.52
b) Additions during the year 207.67 406.14
¢) Reductions during the year (298.96) (290,48)
d) Closing balange 493.89 585.18
(I  Movement of Net NPAs
) Opening balance ’ 236.53 212,65
b) Additions during the year 7 88.63 152,82
¢) Reductions during the year (117.78) (128.94)
d) Closing balance 207.38 236,53
(IV)  Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
a) Opening balance 348.65 256,87
b) Additions during the year 119.04 253.32
c) Reductions during the year (181.18) (161.54)
d) Closing balance 286.51 348.65

Note: The movement of Gross NPA, Provisions for NPA and Net NPA presented above excludes NPA identified and regularized in the same financial
year.

41.10.9 The company does not have overseas asset as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 - Nil).
41,10,10 The Company has not sponsored any SPVs, Accordingly there is no disclosure applicable (March 31, 2023 : Nil}.

41,1011 The Company has not undertaken any transaction for currency fatures and currency options. Accordingly there is no disclosure applicable
(March 31, 2023 : Nil)

41.10,12 There are no material prior period items which are impacting Company’s cutrent year profit and loss (March 31, 2023 : Nil).

41,10,13 Since the Company does not have significant uncertainties pending resolutions as at March 31, 2024, revenue recognition has not been
postponed. (March 31, 2023 : Nil).

41.11 Customers Complaints

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
a)  No, of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 41 126
b) WNo. of complaints received during the year 3,397 5,990
¢)  No. of complaints redressed during the year 3,326 6,075
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 112 41




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

41. Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-
21 dated February 17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial
Company — Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as amended (Continued)

41.12 Derivative Instruments Exposures:

Derivative positions open as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 in the form of foreign currency forward exchange contract and
interest rate swap are disclosed below. These transactions were undertaken to act as economic hedges for the Company's exposures to
varjous risks in foreign exchange markets and qualify or can be designated as hedging instruments, The accounting for these transactions
is stated in note 2 (xi).

Forward exchange contracts (being derivative instrument), which are not intended for trading or speculation purposes but for hedge
purposes to establish the amount of reporting currency required or available at the settlement date at certain payables and receivables.
Interest rate swap is entered to establish the fixed rate of interest payable towards the external commercial borrowing,

The Company does not hold any derivative instrument which are intended for trading or speculation as on the reporting date.

Outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swap entered into by the Company: -

Particulars Buy / Sell For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

USD (Mio) Rs. In crore USD (Mio) Rs. In crore
Foreign exchange forward contracts i.e, Notional Buy 27.13 226.15 28.35 232.79
principal of Swap Agreements
(Foreign currency amount payable at future date
*Closing exchange rate)
Interest rate swap contract i.e. Notional principal of Buy NA NA NA NA
Swap Agreements
(Foreign Currency borrowings*Closing exchange
rate)
Cross currency swap contract i.e. Notional principal Buy 75.00 625.10 75.00 615.85
of Swap Agreements
(Foreign Currency borrowings*Closing exchange
rate)
Losses which would be incurred if counterparties Buy NA 221 NA NA
failed to fulfill their obligations under the
agreements
Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering into Buy NA NA NA NA
swaps
Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps Buy NA NA NA NA
$
The fair value gain/(loss) of the swap book, net Buy NA (2.21) NA 56.40
The fair value loss of the interest rate swap Buy NA - NA -
The fair value gain/(loss) of the Cross currency Buy NA } NA )
swap contract




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

41.

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-
21 dated February 17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing
Finance Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial
Company — Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as amended (Continued)

Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

A, Qualitative Disclosure

The Company has a risk management policy to enter into derivatives to manage the risk associated with external commercial borrowings.
The following table highlights the key aspects of the policy:

a) Treasury and Risk function is authorised to elect appropriate derivative instrument:,

b) The Company shall fully hedge the risk on account of foreign currency fluctuation and change interest rate towards external
commercial borrowing;

¢) The Company has put in place a reporting and monitoring mechanism for the risk associated with the derivative transaction;

d) Company has a hedging pelicy in place which mandates to have a hedge relation established before a detivative transaction is entered
into. The Company ensures that the hedging effectiveness is monitored continuously during the life of the derivative contract;

B. Quantitative Disclosure

Particulars Currency Derivatives Interest Rate Derivatives
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

(i} Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) 851.25 848.64 NA NA

(i) Marked to Market Positions [1]

(a) Assets (+) 46.78 45,07 272 0.06

(b) Liability (-) (6.57) 0.16) - -




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

41.

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.N0.120/03.10,136/2020-21 dated February 17,
2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as amended (Continued)

41.13

41.14

41.15

41.16

Housing and non-housing loans and provision in respect thereof on account of standard, sub standard, doubtfisl and loss assets are recorded in accordance with the
guidelines on pradential nonns as specified by National Housing Bank are as follows:

Category Standard Assets Sub-Standard Assets Doubtful Assets Loss Assets Total
As at As at As at As at As at Asat Asat As ot As at As at]
March 31, March31, March31l, March31, March3I, March3l, March31, March3l, March3l, March3l,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Heusing Loan
Gross Portfolio 36,208.74  26,717.21 12231 263.13 175.85 95.38 17.37 - 36,524.27 27,075.72
Provision 216.14 286.60 49.66 151.45 130.88 7298 17.37 - 414.05 510.83
Net Portfolio 3599260  26,430.61 72.65 111.68 44,97 2260 - - 36,110.22 26,564,89
Non Housing Loan
Gross Portfolio 15,339.45 10,431.08 82,66 144,28 95.70 8239 - - 15,517.81 10,657.75
Provision 108.28 143.10 26,53 65.33 62,07 59.09 - - 206.88 267.52
Net Portfolio 1522117 1028798 56.13 78.95 33.63 23,30 - - 15,310.93 10,390.23
Total
(ross Portfolio 51,548.19  37,14829 204.97 40741 271,55 171.77 17.37 - 52,042,08 37,733.47
Proviston 33442 429,70 76,19 216,78 152,95 131.87 17.37 - 620.93 778.35
Net Portfolio 5121377 36,718.59 128.78 190.63 78.60 4590 - - 51,421.15 36,955.12

Categories of Doubtful Assets are as follows;

Category Doubtful 1 Doubtful 2 Doubtful 3 Total
As at As at Asat As nt Asat As at As at As at
March3l, March3l, March3l, March3]l, March3l, March3l, March31, March3l,
2024 20 2024 2023 2024 1023 2024 2023
Housing Loan
Gross Portfolio 150.68 5197 25.17 43.37 - 0.04 175.85 95,33
Provision 109.60 39.59 21.28 3315 - 0.04 130.88 72,78
Net Portfolio 41.08 12.38 89 10.22 - - 44.97 22.60
Non Housing Loan
Gross Portfolio 47.60 57.37 47.93 2475 0.17 0.27 95,70 82.39
Provision 28,52 40,65 33.38 18.17 0.17 027 62.07 £9.09
Net Portfolic 19.08 16.72 14.55 5.58 - - 33.63 23.30
Total
Gross Portfolio 193.28 109.34 73.10 68.12 0.17 031 271.55 17777
Provision 133.12 80.24 54.66 51.32 0.17 031 192.95 131.87
Net Portfolio 60,16 29.10 18.44 16.80 - - 18.60 45.90

Loans granted by the Company ar¢ secured by any or all of the following as applicable, based on their categerisation;
a) Equitable / registered mortgage of property.

b) Undertaking to create a security.

c) Against securities.

The company has reported 1 fraud aggregating Rs. 18.14 crore (March 31, 2023: 4 frauds aggregating Rs, 2,99 crore) based on management reporting to risk
committee and to the NHB through prescribed returns. The nature of fraud invelved is cheating and forgery.

Asset Classification, NPA identification and Provisioning as per NHB Norms and Staging & Impairment allowance under Ind AS

1) Classification of Asset as Standard Asset under NHB oorms:

An Asset having DPD equal to or less than 90 days and not classified as default as per Ind AS 109 is reported as standard asset as per NHB nomms. Provisioning
made on stage [ and stage 2 assets under Ind AS 109 is reported as standard asset provisioning.

2) Classification of an Asset as NPA Asset under NHB norms:

An Asset having DPD more than 90 days and classified as default as per Ind AS 109 is reported as NPA asset as per NHB nommis. Such asset based on DPD as per
NHB norms is further classified and presented into substandard, doubtful and loss assets in compliance with the NHB norms. Provisioning made on stage 3 assets
under Ind AS 109 is reported as NPA provisioning,




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements {Continued)
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41.

41.17

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DORFIN.HFC.CC.N0.120/03,10.136/2020-21 dated February 17, 2021 as
amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with
Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as amended (Contioued)

Liabilities Side:
Particulars Amount Qutstanding Amount Overdue
Asat March AsatMarch AsatMarch Asat March
31,2024 31, 2023 31,2024 31, 2023
[} Loans and advances availed by NBFC inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not
a) Debentures:
(other than those falling within the meaning of public deposit)
- Secured 17,587.89 15,486.12 - -
- Unsecured 1,377.18 1,105.58 - -
b) Deferred Credits - - - -
¢) Term Loans 22,965.69 16,375.72 - -
d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - 443.75 - -
€) Commercial Paper 3,850.08 801.31 - -
f) Other loans ’
- Working Capital Demand Loan 1,486.12 820.02 - -
- Overdraft 0.02 - - -
Assets side:
Particulars Amount OQutstanding
2023-24 2022-23
2) Break up of loans and advances including bills receivables
(other than those included in (3) below)
- Secured 49,871.08 36,320.73
- Unsecured 2,171.00 1,412.74

3) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities
a) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
- Financial Lease
- Operating Lease
b) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
- Assets on hire
- Repossessed assets
¢} Other loans counting towards Asset Financing Company activities
- Loans where assets have been repossessed
- Other loans
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

41

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17, 2021 as
amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with
Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as amended (Continued)

Assets side: (Continued)

Particulars

4) Break up of Investments
Current Investments;
a) Quoted:
- Shares: Equity
Preference
- Debentures and Bonds
- Units of Mutual Funds
- Government Securities
- Others (Treasury Bills)
b) Unquoted:
- Shares: Equity
Preference
- Debentures and Bonds
- Units of Mutual Funds
- Government Securities
- Others (Pass through certificate)
Long-Term Investments;
a) Quoted:
- Shares: Equity (Net of provision)
Preference
- Debentures and Bonds
- Units of Mutual Funds
- Government Securities
- Qthers
b) Unquoted:
- Shares; Equity
Preference
- Debentures and Bonds
= Units of Mutual Funds
- Government Securities
- Others

Amount Outstanding

2023-24

612,60
349,23

2022-23

2,153.48
405.09
84,55

5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above

Particulars Secured Unsecured
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

a) Related parties

(i) Subsidiaries - - - -
(ii) Companies in the same group - - - -
(iif) Other related parties 468.50 - 2.37 237

b) Other than related parties 49,402.58 36,320.73 2,168.63 1,410.37

Tatal
2023-24

470.87
51,571.21

2022-23

237
37,731.10

TOTAL 49,871.08 36,320.73 2,171.00 1,412.74

52,042.08

37,733.47




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited
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Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

41 Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/202¢-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10,136/2020-21 dated February 17, 2021 as
amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with
Master Direstion — Non-Banking Financial Company —~ Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as amended (Continued)
Assets side: (Continned)

6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long-term) in shares and securities (both quoted and nnquoted)

Particulars Market Value/Break up or Book Value
fair value or NAV (Net of Provisions)
2023-24 2022-23 202324 2022-23
a) Related parties

) Subsidiaries . .
ii) Companies in the same group -

iii) Other related Parties - - - -
b) Other than related parties 969.29 2,648.43 969.29 2,648.43
TOTAL 969.29 2,648.43 969.29 2,648.43
73 Onher Infortnation
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

a) Gross Non-Performing Assets

1) Related parties - -

2) Other than related parties 493.89 585.18
b) Net Nen-Performing Assets
1) Related parties -
2) Other than related parties 207.38 236.53
¢) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -

41.18 Principal Business Criteria ; Para 4,1.17 of NBFC-HFC (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

Particulars Limit % 2023-24 2022-23
Criteria - 1

a) Financial Assets / Total Assets (Net of Intangible Assets) >50% 96.99% 98.31%
b) Income from Financial Assets / Gross Income >50% 95.84% 97.44%
Criteria - IT

a) Housing Finance / Total Assets (Net of Intangible Assets) >=60% 67.52% 67.13%
b} Housing Finance for Individual / Total Assets (Net of Intangible Assets) >=50% 56.80% 54.51%
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended March 31, 204
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41 Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DORFIN.HFC.CC.N0,120/03,10,136/2020-21 dated
February 17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023
as amended {(Continued)

41.19  Disclosure pursnant to Reserve Bank of India Cireular DORFINHFC.CC No.120/03,10.136/2020-21 dated December, 2021 pertaining to Liquidity Risk
Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Cempanies- Housing Finance Companies

(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty

- . . Amount (in % of Total
o,
Sr.No Number of Significant Counterparties % of Total deposits Crore)* Liahilities
1 21 0% 38,104,74 80%
* Principal amount outstanding as en March 31, 2024
{ii) Top 20 Large Deposits
Amount (in % of total
Sr. No Counterparty Crore) depasits
Nil
(iii) Top 10 Borrowing
Amount {in % of total
Sr. No Name of Counterparty Crore)* borrowings
1 10 29,865.61 64%
* Principal amount ding as on March 31, 2024
{iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
Amount (in % of total
Sr.No Name of the instrument/product Crore) Liabilities
1 Not Convertible Debenture 18.464.71 3%%
2 |Bank Loans 23,592.30 458%
3 |Commercial paper 4.000.00 8%
4 |External Commercial Barowing 788.09 2%
5 |Inter Corporate Deposit - 0%
Total 46,845.10
{v) Stock Ratios
Pariicolars %
(a) Commercial papers 2s a % of total public funds 8%
(8) Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities 2%
(a) Commercial papers as a % of total assets 7%
(b)Non-convertible debentures (original maturity Fess than | year) as a % of total public finds %
(biNon-convertible debentures {original maturity ess than | year) as a % of total liabilities jor)
(B)Non-convertible debentures (original maturity Yess than 1 year) as a % of total assets 0%
( ¢ )Other Short-term liabilities as a % of total public funds 3%
( ¢ )Other Short-term liabilities as a % of total Liabilities 3%
( ¢ YOthet Short-term liabilitfes as a % of toal Assels 209
Footnotes :

1. For the purpose of above disclosure, ‘Public Funds’ i.e. Commercial papers, NCI's and CRPS are shown at Face Value whereas Total assets and total
liabilities are shown at Carcying values,

2, Total Liabilities refer to Total outside liabilities i.e. Balance sheet total excluding Share Capital and Reserves.

3. Other Short-term liabilities include Financial Liabilities and non-financial liabilities payable within a year (Excluding CP maturity and NCD Maturity of
orginal tenor less than | year)

[\3)] The Company’s Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for overseeing the risk management framework, The Company's risk management
policies are established to identify, analyse and mitigate the risks faced by the Company. The risk management policies are established to set the
appropriate limits, controls, and monitoring of risks and are regularly reviewed to reflect changing market conditions and company activities. To manage
the liquidity risk and Interest rate risk, the Board has delegated the responsibility to Asset Liability Management committee (ALCO), a management level
committee estzblished in accordance with its charter. The company’s Asset Liability Management Policy (ALM Policy) is approved by the Beard , as
recommended by ALCO to ensure the effective risk management practices.
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41.19

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBL/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.N0.120/03,10.136/2020-21 dated February 17, 2021
as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read
with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as amended (Continued)

Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Circular DOR FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated December, 2021 pertaining to Liquidity
Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies- Housing Finance Companies (Continued)

LCR framework under the liquidity risk management of the Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited (TCHFL) is undertaken by the Market risk
department in the Risk group under the central oversight of the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCQ) in accordance with the Board
approved policies.

As per the RBI circular dated Dec 2021 ecircular no DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.Ne.120/03.10.136/2020-21 all non-deposit taking NBFCs with asset size of
Rs,10,000 crore and above, and all deposit taking NBFCs imrespective of their asset size, shall maintain a liquidity buffer in terms of LCR which will
promote resilience of HFCs to potential liquidity disruptions by ensuring that they have sufficient High Quality Liquid Asset (HQLA) to survive arny
acute liquidity stress scenario lasting for 30 days,

|From 01-Dec-21 01-Dec-22 01-Dec-23 [01-Dec-24 01-Dec-25
|Minimum LCR 50% 60% 70% Jase 100%

As per the above requirement, TCHFL is required to maintain LCR from December 01, 2021, Therefore, for the year ended March 31, 2024, TCHFL
has disclosed the LCR for the period Q4-FY 24 as a simple average of all days in past 3 months,

LCR maintained: For the quarter ended March 24, the simple average of all days in the past three months was observed at 95% (HQLA- Rs, 845
crore) against the requirement of minimum 70% (HIQLA - Rs. 625 crore). For the financial year 23-24, the company has been consistently compliant
with LCR framework.

Main drivers to the LCR numbers: All significant outflows and inflows determited in accordance with RBI guidelines are included in the
prescribed LCR computation.

Intra-period changes and changes over time: As per RBI guidelines, the company has been monitoring the LCR on a daily basis for the peried of
April 23 to March 24, The maximum and minimum required HQLA for regulatory compliance has been Rs. 887 crore and Rs. 353 crore respectively
for the quarter ended March 24 (Q4-FY24).

Composition of HQLA: The HQLA maintained by TCHFL comprises Government securities such as long dated G-sec, SDL, T bills and cash balance
maintained in current account. The details are given below.

For the period Jan to March 2024, the average HQLA of (Rs. 845 crore) comprised of Rs. 6.91 crore in cash and remaining Rs. 838.59 crore from
Government securities and T bill.

Concentration of funding sources:
The company maintains well diversified sources of funding comprising short/long term loans from banks, NCDs, sub-ordinated and perpetual debt,
ECBs and CPs, The funding pattern is reviewed regularly by the management.

Drerivative exposnres and potential collateral calls:
As on March 31, 2024 the company has fully hedged interest and principal outflows in the foreign currency ECBs. ECBs constitutes no more than
1.77% of the total borrowings as on March 31, 2024. Hence, derivative exposures are considered NIL.

Currency mismatch in LCR: There is NIL mismatch to be reported in LCR as on March 31, 2024 since FCY ECBs are fully hedged for the
corresponding interest and principal components.

Qther inflows and outflows in the LCR calculation that are not captured in the LCR common template but which the institution considers to be
relevant for its liquidity profile. NIL as on March 31, 2024,
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41

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RB1/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February

17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction ~ Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as

amended (Continued)

41.2¢ Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109 /22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020
pertaining to Asset Classification as per NHB Norms
As at March 31, 2024
Loss Difference
Gross Allowances Provisions | between Ind
Asset Carrying | (Provisions) | Net Carrying| requiredas | As109
Asset Classification as per NHB Norms classification as Arrying . Tying| req L
er Ind AS 109 Amountas | as required Amount per IRACP Provisions
P per Ind AS | under Ind AS norms and IRACP
109 norms
A B C=A-B D E=B-D
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 50,363.54 161,76 50,201,78 220.23 (58.47)
Stage I 1,184.65 172.66 1,011.99 110,06 62.60
Subtotal for Standard StageI& 11 51,548.1% 334,42 51,213.77 330.29 4.13
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage I11 204.97 76.19 128.78 3081 4538
Doubtful -up to 1 year Stage III 198.28 138.12 60,16 65.69 7243
1 to 3 years Stage I1I 73.10 54,66 18.44 3151 23.15
More than 3 years Stage [I 0,17 0.17 - 0.17 -
Subtotal for deubtful 271.85 192.95 78.60 97.37 95.58
Loss Stage 11T 17.37 17.37 - 17.37 -
Subtotal for NPA 493.89 286.51 207.38 145.55 140.96
Other items such as guarantees, loan|Stagel 8,241.01 27.75 8,213.26 - 2775
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of Ind
AS 109 but not covered under current Income|Stage Il - - - - -
Recognition,  Asset  Classification  and Stage III
Provisioning (IRACP) norms B¢ - - . - -
Subtotal 8,241.01 27.75 8,213.26 - 27.75
Total Stage I 58,604.55 189.51 58,415.04 220.23 (30.72)
Stage II 1,184.65 172.66 1,011.99 110.06 62.60
Stage IIT 493.89 286.51 207.38 145,55 140,96
Total 60,283,09 648.68 59,634.41 475.84 172.84
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Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in crore)

41 Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February
17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company —~ Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as

amended (Continued)

41.20 Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109 /22.10,106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020
pertaining to Asset Classification as per NHB Norms
As at March 31, 2023
Loss Difference
Asset Gross Allowances Provisions | betweea Ind
Asset Classification as per NHB Norms classification as Carrying (Provm'u ns) | Net Carrying| required as As 109
er Tnd AS 109 Amount as | as required Amount per IRACP | Provisions
P per Ind AS | under Ind AS norms and IRACP
109 norms
A B C=A-B D E=B-D
Performing Assets
Standard Stage I 35,730.97 138.46 35,592.51 15532 (16.86)
Stage II 1,417.32 291.24 1,126,08 147.09 144,15
Subtatal for Standard StageI& IT 37,148.29 429.70 36,718.59 302.41 127.29
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 11 407.41 216,78 190,63 61.09 155.69
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage TII 169.34 80.24 29.10 34.81 45.43
| to 3 years Stage 11 68.12 51.32 16.80 36.15 15.17
More than 3 years Stage lI 0.31 0.31 - 0.31 -
Subtotal for doubtful 171.77 131.87 45.90 71.27 60.60
Loss Stage Il - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA 585.18 348.65 236.53 132.36 216,29
Other items such as guarantees, loan|Stagel 8,763.02 3333 8,729.69 - 33,33
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of Ind
AS 109 but not covered under current Income|Stage II - - - " -
Recognition,  Asset  Classification  and Stage II1
Provisioning (TRACP) norms Be ) ) ) - )
Subtotal 8,763.02 3333 8,729.69 - 33.33
Total Stage I 4449399 171.79 44,322.20 155.32 16,47
Stage II 1,417.32 291.24 1,126,08 147.09 144.15
Stage III 585.18 348.65 236.53 132.36 21629
Total 46,496.49 811.68 45,684.81 434.77 376.91
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42 Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03,10.136/2020-21 dated February
17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as
amended (Continued)

A) Exposure
(i) Exposure to real estate sector

Category 2023-24 202223
i) Direct exposure 60,298.28 44,553.48
a) Residential Mortgages — 53,230.61 40,424,75

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that

is rented. Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits. 53,230.61 40,424.75

b) Commercial Real Estate — 7,067.67 4,128.73
Lending sscured by mortgages on commercial real estate (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose
commercial premises, multifamily residential buildings, multi tenanted commercial premises, industrial or,

warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure would also inciudel 7.067.67 4,12873
non-fund based (NFB) limits.
c) Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized exposures — - -

i, Residential = ~
ii. Commercial Real Estate - R

ii) Indirect Exposure - -
Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing Bank and Housing Finance Companies.

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 60,298.28 44,553.48
Note : Exposure to Real Estate Sector includes accrued interest and undrawn commitment given to borrowers.

(ii) Exposure to capital market

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity oriented
mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt

ii} Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for
investment in shares (including [POs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity,
oriented mutual funds

iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of]
equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security -

iv} Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other,
than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully, -
cover the advances

v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and
market makers - -

vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on
clean basis for mecting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising 501,81 55.49
resources

vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues - -

viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds - -

ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading - -
|x) All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds: - -
(i) Category I - R
(ii} Category II - N
(iii) Category 111 - .
Total exposure to capital market 501.81 55.49
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Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February
17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as

amended (Continued)

(iif) Sectoral exposure

Sectors 2023-24 2022-23
Total Exposure Percentage of Total Exposure Percentage of
(includes on balance G NPAS 1 {includes on balanee G N}‘i '
Particulars sheet and ofi- Gross NPAs rass 3 0 sheet and off- Gross NPAs Toss 510
total exposure in total exposure
balance sheet balance sheet .
that sector in that sector
exposure) eiposure)
1. Agricultore and Allied Activities - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
2. Industry
2.1. Micro and Small - - 0.00%, - - 0.00%
2.2. Medium - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
2.3, Large - - 0,00%. - - 0.00%
Total of Industry (2) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3. Services
3.1.Transport Operators - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.2.Computer Software - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.3. Tourism, Hotels and Restaurants - - 0,00% - - 0.00%
3.4. Shipping - - 0.00% - - 0.00%.
3.5. Aviation - - 0,00% - - 0,00%|
3.6. Professional Services - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.7. Trade - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.7.1. Wholesale Trade (other than food 0.00% 0.00%
procurement) - - - -
3.7.2. Retail Trade - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.8. Commercial Real Estate 6,290.29 70.43 1.12% 3,927.25 92.79 2.36%
i::;cl;l'on-Banhng Financial Companies (NBFCs) of] 71737 0.00% 201.49 ) 0.00%
3.9.1.  Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) 73,56 - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.9.2.  Public Financial Institutions (PFIs) - - 0,00% - - 0.00%
3.10. Other Services™ 2.37 - 0.00% 237 - 0.00%
Total of Services (3) 7,070.03 70.43 1.00% 4,131.11 92.79 2.25%
4. Personal Loans
4.1. Consumer Durables - - 0.00% - - 0.00%!
4.2. Housing (Including Prigrity Sector Housing) 34,116,14 207.66 0.61% 24,291.62 237.83 0.98%
4.3. Advances against Fixed Deposits (Including o o
FCNR (B), NRNR Deposits etc.) 0.00% 0.00%
:1: Advances to Individuals against share, bonds, . _ 0.00% i ) 0.00%
4.5. Credit Card Outstanding - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.6. Education - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.7. Vehicle Loans - - 0.00%! - - 0.00%
4.8. Loans against gold jewellery - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.9, Other Personal Loans - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.10.Others* 9,354.16 104.60 1.12% 6,759.53 127.23 1.88%
Total of Personal Loans (4) 43,470.30 312.26 0.72% 31,051,15 365.06 1.18%
5. Others, if any (please specify)** 9,757.95 111.20 1.14% 9,371.22 127.33 1.36%
Total (14243+4+5) 60,298.28 493.89 0.82% 44,553.48 585.18 1.31%
Notes:

~includes loan to TCL Employee Welfare Trust.
* includles loan against property.
jncludes loan to corporate and builders.
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Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.N0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February
17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 ag

amended (Continued)

(iv) Intra-group exposures

Particualrs 2023-24 2022-23

i) Total amount of intra-group exposures 505.87 2.37
i) Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures 503.87 2.37
iii) Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC on borrowers/customers 0.84% 0.01%

(v) There were no unhedged foreign currency transactions during current year. Refer Note No. 39C (iii) for policies to manage currency induced risk.
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42 Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI2020-21/100 DORFIN.HFC.CC.No,120/03,10,136/2020-21 dated
February 17, 2021 as amended under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation
Directions, 2023 as amended (Continued)

C) Disclosure of complaints

1) Summary information on complaints received by the NBFECs from customers and from the Offices of Qmbudsman

Sr. No |Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
1 |Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 41 126
Number of complaints received during the year 3,397 5,990
3 |Number of complaints disposed during the year 3,326 6,075
3.1 |Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC - -
4 [Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 112 41

Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of]

5 |ombudsman
5.1 Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of] . _
"~ |Ombudsman

Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/advisories
52 (issued by Office of Ombudsman - -

OFf 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of]

53 |ombudsman against the NBFC - -
4 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those
appealed)

2) Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers

% increasef Of 5, number|
Number of Number of decrease in the Number of of co’m laints
Grounds of complaints, (i.e. complaints complaints pending complaints number of complaints en:in
relating to) at he beginning of |received during the|complaints received| pending at the bl: ond §0
the year year over the previous | end of the year o
year days
1 2 3 4 5 6
2023-24
Comp]afnt on explanation of charges/ B 266 4% 5 .
calcnlation related
Comiplaint apainst Sales personnel (CC) 5 235 -54% 7 -
Complaint_Cancellation of Insurance Policy| o
= 16 -
not done (CC/BR) 3 5o 128%
Complaint Waiver of Foreclosure Charges|
L 2 _
(CC/BR) 2 203 4%
Complaint Refind of Insurance Premium not o
2 10 -
reed (CO/BR) 6 164 [25%
Others 18 2,299 40% 72 -
Total 41 3397 43% 112 -
2022-23
Complaint against Sales persoanel 10 504 54% 5 -
Complaint on explanation of charges/]
178% 2
calculation related 13 478 8% 7
Complaint_Delay in receipt of FC & LOD
- 460 -76% - -
Statement (CC/BR) 2 i
Complaint_Reduction of ROI (CC/BR) 6 391 -T1% - -
Complaint Delay in receipt of disk rent 51% 3 -
cheque (CC) 13 347 S
Others 82 3,810 -23% 26 2
Total 126 5,990 -35% 41 4

D) There is no breach of covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued.

E) There is no divergences in asset classification and provisiening,
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43,

44,

45,

46.

47.

48,

49.

Segment Reporting:

Tl:ne _Comp.anyis engagcd in the business of providing loans for purchase, construction, repairs end rengvation etc, of houses/ flats to individuals and corposate bedies and has its operations
within India. There being only one “business segment’ and *geographical segment’, hence the segment information is not provided.

Details of resolution plan implemented under the Resolution Framework for COVID - 19-related Stress as per RBI ircular dated August 06, 2020 (Resolution Framework 1.0} and May
05, 2021 (Resolution Framework 2.0), as at March 31, 2024 are given below:

(Rs. in crore)
Exposure to accounts Expoaure to accounts
classified as Standard classified as Standard
consequent to . N Of (A) amount paid by the consequent to
s " OF (A), aggregate debt that stipped |OF (A) amount written off|
tati i = fi
Type of borrower | m;{leme.n on n,f. into NPA during the halfyear during the half-year borrowers during the balf Implementation of
resolution plan — Position ended March 31, 2024 ended March 31, 2024 year ended March 31, | redolution plan — Position
as at the ead of the . ' 2024 as at the end of this half-
previous half-year i.e year i.e March 31,
September 30, 2023 (A} 202454
Personal Loans 935.60 36.01 218 155.79 821.65
Comp persons® 30.63 - 0.01 9.00 23.57
OFf which MSMEs - - - - -
Others 38.79 2.76 0.12 4.50 33,51
‘Total 1,005.02 38.77 31 169.29 878.73

*As defined in Section 3(7} of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

# Includes entire e of the borr rs who have avaifed the resolution framewrok for COVID-13-related Stress.
** includes amounts paid by borrower towards Interest capltelised during the half yeor.

A Inciudes restructuring Imp ] under the Resolution Framewark 1.0

Details of loans transferred / acquired during the quarter ended March 31, 2024 under the RBI Master Direction on Transfer of Loan Exposures dated September 24, 2021 are given below:

(i) The Company has not ferred any non-performing assets (NPAs).

(ii) The Company has not transfemed any Special Mention Account (SMA) and loan not in defaule.
(iii} The Company has not acquired loans not in default through assignment.

(iv) The Company has not acquired sny stressed loan.

Analytical Ratios as per Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notification dated 24th March 2021:

c ¢ Previous % Reason for
Ratia Numerator Denominator url:en re\rfuu ; variance (if
Period Period Variance
abaove 25%)
Capital to fisk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) Total capital funds Total risk weighted assets 18.80% 18.20% 3% Not
Tier [ CRAR Capital funds—Tier I Total risk weighted assets 15.82% 15.00% % Applicable
Tier Il CRAR Capital funds ~ Tier IT Total risk weighted asscts 298% 320% | PP
Liquidity Coverage Ratio. Total HQLA Total Net Cash Qutflows 04,74% 73.11% 30%| Notel
Note 1: Due to change In regulatory requinment from 60% te 70%%.
Details of transactions with companies struck ofT under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 :
(Rs. in crore)
50 | Name of Struck off Company Natureof |\ o March31,2024 | AsatMarch3t, 2023 | Relntlonslhip with the
No. transactions strock ofl company
| |Ammam Agro Udyog Private Limited Loan 0.04 0.05 | Borrower
2 |Peoplepro Trainers and Consull Pvt Ltd Loan 0.21 0.21 | Borrower
3 |Sinclaire Inns and Resorts Private Limit Loan 0.27 0.28 | Borrower
4 |Sahujain Services Limitedd S“”‘g‘gg‘;"‘ o NA 1.10 |NCDs Holder
5 |Capital [ India Private Limited Trade Payable* 0.00 NA | Vendar
6 |India Finsol Private Limited Trede Payable® 0.00 NA |Vendor
7 |K & S Financial Services Private Limited Trade Payable* 000 NA | Vendor

* less than Rs, 50,000/~
# The status of the Company has changed to active as on March 31, 2024.
The above disclosure has been prepared besis the relevant information ¢compiled by the Company on best effort basis,

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (elther fiom borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or other kind of funds) to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the und ding, whether ded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

The Company has not received any fiunds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) from any person or entity, including forcign cntity (“Funding Partics”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend cr invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Pasty (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The disclosure on the following matters required under Schedule Il as amended not being relevant or spplicable in case of the Company, same are not covered:

a) The Company has not raded or invested in crypto currengy or virtual currency during the financial year.

1) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending =gainst the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1588) and rules
made thereunder.

c) The Company has not been declared willful defeulter by any bank or financial institution or g
d) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement.

) No satisfaction of charges are pending to be filed with ROC.

£) There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or djp
Tax Act, 1961,

authority.

or any g




Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

50, Figures in the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary, in order to make them compargble 10 the cutrent year,

In terms of our report of even date
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